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The Hotel Management. Departmenr
focuses on the front office, human resource
management, housekeeping, engineering and
casino and computer operations. Students
learn the intricacies of the gaming industry
through the use of the College's gaming labora-
tory.



Darrel Daines,
State Controller

The State Controller is a constitutional officer elected for a four year term by
the general electorate. The Controller is the ex-officio chief fiscal officer

of the State and is empowered to represent the State in fiscal mafters
with the Federal Government. The Controller is charged with the

responsibility of paying state obligations, paying employee salaries
and maintaining the official accounting records of the State. He is

responsible for demonstrating accountability to the public by
preparing the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The State Controller serves as a member of both the State
Board of Finance and the State Transportation Board.

Mr. Daines is in the second vear of his fourth term of office.
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STATE OF NEVADA

OFFICE OF

DARREL DAINES
Sure Comroller

STATE CONTROLLER
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89710

(102) 687 4330

Fax (702) 687 -674a

KEN WEST
Chief Deputy Controller

To the Citizens.
Governor and
Legislators of the
State of Nevada:

December 13, 1996

I am pleased to present the comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1996. These financial statements reflect Nevada's growing
economy spurred by the gaming industry opening several mega-resorts.
Revenue growth rate exceeded the estimates used in determining appropriations,
resulting in increased unreserved fund balances. The financial health of the State
has steadily improved as demonstrated by the combined increase over 1995 of
$60 million in the unreserved general fund balance and rainy day fund balance.

Responsibility for the accuracy, completeness and fairness of this tinancial
presentation rests with my office as State Controller. I am confident that the
informatjon reported is accurate in all material respects, is reported in a manner
which fairly presents the financlal position and results of operations of the State,
and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding
of the State's financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in three sectionsl
introductory, financial and statistical. The introductory section includes this letter,
organization chart, major initiatives, a report on the economic outlook and a
specral feature on UNLV's Wrlliam F. Harrah College of Hotel Administration. The
financial section includes the independent auditor's opinion, the general purpose
financial statements, and the combining, individual fund and account group
statements and schedules. Trend information on fiscal, social and demographic
measures on a multiyear basis is included in the statistical section.

This report has been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) for governments as promulgated by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The independent accounting firm of
Kafoury, Armstrong & Co. has audited the accompanying financial statements.
The audit was conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and the auditor's unqualifred opinion appears first in the financial
sectron.

Nevada was honored for the eighth consecutrve year In receiving the Certiflcate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting from the Government
Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for the State's 1995 report. This prestigious
award represents the highest form of recognition in the area of governmental
flnancial reporting We believe our current report contrnues to conform to the high
standards and will be submitted to GFOA for review in their Certificate of
Achievement Program.



Reporting Entity - Nevada, named the "silver State" due to the vast quantities of silver mined from the Comstock

t_oOe in the 1800s, is bordered by California, Oregon, ldaho, Utah and Arizona. The State lies in the Great Basin,

an arid region east of the Sierra Nevada Mountains, where the average annual rainfall is less than ten inches

Approximltely 87.6 percent of the 1 10,000 square miles of valleys and north-south mountain ranges is under

federal ownershio.

The economy and the tax base ofthe State are dependent upon the interrelated gaming and tourism industries, as

well as upon federal activities, mining, warehousing, manufacturing, and agriculture. Nevada has experienced one

of the fastest rates of population growth in the nation, The 1990 census showed a 50% increase over 1980 and

the 1996 forecast of 1 .6 million people indicates that Nevada's population has grown over 30% since 1990.

The State has operated under a constitution approved in 1864 and provides for a full range of services. These

services include education, health and social services, highway maintenance and construction, law enforcement,

judicial, public safety, business regulation, and resource development. State agencies and entities included in this

ieport aie those for which the State is considered to be financially accountable. There are several occupaiional

licensing boards where the State's accountabili$ is limited to State officials making appointments to the boards.

The Staie does not exercise financial or administrative control over these boards and thus they are excluded from

this report.

The following State agencies issue independent financial reports:

Colorado River Commission
Department of Museums, Library and Arts' Museums and History Fund

Housing Division
Legislative Counsel Bureau's Legislative and Contingency Funds

Legislators' Retirement System
Public Employees' Retirement System
Risk Management's Self-lnsurance and Insurance Premiums Funds

State Industrial Insurance System
University and Community College System of Nevada

Copies of these independently audited reports are available upon request

Internal Gontrols - State management is responsible for designing and encouraging adherence to policies and

controls that safeguard resources. Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute

assurance regardtng:

. The safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and

. The reliability of the financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability of

assets.

Such controls require judgment by management that the costs of controls should not exceed the benefits derived.

ln addition to internal controls, the State also maintains budgetary conkols to ensure compliance with the biennial

financial plan as enacted by the Legislature through the appropriation and authorized expenditure acts. Budgetary

controls also contain a system of encumbering purchase orders to ensure that appropriations are not exceeded.

General Government Functions - The following schedule presents a summary of general fund, special revenue

funds, debt service funds, capital projects funds, and expendable trust funds revenues and other financing

sources for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1996 and 1995. Net transfers from/to other funds are considered an

other financing source.



Revenues and Other Financing Sources
(Expressed in thousands)

1996 '1995

$ 1,799,602

877,735
185,375
41,458
91,595
42,699

244,717

$ 3,283,181

54.8%
26.7

5.6
13
2.8
1.3

7.5
100.0%

Amount
$ 1,658,059

836,557
175,'139
39,751
68,387
43,159

93,529

$ 2,914,58'1

Percent
56.9%
287
6.0
1.4

3.2
100.0%

Amount
$ '141,543

41,'t78
10,236

1,707
23,204

(460)
't51,'188

$ 368,600

Percent
8.s%o

49
5.8
4.3

33.9
-1.1

161 .6

Amount Percent
Taxes
Intergovernmental

Licenses, fees and permits

Sales and charges for services
lnterest
Other revenues
Other financing sources

Other financing sources

Other revenues

Interest

Sales, charges for services

Licenses, fees and permits

Intergovernmental

The increase in taxes was due to growth in the economy rather than new taxes or increased tax rates. Taxes

represent almost 60% of the resources available to the State for general government functions with sales taxes

and gaming taxes representing approximately two thirds of total taxes. The following chart depicts graphically

sales and gamjng taxes over the past four years.

The chart shows that sales taxes
have increased 46% over the
four years, and gaming taxes
have increased 25%. The trend
of healthy tax revenue growth
continued in 1996.

=

'93

tSales Tax IGaming Tax

Intergovernmental revenues, the next largest source, are predominantly federal. Interest, derived from the

investment of idle cash, increased substantially. This increase was due to increased earnings rates as well as to

the increase of cash and investment balances due to the improved fiscal health of the State. Other financing

Increase (Decrease)



General government
Heallh, social services
Education
Law, justice, public safety
Regulation of business
Transportalion
Recrealion
Intergovernmental
Capital improvements
Debt service
Other financing use

Amount Percent
$ 28 0.0%

67 ,297 6.8
3,849 15.6

31,734 14.'l
(106) -O.2

(23,857) -6.5

3A40 4.5
125,871 26.1
(12,616) -31.1

31,566 29.4
8,705 3.4

sources show a substantial increase, due primarily to proceeds from bonds. This was anticipated because debt
financing does not occur on a uniform basis. Table ll in the statistical section shows a ten-year time prolile of
resources for general government.

Expenditures and Other Financing Use
( Ex pre sse d in thousa nds)

1996 1995
Amount Percent Amount Percent-i ?r??o - z6% -$ ?r?42 zs%
1,061,930 36.0 994,633 36.7

28,482 1.0 24,633 0.9
256,015 8.7 224,28't 8.3
58,819 2.0 58,925 2.2

344,183 11.7 368,040 13.6
80,713 2.7 77,273 2.8

608,781 20.7 482p10 17.8
27,932 0.9 40.548 1.5

138.791 4.7 107225 4 0
266,381 9.0 257.676 9.5

$ 2,547 .797 100.0% $ 2,711,886 lOO.Ook $ 235,911 8.7

Intergovernmental

Recreat|on

Regulation of business
Capital improvements

Transportation Debt servic€

Other financing use

General government

Law, juslice, public safety

Education

Health, sooal servtces

Expenditures for general governmental functions increased by approximately g% over 1995 as shown in the
preceding table. Note that net transfers to component unit (the University System) is the other financing use.

The increase in law, justice, and public safety expenditures is due to opening a new medium security correctional
facility. The increase in intergovernmental expenditures reflects the population lncreases experienced by the
State. The increase occurred primarily in payment to local school districts for per pupil support. The numberof
students enrolled increased by 6% and the support per pupil increased as well. Wide swings in capital
improvement expenditures occur due to the biennial cycle of authorizing projects. The 29% increase in debt
seryice was anticioated.

The increase in total revenues exceeded the increases in total expenditures resulting in increased cash and fund
balances. The State has been successful in revenue projections and expenditure control. The healthy results for
the current year have permitted the State to transfer the maximum amount allowed by statute to the Fund to
Stabilize the Operations of State Government, the "rainy day" func.

lncrease (Decrease)



An important indicator of fiscal health is
the undesignated fund balance of the
General Fund. The accompanying
chart depicts that balance and the
balance in the "rainy day" fund. Table
lV in the statistical section provides a

ten year compaflson The combined
amounts of undesignated General Fund
and "rainy day" fund balances
Increased $60 million in 1996.

'95 '96

lUnreserved

proprietary Operations - Internal Service Funds - The internal service funds charge and recover costs from

State agencies for services such as burlding maintenance, printing, insurance, data processing, motor pool and

others. Rates charged to State agencies for the operations of the internal service funds are adjusted in following

years to offset gains and losses In 1996, these funds showed only nominal net income of $1 mlllion

demonstrating that rates charged to State agencies were appropriate. The surplus earnings in the insurance

funds accumulated from prior years will be adjusted in the next biennium through rate adjustments.

proprietary Operations - Enterprise Funds - The enterprise funds primarily reflect the activities of:

o The Colorado River Commission (CRC) supplying water to the entities in Clark County and purchasing and

selling electrical power from Nevada's share of the generating facilities at Hoover Dam The water related

activities, including associated assets and liabilities, were transferred to the Southern Nevada Water Authority

(SNWA) on January 1 , 1996.

. The Housing Division providing low interest loans to low and moderate income households.

. The State Industrial Insurance System (SllS) providing benefits of medical care, disability compensation and

rehabilitation services to Nevada workers who are injured or contract a disease in the course of their

emproymenl.

Combined assets of enterprise funds Increased by $21 1 million in 1996 and combined liabilities decreased by

g230 million, resulting in a net reduction to fund deficit of $441 million. These improvements over 1995 were

primarily due to the transfer of net liabilities of $55 mrllron from CRC to SNWA and to improvements realized by

SllS. SilS reported net income of $363 million and unreafized investment gains of $16 million. SllS fund deficit

decreased from $1,732 million in '1995 to $1,352 milhon in 1996 The laws enacted by the 1993 Legislature and

management efficiencies are proving effective in reducing the SllS fund deficit. Additional legislation changes

enacted in 1gg5 authorized SllS to collect a solvency surcharge, if needed, to Protect SllS'ability to pay its

outstanding obligations as they become due.

pension Trust Operations - The Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) covers most public employees

of the State and its political subdivisions, as well as other public employees PERS revenue increased 32% to
g.1,066 million due principally to strong investment earnings. Expenses increased only 10% to $290 million

PERS unfunded accrued liability, using the entry age normal cost method, amounted to $2.3 billion at June 30,

i 996, reflecting a decrease of g 'l billion from '1995 The funded ratio increased lo 75.8% in 1 996 from 73 5% in

'1gg5. Under the present plan and actuarial method the unfunded liability will be fully amortized over a period of 28

'93 ',94

ERainy Day Fund



years from July 1, 1996. Additional information is available in the Actuarial Section of PERS seoaratelv issued
flnancial statements.

Debt Administration - The bond ratings from Moody's Investor Service and Standard and Poor's remained at Aa
and AA respectively. These ratings reflect a good economic base and sound financial management. On June 30,
1996, outstanding bonded debt was (expressed in thousands).

General Obligation Bonds
H ighway Revenue Bonds
Mortgage Revenue Bond s

Municipal Bond Bank Projects 47 and 48
G.O. Water Pollution Matching
G.O. Water Pollution Leverage
Municipal Bond Bank Projects 49 and 50
G.O Natural Resources
G.O. Capital lmprovement
Municipal Bond Bank Project 51

G.O. Water Pollulion Matching
G.O. Water Pollution Leverage
G.O. Natural Resources
Colorado River Commission Refunding
Housing Single Family 1995D
Housing Single Family 19964
Housing Single Family 19968
Housing Multi-family 19958
Housing Multi-family 1995C
Housing Muti-family 19968
Housing Multi-family Saratoga Palms
Housing Multi-family Arville, Granada

(Expressed in millions)
Additions to Lovelock Correction Center - Medium Securitv Prison
State Office Building - Las Vegas
Clark County Armory
Legislative Building
Additions lo Dept. of Motor Vehicles Building - Spa*s
Dept. of Motor Vehicles Building - Henderson

$ 1,293,841
59,82 0

707,688
$ 2,061,349

Only $448 million of the $1,294 million general obligation bonds are paid through a tax levy on property. The
remaining $846 million are serviced through user fees from enterprise fund operations, slot machine taxes, and
revenues from local governments for the municipal bond bank and the water pollution control bonds.

The Constitution of the State limits the aggregate principal amount of the general obligation debt to 2% of the total
reported assessed property value of the State. As of June 30, 1996, the debt limit and remaining capacity were as
follows (expresse d in millions):

Debt limit (2% of assessed value) g 694.6
Lessi Bonds and leases payable 451.3
Remainlng debt capacity $ 243.3

Exempt from this limit are debts incurred for the protection, preservation and development of natural resources.

New bonds sold during the 1996 fiscal year were fexpressed in thousands).

7t15t95
9/1/95A
9/1/958

11t1t954
11t1t958
1'v'v95C

1tlt96
5t1t96A
5/1/968
5/'tl96C
12t'U95
11t1t95
3t1t96
5t1t96
4t1t96
4t1t96

5/30/96
6/1/96
6t1t96

$ 34,380
1,265
9,670

128,800
o,t zc

45,000

755
4,265
4,'l't5

118,590
33,430
50,000
25,000

9,060
4,450

11,525
10,250
14,490

Capital Projects - To keep pace with demands of the growing population and economy, the State has used its
bonding capacity for a substantial capital project program. The following is a summary of major prolects during
1996.

Expended by
June 30. 1996 Total Budqet

$ 1.2 $ 35.1
31.9 32.4
8.5 15.6
3 9 16.0
't.4 5.3
z,c J.5



Not shown rn the capital projects funds nor in the general fixed assets account group are the efforts of the
Department of Transportation in improving and maintaining our highway infrastructure. During 1996 Department
of Transportation spent $84.3 million constructing freeways, state routes, and bridges The State also spent $121
million reconstructing, re-paving, or rehabilitating 350 miles of roadways and 11 bridges. The expenditures for
these efforts are recorded in the State Highway Fund, a special revenue fund.

University and Community College System of Nevada Funds (University System) - An elected nine-member
Board of Regents supervises the operation of the University System, comprising two universitres, four community
colleges and a research institute. Revenues in the current operating funds increased by $5 million to $301 million.
Expenditures of current operating funds were recorded at $499 million, an increase of $61 million. State support
increased $5 million to $224 million. Enrollment data are available in Table XVll ofthe statistical section.

Cash Management - Cash temporarily idle is invested by the State Treasurer All cash except for monies in
pension trust funds, deferred compensation fund, SllS, Universlty System, and Housing are combined in the State
Treasurer's investment pool. Uncommitted balances are invested in collateralized repurchase agreements,
bankers acceptances (only those eligible for discount with the Federal Reserve), commercial paper issued by U.S.
corporations (rated A-1, P-1 or better), corporate bonds issued by U.S. corporations (rated A or better), and
securities of the U.S. government with typical maturities ranging from one day to five years

The State Treasurer also operates a separate investment pool for local governments to take advantage of the
greater interest earnings through pooled investments. The type of securities purchased and the investment
policies are similar but somewhat more restrictive than those of the State pool.

Risk Management - The State is self-financed against certain property and liability claims. The Risk Management
Division manages the Selflnsurance Fund for group health insurance Revenues are generated through charges
to employees and depaftments to pay for contracted insurance and self-funded plans. The Division also manages
the Insurance Premiums Fund to provide fidelity, property and workers' compensation coverages The State
flnances the first $250,000 of property and contents losses and the remainder is insured up to $500 million through
commercial insurers.

Conclusion - This report continues my commitment to inform and clearly demonstrate the financial condition of
the State to the citizenry and the financial community. Considerable effort and cooperation has been exhibited by
all of the State agencies, the Legislature and the Judiciary. Without their efforts, this financial report could not
have been produced. I extend my sincere appreciation to the management and the leaders of State government
for their stewardship. I especially thank John Comeaux and Keith Schwer for their contributions of the major
inrtiatives and economic outlook sections. Our pictorial theme highlights the unique educational opportunities
available at UNLV's WIliam F. Harrah College of Hotel Administration. I appreciate and thank Dean Christianson
and his staff for their outstanding efforts in this feature.

Last but not least, I commend the efforts of the accounting firm of Kafoury, Armstrong & Co., my staff and others
who contributed to the oroduction of this reoort.

Respectfully submitted,

XZ1Xa----
Darrel R. Daines
Nevada State Controller
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MAJOR INITIATIVES

John P. Comeaux
Director. Deoarlment of Administration

With 6,700 hotel casino rooms opened across the State in fiscal 1996, gaming percentage fees grew 8.11o/o.

Meanwhile, construction for those rooms plus the 7,600 rooms projected to open in fiscal 1997 boosted sales tax
collections. Comparing the months of fiscal 1996 with the same months offiscal 1995, sales tax collections grew
12.2y., hall again as fast as forecast Total fiscal 1996 revenues were $61 million more than forecast. Following the
statutory formula, over a third of that extra revenue was added to the State's "rainy day" fund, boosting it to over $ 120
million, 10% of general fund appropriations

The Economic Forum's forecast of revenues for fiscal 1996 proved conservative. First convened in 1994, their
forecasts are binding on both executive and legislative branches for purposes of budgeting and appropriations, The
same oanel of outside fiscal exoerts who served on the Economic Forum which forecasted fiscal 1996 revenues
agreed to return to forecast fiscal 1997, 1998 and 1999. After considering forecasts from the outside econometric firm
WEFA, as well as from legislative fiscal staff and budget economists, the Forum forecast revenue growth at or below
historical averages.

Nevada's dynamic growth should continue through the next biennial budget cycle. Construction is already undeMay
for 5,700 rooms opening in fiscal 1998, and major casino owners have announced plans to open four major projects in
fiscal 1999, adding another 13,000 rooms. Meanwhile, Las Vegas-area occupancy rates continue to exceed 90%.

Nevada's economic diversification continues apace. In fiscal 1996, while the country as a whole lost 1.2% of its
manufacturing jobs, Nevada created 5.'1 % more manufacturing jobs, growing even faster than our gaming
employment.

Severe federal uncertainty during fiscal 1996 gave way to federal welfare reform and timely passage of the federal
budget in the fall of 1996. This increased certarnty greatly eases the process of building the State's budget for fiscal
1998 and 1999. Nevada began its own welfare reform in fiscal 1996 by emphasizing work and personal responsibility,
and by changrng the culture of welfare. lt had a strong effect. Although Nevada's Aid to Families with Dependent
Children (AFDC) caseload grew at double digit rates every year from 1988 to 1992, ourAFDC caseload dropped 20%
between September 1995 and September 1996, the eighth greatest reduction in welfare caseload of all states.

We still wait, with other states, for federal reform of Medicaid. Nevada's Medicaid caseload growth slowed in the fall of
'1996. This will help the adjustment to federal changes in Medicaid.

In October 1996, the State signed its first contract for a privately built and operated prison. Located in Southern
Nevada, the prison should be built and accept women inmates by September 1997.

Nevada's continued revenue growth, plus declines in welfare caseloads, should help the State budget toward its goalsi

vtstoN

We envision a Nevada where all people have the skill and opportunities they need to achieve their individual dreams; a
Nevada where people enjoy and can afford good health, are safe and secure from harm, and share a quality standard
of living; a Nevada where we and future generations can enjoy our bountiful natural beauty and resourcesi and a
Nevada whose government consistently surpasses expectations.

MISSION

To provide for the highest quality of life for Nevada's citizens and visitors by ensuring the public safety, protecting the
State's natural resources, promoting a strong economy, fostering an environment that is open to diversity, accepting of
Individual differences, and encouraging individual development, and providing for the welfare of those who cannot care
for themselves.

This will be accomplished through a responsive and accountable government that wisely uses the resources entrusted
to it.



PHILOSOPHY

: Our guiding principles permeate state government. We will be open, accessible and flexible in serying our customers--
the public. We will cooperate with each other, avoiding parochial interests. We will take pride in our work, encourage
professional development and accept individual differences. We will behave with integrity and choose the ethical
course of action. We will operate efficiently and spend the public's money wisely.

FUNCTIONAL GOALS

. Develop an easily accessible, flexible, cost efficient and responsive government.

. Foster an environment that treats employees fairly, with dignity and respect.

. Encourage a work environment that values innovation, team efforts, professional development and improvement
of the work process.

. Maximize the quality of life from birth to first year in school, to ensure that each child has the necessary skills to
succeed in school.

o Ensure quality educational opportunities for all citizens.
. Ensure that consumers receive fair treatment.
. Optimize the business and government environment.
. Maintain the State's leadership advantage in gaming and recreational tourism
. Provide stable, equitable and predictable tax structure.
. Provide a social service system that motivates self-sufticiency.
. Ensure the safety of citizens and visitors.
. provide for the effective development and management of natural resources while protecting the environment.
. provide for the effective development and management of our cultural resources, including our arts, humanities

and heritage.
. Foster an environment that is open to diversity and accepting of indrvidual differences.



ECONOMIC OUTLOOK: 1997

R. Keith Schwer
Director, The Center for Business and Economic Research, UNLV

It is hard to think that economic conditions in Nevada could be better as we approach 1997. Unemployment rates
have declined to some of the lowest rates in recent time, job growth continues to trend upward, State revenues have
recorded sharp increases, and national economic conditions foretell expansion that is neither too slow nor too fast.
Indeed, the strength of Nevada's economy continues to receive favorable reviews in the nataonal press.

By all accounts 1997 will be a another good year in Nevada-if for no other reason than the momentum built up over
the past few years. Construction and buslness expansion, reflecting expectations of future economic opportunities,
continues. Although the State may not grow as fast in 1997 as in the past few years, the consensus forecast is one of
a bright future for the State's economy over the near term.

Nationally, economic conditions have moved forward at a pace that is best described as steady. We now find
ourselves in the third longest expansion in the postworld War ll period-68 months by the end of 1996. As a
consequence, attention will increasingly focus on whether the expansion will continue. Concern for the sustainability
of the current expansion often rests on the twin parameters of unemployment and inflation. Yet, announcements of
current conditions in recent months bring favorable news-unemployment has declined and inflation remains in check.
The core rate of inflation, a measure which excludes the more price volatile items, has been moving forward at a rate
of 3.0 percent or less. The Consumer Price Index (CPl) increased at2.5 percent in 1995and it is expected to
increase by about 3.0 percent in 1996, although some pressure from wage increases remains a concern. The monthly
unemployment rate during 1996 has ranged between 5.8 and 5.1 percent. Thus, favorable economic conditions seem
at variance with concerns for weaker national economic conditions.

Indeed, the national economic outlook for '1997 is guardedly optimistic, with most forecasters projecting modest
growth. Real Gross Domestic Product (GDP), an inflation-adjusted measure of total spending, is expected to grow
around 2.5 percent in 1997 and the CPI is expected to increase by 3.0 percent. Not all spending components will,
however, experience groMh-in particular, disposable income and exports are expected to decline. Moreover, some
softening in money markets should lesult in lower interest rates. Three-month T-bills are expected to yield around 5.5
percent for most of 1997, with the 3o-year bond averaging between 6.5 and 7.0 percent.

Furlher evidence of the maturation of the current business cycle appears in the mixed status of leading indicators,
some increasing and some declining. On the one hand, the number of housing starts is likely to be about 5 percent
below the 1996 level in 1997. On the other hand, prospects remain favorable for continued increases in industrial
productlon in 1997, likely to be above 1996 levels by more than 3 percent, and nonresident fixed investment, likely to
be about 5 percent above 1996 levels in 1997. In short, mixed indicators point to continuation of the current
expansion, but at moderate rates.

During the current expansion, now into its fifth year, Nevada and the other western states (excluding Califomia) have
grown faster than the national economy. Indeed, we have observed some superlative groMh rates. For example,
Nevada's monthly sales tax collections, reflecting expenditures for both retail and business purchases, increased at
double-digit rates measured over year-ago levels for most months during 1996, exceeding gaming revenue
collections. This is not surprising given the substantial increase in hotel construction now underway in Las Vegas, the
world's premier destination resort. \Mth substantial construction underway and ambitious plans for future
development, it is easy to understand the current economic momentum in the Silver State.

The momentum of the Nevada economy is more easily seen in the context of the State's monthly establishment-
based employment, shown in Figure 1. The State's employment has trended upward since 1980, atthough one
notices distinctly different periods of growth-slow growth from 1980 to 1986, more rapid growth from 1986 to 1990,
flat growth from 1990 to 1993, and strong growth since 1993. Indeed, Nevada is currently experiencing the strongest
expansion in employment in the last 15 years. Continued growth at the current rate, however, will be increasingly
difficult to maintain, since conditions are expected to place greater conslraints on future expansions, resulting in
slower groMh rates. ln short, the great expansion Nevada has enjoyed for the past few years is now beginning to
show some age, making it difficult to keep up in 1997.



Tourism, as measured by employment, unquestionably ranks as the State's major economic sector, providing a
greater share to the State's economy than it does in any other state and 15 times the national average. Tourism
accounts for over 30 percent of Nevada's Gross Regional Product, a measure ofthe State's total economic activity.
Moreover, Nevada's share is about twice the contribution of Hawaii's, the state with next largest percentage of
employment in tourism.

Not surprisingly, gross gaming revenue tax collections is the best indicator of tourism activity. The data are accurate
and made available in a timely manner. Nevada's gaming revenue grew in 1996, although the rates of monthly growth
tended to be less than they were in 1994 and 1995, when new and exciting must-see attractions brought a rush of
visitors into the State, pushing past growth rates to new levels that have been ditficult to maintain. As such, lower
rates of growth in 1996 were expected, largely reflecting further consolidation of the State's preeminence as the
world's premier tourist destination.

With the State's gaming revenue growing at only 2.1 percent from mid-1995 to mid-1996 and the nation's CPI growing

at a 2.8 percent annual rate over the same period, one finds the State's gaming revenue growth rate adjusted for
inflation falling behind growth in the nation's GDP. Continuation of this trend is not expected. Indeed, the series have
tended to move together over time, but have not always been highly correlated. Thus, we expect the State's major
industry to follow somewhat in step with the nation's economy-resulting in a forecast for continued expansion of the
State's gaming, recreation, and tourism economy in 1997 that is neither too fast nor too slow.

The basis for this forecast rests on the comparison of inflation-adjusted data series. See Figure 2. Readily available
Nevada gaming revenue information, often cited in comparisons with national economic growth measures such as
inflation-adjusted GDP, suffers from measurement problems. In particular, the gaming revenue series is not adjusted
for inflation. Nevada gross gaming revenue adiusted for inflation using the CPI (identified as real gross gaming

revenue) offers a measure that can be compared with real GDP. Comparing inflation-adjusted data, we find that the
inflation-adjusted series has grown at a decidely slower rate than the usually cited unadjusted series.

Furthermore, real Nevada gaming revenue has grown faster than real U.S. GDP, but the rates of growth have been
uneven. Using indexes for the two series we find pronounced expansion in Nevada's gaming economy during the
1989 to 1990 and 1993 to 1994 periods. In other periods the two series have tended to growatthe same rate.

In Las Vegas, the expansion of construction activity is expected to move foMard at a brisk pace, keeping the southern
part of the State on a slightly stronger growth path than Reno. The substantial expansion in hotel room capacity in Las

Vegas in '1996 and the construction of additional rooms and new properties for opening in the near future have
induced investment and construction activity in other business sectors, further reflecting optimism about future

business conditions. In addition, public-sector construction, which often has had difflculty keeping up during the past

few years, is also experiencing growth. Construction employment in the Las Vegas Metro Area recorded a significant

21 .1 percent rate of growth from September 1995 to September 1996, the largest percentage increase for any
industrial sector; whereas, construction employment in Reno showed no change over the same period. In addition,

Las Vegas recorded a 7.5 percent growth rate for total employment compared with 3.1 percent for Reno.

x
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Since the late 1960's, the Wiliam F. Harrah College of Hotel
Administration at the University of Nelzda, Las Vegas has been a
pacesetter in hospitality education. It is our pleasure to introduce
you to our college, faculty and students. The inf<rrmation con-
tained in this report describes what is widely considered to be one
of the best hospitality curriculums in the U.S. We believe there are
five major factors which have contributed to the College's success
since its lbunding in 1967.

The frrst is the location. Not only is Las Vegas known interna-
tionally for its hotel and casino industry but it has also become one
of the country's Iastest growing metropolitan areas. This location
provides the student with unparalleled experiential learning
opportunities.

The second major contribution is the direction and assistance
the program receives liom rhe hospirality industry nationally and
internationally, as well as locally. In 1989 the Oollege was renamed
the William F. Harrah Collese of Hotel Administration to reflecr a
major endowment made by Harrah Entertainment, Inc. and Verna

Harrah, wife of the late William F. Harrah.

A third factor is the estimable quality of our laculty. The Oollege has assembled a faculty that is
second to none in lhe lield of hospitality education. They bring a blend of indrrstry experience and
academic knowledge to the classroom, and are committed to providing a student fbcused learning
envrronment.

The fourth attribute is the (illlege's classroom and laboratory facilities in Frank and Estella
Beam Hall. The $l 1.5 million facility has been rvidelv recosnized as one of the country's finest
hospitaliry education settings. The nerv Stan Fulton Building housing the UNIV International
Gaming Institutc and a s tate-of -the-art conferencc center will soon be added.

Finall,v, the College has attracted students of the highest caliber who have, as alumni and hospi-
tality professionals, helped to enhance the College's reputati()n.

The College's primary mission has been and will remain the provision ol-an educational envi-
ronment that offers a balanced hospitality, business, and liberal arts curriculum leading students to
independent thought, creatir.ity, and mastery ofthe fundamentals that are essential to a productive
personal and prolessional life.

The Harrah College of Hotel Administration is committed to preparing iLs students to meet the
challcnges ofa dynamic and exciting industry. The College is also dedicated to attracting and retain-
ing a culturally diverse student body that reflects the hospitality industry To achieve that end, a
substantial scholarship fbr minorities has been established in the College.

Graduates of the College enter challenging careers in the hotel, gaming, food senice, meetings,
trade sholv, club management, convention, entcrtainment, recreation, tourism, and travel industries.

(lraduation, however, does not lncan an end to the relationship that has developed between rhe
student and the Collcge. The College's placement assistance program provides graduates with career
opportunities upon graduation and throughout therr careers.

The Harrah Oollcge of Hotel Administration and the Las Vcgas hospitalitv industry offer an
unbeatable combination in hosDitalitv education.

Dr Dauid J. Christianson, Dean



Historv of the William F. A Quick Look at the William
Harrah College of Hotel F. Harrah College of Hotel
Administration Administration

Founded in 1967 with a grant from the
Nevada Resort Association, the Harrah College
of Hotel Administration has risen to a position
of preeminence in the world of hospitality
education, due in part to the generous privatc
support offered by individuals and companies
such as: Harrah Entertainment, Inc. and Verna
Harrah, the wi{'e of the late William F. Harrah;
Sam and Mary Boyd; Eddie Gambarana and his
wife, Peggie Jean Kaltenborn Gambarana;
Helen and Aaron Weisberg; Ace Denken
Company, Ltd; International Game Technol-
ogy; and most recently, Stan Fulton.

Significant achievements of the College
include its elevation to College status in 1970;
the introduction ofa Master's Degree program
in 1983; exchanges established with schools in
Europe, the Caribbean, and Asia; the establish-
ment of a Research and Development Center in
1986; the departmentalization of the College in
1988 that created dre Departrnent of Hotel
Management, the Department of Food and
Beverage Management, and the Department of
Tourism and Convention Administration; and
the addition of a Ph.D. program in 1993.

The William F. Harrah College of Hotel
Administration at UNLV prepares students for
the global hospitality industry with one of the
world's best programs. Strong academics
combined with focused internship and mentor
programs provide a broad educational base in
this varied lield.

With approximatelv 100,000 hotel rooms
and hundreds of restaurants, conventions, and
trade shows, Las Vegas is a "living laboratory"
for the hospitality industry. It is one ol the best
places in the world to study the hospitality
field.

The suucture of the Oollege's degree
programs ensures a student's exposure to
dilferent aspects of the industry. It also allows
specializations in several areas, such as: fbod
and beverage management, hotel manage-
ment, gamlng management, entertalnment
mana[Jement, human resources management,
and meeting and convention administration.
Traditional classr<lom instruction is comole-
mentecl by offi ampus experience and profes-
sional practice rvithin various areas in the
industry ranging liom hotel and food opera-
tions to meeting, conventiOns and expositions
with participating businesscs in Las Vegas as

well as the rest of the world.

The Oollege also houses the Hospitality
Research and Development Center and the



UNLV International Gaming Institute. These
divisions interact and assist industry profession-
als with special projects and provide srudents
with practical experience.

Supported by more than 40 full-time
faculty, each with considerable professional
experience, the College of Hotel Administra-
tion keeps its classes small and exciting; the
student/teacher ratio is 20 to 1.

Classes are held in Frank and Estella
Beam Hall, which houses fully equipped
classrooms, supplemented by three kitchens, a

150-seat dining room, and bar. Beirm Hall also
features a demonstration kitchen, a computer
lab exclusively for Hotel College use, and a
casino lab.

Professional faculqr, excellent teaching
facilities, and an ideal location combine to
make the Harrah College of Hotel Administra-
tion attractive to students from all over the
world. Currently, the Hotel College student
body is approximately 1,600 rvith students
hailing from all 50 states and 50 countries. In
addition to state funding, the College also
receives many sizeable donations for its larious
programs from individuals, foundations,
corporations and organizations throughout the
country.

The Las Vegas Community
Las Vegas has many attractions. Like any

other large metropolitan area, the city has fine
libraries, museums, community theater, art
galleries, and parks, which are enjoyed and
supported by more than one million local
rcsidents. As one of the fastest growing areas in
the United States, Southern Nevada exempli-
fies modern urban living for families and
indiriduals.

Mild desert temperatures make outdoor
recreation possiblc throughout the year in
southern Nevada. Within a 30-mile radius lie
the shores of Lake Mead, massive Hoover Dam
and the Colorado River recreation area, the
snow-skiing and hiking trails o1 12,000 foot
Mount Charleston, and a panorama of red-
rock mountains and eroded sandstone land-
scapes. In addition, the city is only firur to five
hours by car from the beachcs of Southern
Califtrrnia and the national parks of Utah and
Arizona.

xtx



The UNLV Campus
The University of Nevada, Las Vegas is an

institution striving to become one of the
nation's leading urban universities by providing
students an excellent education at a reasonable
cost.

Since im founding in 1957, rhe university
has grown rapidly, expanding both its academic
programs and its facilities. More than 140
undergraduate, masrer's and doctoral degree
programs are offered to approximately 20,000
students. AII UNLV prograrns are accredited bv
t he N()rthwest Association of Schools and
Colleges.

Located in one of the most pleasant areas
of Las Vegas. UNLV has a heauriful camprrs
with extensive computer, library and residen-
tial facilities connected by spacious lawns and
rvalkrvays shaded by trees and complemented by
desert foliage. Just outside the campus are
apartments. restartran ts, shopping centers.
libraries, hospitals, and all the other hallmarks
of a modern urban area.

The university is integral to the cultural
environment ol a city rvhich bills itsclf as the
"Entertainmcnt Capital of the World." The
Charles Vanda Master Series features world-
class artisls and perlbrmers, rvhile the Barrick
Lecture Series brings some ()I the foremost
thinkers of our time to thc canruus.

Curriculum Focus
There are three exciting curriculum areas

offered at the Harrah College of Hotel Admin-
istration includine required courses and a rl.ide
range of elecdve courses.

Food €l Beoerage Management

Learning the components that cncompass
the Ibod and beverage management industry is
important to becoming an cffective manager in
the business. The progr-:rm taught at UNI)/
pro\.ides studenLs rvith management and hands-
on experience through a varicty rif specialized
courses. Classroom instruction is comple-
menled with on-site experiences at lanrorrs
hotels, restauran ts, and vinevards. Instruction
covers arcas such as purchasing. inventotJ
management control, production, service, and
laws governing the food and beverage busincss.

An on-campus dining/banquet room and
Iulh.equippccl kitchen reside lvithin the (irl-
lege, giring students a tvorking classroorn.
Students havc the opportrrnity to devel<>p their
skills in various aspects of the industry while
getting a well-rounded background needed Ibr
positions in manaqement.



Food and bel'erage departments are
important to large-scale operations such as

resort-hotcls, convention and recreational
facilities, and employee fixrd facilities in large
corporations. An emphasis in food and bever-
age management can be applied to many areas

of the hospitality industry, as wcll as proViding
knowledge for those rvanting to manase their
o\{n restaurant or club.

Hotel Management

The Hotel Management Department
covers all aspccts of h('tcl adminislralitln except
food and beverage management and tourism.
Students learn about hotel operations from the
fiont desk to behind the scenes. Thev set a
rhorough sunel of lacilitv planning, casino
operations, human resources, housekeeping,
security, and computer applications in the
hospitality industry Students can select a
special area of interest and work with faculty
experm in their chosen concentration. Th()se
rrho strccessfullv comPlcte a concenlralion ma)'
have letters to that eflect pnt in their place-
ment file .

Hotel management is the largest depart-
ment in thc College of Hotel Administration.
The department's sixtecn lirll-time faculty
members and several part-time instructors
ernploved by or directly involved with the Las
Vegas hospitaliqv and garning industry are a
rich rcsource lbr students rvishing to under-
stand the hospitaliry industry from e\:ery angle.

Tburism U Conumtion Administration

Tourism is thc largest inclusrry in the
lvorld, rvith revcnues in thc trillions. Tourism is
grouped into pleasure and btrsiness, including
group and individual travel.

Considered a single $83 billion industry,,
conventions, cxpositions, meetings and inceu-
rive travel rank seventcenth amcrng all U.S.
private sector industries. l'he industrf's direct
spending supports I .5 million jobs in the
national ec()nom\'.

Thc Tourism & (lonve ntion Administra-
tion f)epartmcnt ofl'ers diverse course t{ork in
tourisrn, conr,entiort/nteeting planning, rnar-

kering, entertainment, club management,
accounting and catering.

Classroom activities are supplemcnted
wirh guest lectures, field trips and internships.
Students arc afforded the opportunity to attend
national conventions, including thc Pro{-es-

sional Clonvention Management Association,
the International Association for Exposition
Managemcnt, the Socicty of Oorporate Meeting
Professionals and the National Coalition of
Black Meeting Planneru. The National Associa-
tion of Catering Executives has provided
senerous financial support lbr the catering
cclmponent of the department. The (llub
Managers Association of America also houses
one of its elective continuins education rvork-
shops at UNLV, thus allowing both f aculty and
staff to $'ork closelv rvith private club managers
from around the rlorlcl.



Professional Development
In addition to traditional courses offered

in the food and beverage, hotel management,
and tourism and convention curriculum areas,
the Harrah Oollege of Hotel Administration
offers programs, seminars, and symposiums to
hospitality managers and prolessionals. These
offer a rvorld-t'ide reach and many are sDOn-
sored bv rhe UNLV International br-ing
Institute and the Hospitalitl Research and
Development (lenter, borh ol'which are Hotel
College entities.

The UNLV Intenational Gaming
Institute

The UNLV International Gaming Institute
capitalizes on the university's 3Gyear parrner-
ship rvith the gaming and hospitality industries.
The institute d nvs on the talents ol'numerous
experts for their research and problem-solving
abilities.

The institute specializes in managerial
training programs, seminars and research for
the casino entertainment and gaming indus-
tries, gaming regulators, gaming educators,
undergraduate and graduate studenLs. It offers
individual and group programs dealing rvith
race and sporls book operations, casino market-
ing. internal contr()l procedurcs. casino ac-
counting, gaming regulations, facility layout/
design, protection of games, slot-s analysis lirr
increased profis, qualitv assurance suneys,
human res<lurces management, mathematics of
casino games, table game hold, games analvsis
for increased profits, Ieasibilitv studies, and
general arrangement of ganing opcratious.
Presentations are currentl_v done in the
institute's casino lab or at domestic and inter-
national site locations as requested by clients.
In the near future, the institute rvill move int<r
the Stan Fulton Building which rvill be located
on the UNLV campus. This building rvill
feature a 5,000 square lbot state-ol'-the-art
gaming lab, the IGT Gaming Resource (lcntcr
which rvill house the Rover Gaming Collection,
the most impressive gaming library in the
world, multiple classrooms, and exhibit space.
The Gaming Research and Ratiau.lournul is a
biannual publicati<in prodrrced bv thc institute

u'hich serves as a network Ibr critical and timely
gaming management inf()rmation. statistics.
and articles.

Ho spitality Research and Deueloprnent
Center

This unique research and training center
works with properties in the hospitality indus-
try assisting them in various facet-s ol'the
business. The center periodicallv offers stu-
denls an opportunitv to become involved in
"hands-on" projects involving many areas of
management in their field of study. Projects
might include market research, Iacility layout/
design, tourism development, executive devel-
()pment, and other operational areas oI a
resofl, hotcl. or firod service business.

The Hospitaliry and Research Center is
working to increase its international netrvork.
Ourrenthi it has relationships rvith China,
.fapan, Saipan, France, Ukraine, Egypt and
several other countries.
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Job Placement

Career opportunities f<>r UNIV graduates
continrrc l() expand. Thc Collcge receircs a

constant flow of position announcements. \1rith
more than tr'o and one-hall decadcs of grolr'th
and experience in the industn, UNIV hotel
alumni havc rcached a level of prolessional
achievement that helps assure a grorvilg base
ofjob opportunitics.

UNLV graduates are scattered fiom
Bermuda to Guam, {iom the Middle East to
Alaska. The rangc ofjobs is equallt, amazine:
from large rcsorLs to hospital administration,
Irom fast food franchises to prilate clubs.

Each year UNLV is visited by a wide variety
of large and small businesses in the hotcl,
rcstaurant, gaming, and tourisrn industn' - all in
search of graduates seekinu emplovment in
their ficlds. The hotcl administration progran)
prepares students for the q'pcs ol questions
they lvill bc asked and lbr the appcarance they
need to makc.

Here is a sample of some ol the morc than
100 companies that have intenicu,ed LINLV
students in rcccnt vears:

Aramark
American Airlines
Brinker Entcrprises
Caesar's Tahoc
Carnir,al (lrrrise I-ines
Disnevlancl
Embass,v Sr.ritcs

Epic Enterpriscs
Farrvest Concepts
Four Seasons Hotels
Freeman Companies
Harrah's Lakc Tahoe

Ilan'er"s Hau'aiian Hotels & Resort
Hilton Hotel Oorporation
Holiday Inn Worldwide
Hyatt Hotels
The Hotel (.)roup
Hvatt Regcncy
lnterstate Hotcls
Islands Rcstaurants
ITT Sheraton
Kenneth l,avcnthal & Oorlrpany
I-ake Tahoe (lruises
Le Meridicn
Louise's Restaurants
LtLxor Hotel
Mark Hopkins Intercon tincntal
Marriot/Host
MGM flrand Hotel, Casino, and Theme Park
The Miragc
Nanco Restaurants
'I'he Old Spaghetti Factorr'
Pacifi c Coast Restaurants
Palace Sta(ion
I'ebble Beacli Oompany
Peninsula-Bcverlv Hills
Ritz Carlton
Sizzler International
Stouffcr Hotels
Sl'racuse China Corp.
TGI Friday
\4ralt Disney \{<>rld
\finesardner & Hammons
Unired Airlines
U.S. Air !'orce Oirilian Emplovment
U.S. Dept. Of Arml'Civilian Employment

xxt i



Student Organizations Undergraduate Studies
Many proiessional organizations in the

hospitaliw field offer membership to studenLs
through campus chapters. These groups offer
exposure to the student's particular field of
interest, providing valuable contacts and
experiences through nenvorking. Some of the
groups available te students include: Hotel
Association, Hotel Sales and Marketing Associa-
tion, the National Association of Catering
Executives, Club Managers Association of
America. International Food Service .Executives
Association. Wine Club. (lasino Executive's
Club, the International Association of Hospital-
ity AccountanLs, Professional (lonvention
Management Association, and the National
Society of Minority Hoteliers. Eta Sigma Delta,
the national honor society, is also present on
camDus.

Degree Requiremmts

The Harrah College of Hotel Administra-
tion offers one general prosram. The large
number of electives permit a concentration in
any of several areas using hotel and non-hotel
courses: accounting, convention, food and
beverage, gaming, trade show, club manage-
ment, marketing, entertainment, human
resources, and tourism, among others.

In addition to general academic require-
ments, the Harrah College of Hotel Administra-
tion requires 1,000 hours of acceptable employ-
ment (HOA 300). This is a qualitative as rvell as
a quantitative assessment. HOA 300 require-
ments may be met during the school year or in
summers. International students may apply for
rvork permits no earlier than the last semester
of their soohomore vear.



Graduate Studies

The College provides the opportunity for
a limited number of students to pursue a
Master of Science (M.S.) or a Doctor of Phi-
losophy (Ph.D.) degree. Through these gradu-
ate degrees, studenrs will develop skills essen-
tial to the resolution of the complex issues
facing the hospitality industry. Educators will
develop advanced skills in the successful in-
sruction of hospitality education programs.

Master of Science

Students in the master's program can
pursue an emphasis in hotel management,
food and beverage management, or casino and
gaming management. Studens will be ex-
pected to complete c<;urses in operations
analysis and human resource seminars along
with courses in their selected area of specializa-
tion. The student will also be expected to write
and successfully defend a professional paper or
thesis.

All students in the Master of Science
program must have at least one year of man-
agement experience. The classes irre taught in
a seminar style with an average class size of 12
to l5 studens. This allows the studenls to
interact with each other and the rrsrrucror.
During these discussions the students relate the
concepts being studied to their past work
experience, creating lively and interesting
classes.

The master's degree requires that students
complete a minimum of 36 credit hours, of
which no less than 2l are in the College of
Hotel Administration. However, this allows for
a variety of supplemental tracks including
business, education or a related field. Students
whose undergraduate degrees did not include a
strong business emphasis typically have to
complete prerequisite courses with a business
emphasis prior to admission.

Doctor of Philosophy in Hospital;iQ
Administration

The Ph.D. program, which has been
endowed through the generosity ofAce
Denken Company, Ltd., is designed for people
interested in pursuing a career in higher
education or research.

The Ph.D. program consists of 12 credits
of research methods and statistics and six
credils of required hotel classes. The rest of
the courses are focused on the student's maior
and minor areas. This prepares the studeni ro
teach in at least trvo areas upon graduation.
All studens in thc Ph.D. program are given
clirssroom training and expected to teach one
course before graduation.

Research assistantships are available for
most full-time students. Research assistants
work with the faculty onjoint publications. All
of the Ph.D. students should have at least three
publishedjournal articles upon graduation.

The degree requires: the successful
completion at UNLV of 60 hours of approved
credits beyond the master's degree; qualiSing
examination; dissertation; instrucdon and/or
internship: and seminar presen tat ion.





Office for Student Affairs
The Office for Student A{Iairs serves

primarily as a clearing house for student re-
lated services provided by the William F.

Harrah College of Hotel Administration. This
oftice is responsible for student recruitment,
retention, and academic advising. The office
for Student Affairs is also responsible for
student employment including practical work
experience (HOA 300), internships and career
placement. The office also provides support
and leaclership to student clubs, the mentoring
program and scholarships. Finally this depart-
ment is responsible for the processing of
college graduates through the handling of the
graduate applications.



Food & Beverage
Department

The Food & Beverage Department in-
cludes restaurant management from fine
dining to fast food; olFpremise carering; and
contract food service. Students obtain real-life
managerial experience through the depart-
ments capstone course, HOA 467. Through this .

course students operate a public dining facility
in the Boyd Dining Room in Beam Hall.



Financial

Course Offerings
In 1989, due to the growth of the college,

three departments, (hotel administration, food
and beverage management and tourism and
convention administration) were formed. Al-
though all students must take the universiry and
college core, the devekrpment of these depart-
ments enable students to pick an area of special-
ization within the college. The William F.

Harrah College of Hotel Administration pro-
vides a plethora ofcourses from which to
choose. These courses taken in conjunction with
the university c<.rre provides an oustanding
education for the student. Listed below are the
titles of courses offered through the William F.

Harrah College of Hotel Administration.

Introduction Lo the l,odging Industry
Introduction to Hotel Management
Lodging Operations
Introduction to the Casino
Travel and T<rurism I
The Travel Agency
Hotel and Oulinary Tour
Food Senice Operations Fundamcntals

Hospitali ty PurchasinB
Food Service Management Fundamentals
Special Topics in Hotel Administration I
Security for the Hospitality Industry
Practical Hospiality Experience Franchising
Sociology of Innkeeping
Executive Planning for Housekecping Operations
fthics for the Hospitality lndustry
Hotel Accounting I
Hotel Accounting Il
Casino Operations and Management
ProLection of Casino Table Cames

Gaming Device Management
Travel and Tourism II
The Recreation Industry
Human Resources
Principles of Quantity Foods

Food Production Techniques
Inflight Food Service Management
The Alcoholic Beverages of the Hospitality Industry
SpccizLl Tcrpics in Food Serwice Management
Concessions Operations Management
Nutrition in Food Senice
Hotel Entertainment
Modern Servicc Systems

Special Topics in Hotel Administration II
Catering Sales & Operations
Hotel Marketing I



Sales Blitz
Sales Blitz Practicum
lncentive Travel
Meeting Planning
Destination Marketing
Oonvention Management
Convention Facilitv Managcment
Fairs and Amusement Park Administration
Trade Show Operations
Exposition Service Contracting
Exhibit Marketing and Management
International Exhibiting and Exposit ion

Management
Property and Equipment Management
Architecture in Hotel Management
Hotel Law
Organizational Theory Applied to the Service

Industries
Employee-Management Relations
Market and Feasibiliry Srudies
Stalf Planning and Operational Analrsis [or the

Hospitalitv lndustrr
Oomputer Application to the Hospitaliry Industry
Accounting for thc Casino Hotel
Casino Operations and Management II
Mathematics of Casino Games 2

Gaming Regulations and Control
Seminar in Casino Management
Sociolog"- of Gambling
Stralegic Hospitality Markcting
Cruise Ship Administration & Markering
International Tourism
Hotel Internship (A,B,C or D)
Hotel Internship II
Hotel-Motel Operations ancl Managemenr
Hotel Administration Seminar
Emplovee Development
Club Management Operations
Visiting Professor's Seminar
Facilities Planning and Equipment
Food and Beverage Cost Control
Bel'erage Management

Quantiry* Food Managemen t
Hospitality Reatry--

Practicum in Hotel Education
Seminar in Hotel Research
Advertising and Sales Promotions
Hotel Marketing II
Association Managemcnt
Special Events Management
Noncomme rcial Food Sen'ice
Club Management



OURY. ARMSTRONG & CO.
A PRO FESSIONA L CORPORATION

CE RTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

6140 PLUMAS STREEI BENq NEVADA S9509-6050 . C/02) 689-9100

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Darrel R. Daines
State Controller

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of
the State of Nevada as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996. These general purpose
financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the State of Nevada. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based
on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Water Treatment Fund,
Water Transmission Fund or Power Marketing Fund (collectively, the "Colorado River
Commission"), the Housing Division Fund, or the Industrial Insurance Fund (State Industrial
Insurance System) which statements reflect 99.8 percent of the assets and 99.0 percent
of the operating revenues of the Enterprise Funds. We also did not audit the University
and Community College System, a discretely presented component unit. The statements
not audited by us were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us,
and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Enterprise Funds and
the University and Community College System Funds is based solely on the reports of
such other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtatn
reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall general purpose financial statemenl
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, such
general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the State of Nevada as of June 30, 1996, and the results
of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types and non-expendable trust
funds for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting princtples.



The reoort of other auditors on the financial statements of the State Industrial
Insurance System (SllS), which statements reflect 59.4 percent and 81.3 percent,
respectively, of the assets and operating revenue of the Enterprise Funds, includes an
explanatory paragraph emphasizing matters pertaining to the financial situation of SllS.
Such auditor's report on the SllS financial statements for the year ended June 30, 1996
states:

"The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that
the System will continue as a going concern. The System experienced income from
underwriting activities and positive cash flow from operations during the years ended June
30, 1 996 and 1995; however, in prior years, a loss from undenvriting activities and negative
cash flows from operations resulted in an accumulated deficit of approximately
$1 ,420,533,000 at June 30, 1996. Such accumulated deficit will need to be recovered from
future revenues, operating efficiencies or from other resources to be provided to the
System. To the extent that premiums charged in the future may not be sufficient to pay the
unfunded liability for incurred but unpaid claims, adverse loss development thereon, if any,
as well as future claims expenses, the System may not have sufficient resources to pay
its obligations. As discussed in Note 2 to the ..[SllS] financial statements, (Notes 2B and
15 to the accompanylng general purpose financial statements of the State of Nevada),
management has implemented an action plan and initiated substantial changes in
applicable laws, which it believes will continue to improve the financial condition of the
System."

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general
purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and
account group financial statements and schedules listed in the foregoing table of contents
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general
purpose financial statements of the State of Nevada. Such additional tnformation has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the
general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

The statistical data listed in the statistical section of the foregoing table of
contents is presented for purposes of additional analysts and is not a required part of the
general purpose financial statements of the State of Nevada. Such additional information
has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general
purpose financial statements, and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Reno, Nevada
December 13, 1996

KAFOURY. ARMSTRON(; & (:O



General Purpose Financial Stateinents

The Students
The \{illiam F. Harrah College of Hotel

Administration started with l7 students in
I967; undergraduate enrollment nor{ tops
1,700. Graduate enrollment has grown from a
dozen or so students in 1983 to more than 65
today. Students come from all over the United
States and the rvorld, including such diverse
locations as lsrael, Norway, Korea, Malal'sia,
Dominican Republic, Hong Kong, Thiwan, the
Bahamas, Canada., Saudi Arabia, Columbia
and Egypt.

The William F. Harrah College of Hotel
Adminisration believes in providing studens
with a well-rounded education through its
curriculum and co-curricular activities, there-
fbre the College houses 14 student professional
associations. The Hotel Association, sLarted in
1968, is the umbrella organization. Under the
umbrella of the Hotel Association, are the
following specialized student chapters of
industry organizations: Club Managers Associa-

tion of America, International Food Ser-vice
Executives Association, The Wine Club, Inter-
national Association of Hospitality Accountants,
Professional Convention Management Associa-
tion, Student Human Resources Association,
National Sociery of Minority Hoteliers, Hotel
Sales and Marketing,{ssociation, International
Association of Exposition Management, Na-
tional Association of Catering Executives, and
Eta Sigma Delta.



Combined Balance Sheet
All Fund Types, Account Groups and Discretely Presented Component Unit

June 30, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995 (expressed in thousands)

Governmental Fund Types Proprietary

General
Special

Revenue
Debt

Service
Capital
Projects EntGrprise

Cash and pooled investments (Note 3)
lnvestments (Note 3)
Food slamp coupons
Receivables (Note 4)
Due from other funds (Note 5C)
Due from component unit (Note 5D)
Due from primary govemment (Note 5D)
lnterfund receivables (Note 58)
Inventory
Advances to other funds (Note 5A)
Reslnbted assets /Nofe 6)r

Cash
Non-cash

Loans receivable
Deferred charges and other assets
Lano
Structures and improvements
Furniture and eauiDment
Accumulated deprecialion
Construction in progress
Other debib:
Amount available In debt se.vice fund
Amount to bs provided by other government
Amount to be provided for retrrement of debt

Total assets and other debits

Accounts payable and accruals
Conlfacts payable
Due to other funds (Note 5C)
Due to component units (Note 5D)
Due to primary government (Note 5D)
Interfund payables (Note 58)
Compensated absenc€s (Note 8)
Defered revenues
Notes payable (Note 8)
Bonds payable, other obligations (Note 8)
Advances from other funds (Note 5A)
Obligalions under c€pital leases (Note 8)
Claims and judgments (Note 8)
Arbitrage rebate liability (Note 8)
Other liabilities

Total llabilities
Equity and other credils:
Investment in general fixed assets/plant
Contributed capital (Note '12)

Reta ined eam ing s (deficit) :
Reserved (Note 12)
Unreserved
Net unrealized gain on equity securitres

Fund baldnces:
ReseNed:
Encumbrances and contracls
Invenlory
Advances
Balanc€s forward
Other (Note 12)

UnreseNecl:
Desgnated (Note 12)
Undesignated

Total equity and other credits
Total liabilities, equity, oth€r credits

-0- -0- -0- -0- -0-

$ 871.974 $ 936.115 $ 39.768 $ 150.770 S 2.372.250

$ 431,919 $
-0-

24,252
370,699
20,433

4
-0-

572

3,890

-0-

-0-
20,205

-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-

$ 134,227 S

305,924 $

38,104
150,393

-0-

10,709
29

38,889
-0-

-0-
-0-
-0-

-0-

29,147 S

9,361
7,837 $

1 ,1 19,043

140,525
4,503

655
-0-

1,245
-0-

30,889
70,606

551,745
63,315
4,270

19,291
29,598

(26,282)
6,948

-0-

617

21,394

5,792
12,582

-0-

137,228
-0-
'0-

2,5a2
10,960

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

0
0

0
0

-0-
-n-
-0-
-0-
-0-

-0-
-0-
-0-

27,104 186 -0- -0- -0-
-0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
-0- -0- -0- -0- 76

321,827 35,873 -0-

-0- -0-
oa 7ro a nao

-0- -0-

-0- -0-
-0- -0-
-u- -u-

70 $ 2,759,474
7,807 -0-
675 1,088

-0- 3,222
-0- 1,114
-0- -0-

4.5'15 -0- 788,468
-0- -0- 338
-0- -0- 11,478-0- -0- -0-
-0- -0- -0-

11.126 38.889 33.256 71,658

594,013 121,545 12,352 42,922 3,636,423

5,201

81,851
(1 ,419,470)

68,245

4,412

3,890
238,461

21,091

0
0

0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

104,493
10,709

27,610
560,602

-0-
-0-

27,416

'10 736 -0-
-0- -0-
-0- -0-
-0- -0-
-0- -0-

10,107 -0-
-0- 111.127

27?,961 814,570

$ 871.974 $ 936,115

-0- 99.782 -0-(2.670) -0-

27,416 107,848 (1,264,173)

$ 39.768 $ 150 770 $ 2.372.250

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral pad of this statement



Exhibit 1

Fiduciary
Fund Types Fund Types

lntsrnal
Service

Total - Component
Account Groups {Memorandum Only) Unit

Trust and General GEneral Long- Primary University
Agency Fixed Assets Term Obligations Government

47,241 $ 435,697 $ -O- $ -0- $ 1,735,102 $ 35,269 $ 1,770'371 $ 1'624'7s9' -o- 7,174,542 -O- -0- 8,685,571 224,432 8,910,003 7 
'322'409-o- -o- -0- -o- 24,252 -0- 24'252 27 

'5231,122 81,737 -O- -O- 690,561 26,146 716'707 632'687
rc:zi 189,562 -o- -o- 398,677 -0- 398'677 461,771

312 -O- -O- -O- 1,171 '0' 1'171 216
-o- -o- -o- -o- -0- 27,290 27 '2SO 35'180
-o- -o- -o- -o- 580 -0- 580 389

66t 284 -o- -o- 12,905 4,800 17 '705 17,463
-o- -o- -o- -o- 3,919 '0- 3'919 4 

'251

-o- -o- -o- -o- 30,889 -0- 30'889 186'129

-o- -o- -0- -o- 109,495 -0' 109'495 107'813

4- -O- -O- -o- 551,745 8,?29 559'973 5',10'948

94 451 -O- -0_ 84,138 74,849 158,987 130,655

i1 3 81,862 -o- 86,266 70'qqq 199'919 147's10
o,ier -o- 3s3J72 -o- 418,646 556,959 ez9'qq 1,115'810

zilFzi gi 2os,14i -o- 264,174 214'a53 478,627 509'893
(21,571) (5s5) -o- -o- (48,448) (326'218) (3-7!.1?6.) (119'q9q)
-'--ol -91 225,499 -o- 232,447 25,407 257,854 277 '248

-o- -o- -o- 27,416 27 '416 -0' 27'416 24 '063-o- -o- -o- 416.021 416'021 -0- 416'021 '0'
o 

------1,9!9,319- 
1,008 416 1 008 416 846 1s4

s_____zw_ -9__zt32t9l_ _$__-9q5-OZL -$__1491,993- $-rlJs3l13- S-----9!2.n!- -$---1g9l9J-ql -$--13l3gl!L

23,663 $ 677,641 $
-0- -0-

3,011 36,203
-0- -0-
-0- -0-

504 -0-
2,235 -0-

-0- 80
-0- 9,482
0 0

129

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-
-0-

-0-

-0- $
-0-

-0-

-0-
1,388,147

334
1,104

17 j68
398,677

27 ,290

580
62,4? 5

109,629
9,482

2,18'1,130
3,919

17,706
334

1,104

1,171
-0-

17,728
12.597

-0-

-0-

-0-

0
0

3,581 -0-

-o- zoz.sa) I,geg 364 454 7 21a 371 672 317 855

35,806 93',1,097 1,451,853 6'826,011 143,477 6'959'488 6'5',10'918

-o- -o- 905,674 -o' 905'674 467 '732 1,373,406 1'291,!!9
4,764 -o- -- -o- -o- 9,965 -0- 9'965 15'138

-o- -0- -o- -o- 81'851 -q- .. ^8-1,851 80'394
12 a7f' -0- -o- -o- (1,3S7,094) '0- (1'387'091) (1'8'5'119)* -:o -o -o- -o- 68,245 -0- 68,245 52'363

-0. -o- -o- -o- 119'641 3'7?6 123'417 119'91q

-o- 2a4 -o- '0- 10,993 -g' 10,993 1!'991

-o- -0- -o- -o' s slg -s- --3 91s 4'?!7
.0- -o- -0- -o- 266'071 :9- -266'071 2!1'99q
-o- 6,638,000 -o- -o- 7 

'247 
j09 271'353 7 '518'462 6'465'696

-0- 1,074 -o- -o- 110,963 :9- 110,963 119'171

-o- soz,ige ---------479PL 55 900 526 495 467 '796

3?1407'001,496905'674-o-7'907'932798'7618'706'6937'022'533
_$-----12.919- -t--Zpg493- -$---99ff21- -$----jl],sl3- -$-----1483,.943- -$----!!2239- $---19i2!Jl!L i---13E33JiL

Totals -
(Memorandum Only)

Reporting 1995
Sysiem Entity (Restated)

3.632.053 $ 29,128 $ 3,661,191 $ 3,457,016
17,164 25,O28

398,677 461,771
27,290 35,180
1,171 216
580 389

80,203 77,531
122,226 120,113

9,482 26,549
2,256,765 1,971,3',13

4,251
12,840

334 85
'1 ,'104 741

17,706



Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995

Exhibit 2

Govelnmental Fund Types Fund Types (Memolandum Only)
Special Debl Capital Expendable 1995

Genenl Revenue Service Projects Trust 1996 (Restated)

Gaming taxes, fees, licenses
Saies taxes
Intergovernmental
Other lares
Licenses, fees and permils
Sales and charges for seryices
Interest, investment gain
Other

Total revenues

General government
Health and social services
Education and support services
Law, juslice and public safety
Regulation of business
Transportation
Recreation and rGource development

lntergovemmental:
Education
OtheI

Capital improvements
Debt saryice:

Principal
Interest, fiscal charges
Bond issue costs
Arbitrage payments
Refunding payments

Total expendilures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expendilures

W
Hroceeqs IIom caDlal Eases
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Proceeds from sale of flxed assets
Operating transfer in (Note 5E)
Translers ffom component unit (Note 5F)
Operaling kansfers out (Note 5E)
Transfers to component unit (Note 5F)
Proceeds of refunding bonds
Payment to refunded bond agent

Total other tinancing soulces (uses)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other

flnancing sources over expenditures
and other financing uses

Fund balances, July 1

Fund balances, June 30

$ s46,9s9 $ 19,E75 $ -0- $ -0- $
502,960 -0- -0- -0-
705,286 152,031 10,367
2,{3,530 230,831 a2,O37

3,54a

76,545 108,830

55,978 19,792 -0-
442,057 31,033 -0-
26,291 5n -0-

179,995 75,851 -0-
32,906 25,767 -0-

-G 344,183 -0-
64,424 15,724 -0-

-0- 173,410 729,808 694,031

-0- $ 566,E34 $ s17,524
-0- 502,960 446,504

6,503 A77,735 836,557

569,675 449,077
39,106 33,833
27,932 40,54a

-0- -0- -0- 185,375 175,139
24,179 16,721 -0-
33,281 34,14 2,692

558 41,45A 39,751
84 21,390 91,595 68,387

24,115 10,124 -0- 8|8 7,642 42,699 43,159

2,156,855 572,560 95,096 4,,150 209,503 3,036,464 2,821p52

-0- -0- 75,770 75,742
4- 14a,8,O 1,061,930 994,633
-0- 1,614 2A,42 24,633
-0- 169 256,015 224,2A,1
-0- 16 58,819 58,925
-G 4 344,1E3 368,0/0
{- t61 80,713 77,273

519,363 43/4
30,741 8,365

-0- {-

250
51

-0- -0- 6,866
-0- -0- -0-
-0- 27,932 -0-

800 77,435 -0- -0- 78,45 59.629
196 59,789 -0- -0- 60,036 42,484

-0- 2 26A -0- _o_ 270 't74-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -o- 4,277-0- -0- -0- _0- _0- -o- 661

Hrrl60 - s65?36 ta* ry- 1s?;rr6 - ,,681,416 ,.4:y'21o

364,395 6,824 (42,396) (23,482rl 51,707 357,0,{a 366,842

1,19

-0-
204

38,055
163

(76,36s)

1224,4761
-0-

-0-
194,415

76,429
70

(74,080)
(2,56r)

-0-

-0-
116

-0-
45,427

-0-
-0-

(1s4)
-0,
-0-

-0-
45,000

1,449

(1,026)
(39,383)

-0-

87,420
162

327,444

(324,170)
(2s8,011)

u,177
(84,177)

-0- 149
-0- 239,531
-0- 208
-0- 't 61 ,800
-0- 233

(5,500) (156,s71)
-0- (266,614)

-0- -0-

1262,270) 1 ,277 4s,749 6,080 (s,soo) (21,664\ (164,147)

102,125 201,101 3,353 (17,4n.21 6,207 335,3E4 202,695

175,836 613,469 24,063 125250 317,8A6 1,256,504 .t,053,809

s 277,961 $ 814,570 $ 27,416 S 107,8.A $ 364,093 $ 1,591,888 $ 1,256,504

Currcnt:

The noles to the finahcEl statements are an integral part ofthrs statement.



-0.

11,395
(101,614)

17,692
(8,803)

11,767

(76)
(771)

34,133
18,299
57,765

198,135
25,137
25,659

138,750
1,383

(1,140)
56,101
(1,9s9)

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
General Fund and Special Revenue Funds

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996
Exhibit 3(Expressed in thousands)

Gene.alFund special Revenue Fu!4q (Memorandum only)
Flnal Flnal

Budgst Actual l3IE!99_ j!gS4_ Aclual Va ance Budget Actual vadanc.

Revenues:
Sales taxes
Gaming taxes, [ees, licenses

Federal
Other laxes
Sales, charges fol services
Licenses, fees and permits

lnleresl
Other

other,inanc lng sources:
Proc€€ds from sale of bonds
Transie6 fiom other funds
Reve6ions fiom other funds

Total sourc€r

Conslitutional agencies
Finance and administration
Education
Human seryces
Commerce and industry
Public safely
lnffasbuclure
Specral purpose agencles

Olher llnanclng uses:
Debt service kansfers
Transfe6 to olhor funcls

Refunds
Reversions to other funds

Total urer

Fund balancoa, Jun€ 30

s 314,014

433,00r
501,850
689,128
312572
68 496

151,946
15 496

231,425

6'1,439
45,794

603,261
1,150,688

67,709
186,524
1't 3,109

-0-
416,244

-0-

$ 314,014 0

458,336

612,016
324,009
63,943

139,408
25,812

157,374

-0-

38,657

43,830

545,608
956,221
46,670

164,269
63,135

,0-

387,729
1,959

-0- s

't1,778

177,1121
11,437
(4,553)

(12,538)
10,316

174,451)

-0-
(383)

124,so2)

(4,250)
15,824

1,451

44,144

244,374 $ 244,374 E

20,258 19,875
176 308 151,805
240793 247,048
22674 18,124
93922 109,750
48 447 49 698
30 926 115 370

-0- $ 558.388 $ 558.388 S

433,001 458,336
522,10a 5$,503
865,436 763,422

91,170 A2,367
245,868 249,158
63,943 75,710

262,751 272,744

.c ______:-q_ ____l_!91 ____l!_ _____lli_ 7oo 75 2'1os zou
2,756,e85 2,648,531 (108,4s4) 976,582 _L9!9!Zq J9f!9- 3,733,s67 3.703'80s 

-I3SZ$I

-0- 26.626 26,550
-0- 72,179 71,408

17,609 36,171 19,647

12,219 18,488 12,404

57,653 44,456 44,344

194,467 29,806 26,136

21,039 40,694 36,596

22,255 76,726 73,322
49,974 473,992 385,216

1,383 -0- -0.

(1 9s9)

97,610 63,477
64,2A2 45,983

647,717 589,952
1,180 494 982,359

108,403 83,266

5a7,101 448,351
5,342 3,959

(76) 26,626
(7711 110,836

26,550
110,065

75,288
419,227

.0. 1,959

16,524
6,080

112
3,668
4,098
3,404

88,776
-0-

-0- 7414A 75,2A8 (1,140) 74,148

2a g5 59 084 31,498 27 546 475,324

-o- ......___91!_ (848) 306 1.248 ts42\ _______jgg_ _3999_ (1,7e0)

2,650,110 ZU73$ 402,307 853,871 705,705 148,166 s,s03'981 2,953'508 

-!!9lZ!-$ 106,875 t 400,728 $ 293,853 0 122,711 $ 349,573 S 226,862 $ 229'585 S 750'301 $ 520'715

The notes lo th€ financial statements are an iolegralpart ofthis statement
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Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Equity/Balances
All Proprietary Fund Types and Similar Trust Funds

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995
(Expressed in thousands) Exhibit 4

Totals
Proprietary Fund Types Fiduciary Fund Types (Memorandum Only)

Enterprise
Internal
Service

Non-
expendablg

Trust
Pension

Trust '| 996

Net premium income
Relirement contributions
Sales
Charges for servic€s
Rental income
Interesl, dividends
Investment gains
Other

Total operating revenues

Salaries and benefits
Operating
Benefit payments
Claims expense
Interest on bonds payable
Mate.ials or supplies used
Servicers' fees
Investment expense
Depreciation
Insurance premiums
Refunds
Administrative expense
Investment losses

Total operating sxpenses

Operating income

Investment gains
Interest expense
Federalgranls
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
UINET

Total nonoperating revenues (expensgs)

Income before operating transfers

Operating transfers in (Note 5E)
Operaling transfers out (Nole 5E)

Net income

Fund equ y(deficit)/balances, July '1

Transfer ofdeficit to other government
Changes in unrealized garns

Fund equity(deficitybalances, June 30

578,8'r8 134,3'13

458,979
-0-

49,619
1,114

140
52,712

16,254

90,305 $

5,U2
28,323

9,340

1,003

-0-

-0-
3,732

-0-
3,493

.0- $
471,707

-0-
-0-

402,768
189,307

1,790

549,284 $
471,707
54,961
29,437

9,480
459,212
189,307
22,540

545,473
416,469

26,596
4A23

390,475
45,'1 19
20,225

7,225 1,065,572 1 ,785 ,928 1 ,53A,479

42,467
67,844

-0-
1 13,502
43,156

1,905
1,433

6,528
-0-

5,325

17,457
20,181

-0-
56,493

-0-
3,006

33,264
-n-

-u-

-0-
-0-

267,450

-0-

10,622
99

8,875
2,800

-0-

59,924
88,025

267,850

43,156
4,91 1

1,433
10,622
10,160
33,264

4,125

57,O92
104,599
242,246
213,919

37,327
4,477

10,074
14,519

8,851
7,930

-0-
-0-

-0-
-0-

-0-

282,160 133,934 290,246 706,340 731,804

296,658 775,326 1,079,588 806,675

44,782
32,643
(6,366)

620
(1)

2,364

1,600

(268)

54

-0-
-0-
-0-

0
0
0
0
0

46,382
32,643
(6,634)

620
CJ

-0- 75,428

41,212

(11,287)

(15)

41,618

-0- 2,3U (852)

7 4,O42 1,3E6

370,700

1441)

494
(1,250)

7 ,225

147
(3,735)

848,293

1,885
(5,159)

775,326 1,155,016

641
(5,470)\441

370,259

(1,704,890)

54,576
15,aA2

1,009

36,131 53,345

775,282

5,805,139

1,150,187 845,019

4,189,725 3,299,963

0
0

0
0

0
0

54,576
15,882 44,743

$ (1,264,173) $ 37,140 $ 56,982

The notes to the flnancral statements are an inlegrat part of this statement.

$ 6,580,421 $ 5,410,370 $ 4,189,725



Exhibit 5

542,871
114,786

19,046
70,144

(434,181)
(57,387)
(36,838)

203,300
3,459

(58,042)
(3e,769)
(5,90s)
(6,707)

161,600
(13,819)
(20,875)

(9,397)

153,673

210,781

265,O74

14,437
(14,952)
37,327

(105,087)
(8,254]-

1,747

1121,5471

2 058
916

88
15

Combined Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund Types and Nonexpendable Trust Funds

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995
(Expressed in thousands)

Proprietary Fund Types

lnto.nal

Totals
(Momorandum Only)

Non-

expondable
TJustEntsrprise

$ 503,123
20,262

1,518

Cash flowg frcm ope€ting activiti6s
Cash received from customers, olher governments
Cash received from other funds
Cash received kom component units
Cash received from mortgage loans
Cash paid to suppliers, other govemments, beneficiaries
Cash paid to employees for selvices
Cash oaid to other funds
Cash paid to component units
Purchase of mortgage loans

Net cash provided by operating activities

cash flows l om noncapital financing activitles
Proceeds fiom sale of bonds
Grants. transferc. advances received
Retkemenl of bonds and notes
Interest payments on bonds
Operating/equily kansfers oul
Payments for prepaid power
Translers to other govemment
Other cash used for noncapital financing actNities

Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities

cash tlows from capitalfinanclng activities
Proceeds trom sale of bonds, equipment
Acquisition of property, planl, equipment
Retiremenl of bonds/notes/morlgages
Interesl paad on obligations
Other cash used for capital financing activities

Net cash provided by (used for) capitalfinancing actNities

Cash flow3 f.om Investlng actlvitles
Proceeds from sale o[ investments
Purchase of investments
lnteresudrvidends on investmenls

Net cash provided by (used for) investing aclivities

Nel increase in cash

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1

Cash in other trust and agency funds

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Reconciliatlon of operating incomo to net
ca€h provlded by operatlng actlvllles

Operating income

Adjustments to reconclle oporatlng lncome to
net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation
lncome on inveslments
Interesl on bonds payable
Decrease (increase) in loans receivable and real estate owned

Decrease (increase) in accrued receivables

Decrease (increase) in inventory, deferred charges and olher assets

Increase (decfease) in accrued payables, other liabrlit€s
Other adjustments

Total adjustments

Net cash provtded by operating activities

Noncash Invoating, capital and financing activitios
Property leased, accrued or acquired
lnteresUdividends on Investments accrued
Conslruction completed or in progress

other non-cash aclivrl€s

3,478 $ 516,167 $
-0- 123,227
-0. 22,058
-0- 94,310
-G (385.098)
-0- (60,367)
-0- (41,752)
-0- (8)

(107,489) -0- -0- (107,489) (140,829)

151,832 5,738 3,478 161,048 77,612

$ 9,566 $
102,965
20,540

94,3't0 -O-

(2U,2481 (100,850)
(43.1211 117,246)
(32,523]' (9,229)

-0- (8)

(4,021) -0- -0- (4,021) (3,942)

(36,119) 2,107 (3,6271 (37,639) 92,394

1a2,4A7 -0-
3,555 3,431

(82,210) -0-

144,877) -0-
(441) 11.324'

(s,426) -0-
(85,186) -0-

119,432 I
(31,1121 11,240)

1122,5101 (2.498)
(6,426) (253)

2,102,506 -0-
(2,171,004) -0-

-0- 182,487
77 7,063
-0- (82,210)
-0- (41,877)

(3,704) (5,469)
-0- 15,426)

(85,186)

-0- 119,440
-0, \32,352)-0- (125,008)
-0- (6,679)

8,500 2,111,006 1,078,412
(13,300) (2,184,304) 11.262,725)

(4,019) ,0- -0- (4,019) (5,336)

(44,635) (3,983) -0- (48,618) 112,171

65,403 1,504 3,774 70,6E1 55,809

(3,095) 1,504 (1,026) (2,617) (128,s04)

67,983 5,366

318,605 41,875

432,899 432,899 379,062

$ 386,588 S 47,241 $ 43s,697 $ 869,526 $ 743,516

$ 296,658 $ 379 $ 7,225 $ 304,262

(1,175) 72,174

364,453

6,528
(1O.773)
43,156

152,2481
(2,489)
3,434

(140,418)

_0_ $
(386,58e)

,0,
,0,

-0- -0-

5,689 (15)

377 -0-
(4,36s) -0-

2,838 $

-0-
-0,

608

2,838 $
(386,58s)

-0-
608

0
0
0

3 533
-0-
-0-

0$
0
0
0

10,061
(10,773)
43,156
152,2481

3,185
3,811

\144,787)
7.984 129 (3,732) 4,381 8,867

(144,826) 5,359 13.747' (143,214). (187.4621

s 151.832 $ 5,738 $ 3,478 $ 161,048 $ 77,612

The notes lo the financial slatemenls ale an Inlegral part ofthis stalemenl
'11



Combined Statement of Changes in Fund Balances
University and Community College System

For the tiscal yeat ended June 30, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995
(Expressed in thousands)

Gurlent Operating Funds

Auxiliary
Enterprises

Total
Curlent

Operating

@
Cunent tund revenuF
Federal grants and conlracts, reslricted
Private gifts, grants and contracls, restricted
Eslate taxes
Investmenl income, reslricted
lnterest on loans receivable
Student fees
Retirement of indebtedness
Realized gain on investments, net
Expended for plant facilities. including $22,421

charged to cu(ent funds expenditures
Proceeds from notes pafable
Retirement ol capital lease obligations
Other sources

Total revenues and other additions

Educational and general expenditures
Auxiliary enterprises expenditures
Indirect costs recovered
Loan administration and collecl|on costs
Loan cancellations. write-offs and provision lor bad debts
Expended for plant facilities, including
noncapitalized expenditures of $6,74tt

Depreciation
Retirement of indebtedness
lnterest on indebtedness
Disposal of plant assets
Proceeds of bonds and notes patrdble

Distribution of estate bxes
Obligations under capital leases
Olher deductions

Total expenditures and other deduclions

Principal and interest
Studenl loan matching

Net transfers (volunlary)

Transfers from primary government (Note 5F)
T.ansfers to primary government (Note 5F)

Totaltransters

Net increase (decrease) for the year

Fund balances, July 1

Fund balances, June 30

The notes lo the financial stalemenls are an integral part of this statement

$ 137,,109 $
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

140,556 $ 42,172
-0- -0-
-0- -0-
-0- -0-
-0- -0-
-0- 4-
-0- -0-
-0- -0-
-0- -0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-G

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-G.

-0-

-0-

-0-

137,409 140,556 42,172 320,137

376,609
-0-
-0-

-0-

12,515

15,464
-0-

-0-
39,108

499,124
39,'t 08
15,464

-0-
-0-

(1e)

-0-
(806)

(2,891)

11,441)

-0-

-0-
-0-
-0-

-0-

376,609 137,979 39,10E

(3,28s)
(18)

(2,311)

224,476
(233)

(375)
(18)

(64)

224,476
(233)

223,7A6

(15,414\

62,323 't 6,608

$ 46,909 $ 18,360

(825) (4,332) 218,62s

1,7s2 (1,268) (14,930)

14,035 92,966

$ 12,767 $ 78,036

Genelal Operating
Unlestlicled Restricted



Exhibit 6
Nonoperating Funds

Planl Totals
Student

Loan Endowment
lnvestment

in Plant
Combined

Plant

Unexpended Retirementot
Plant lndebtedness 1995

-c$
264
159

41

149

-0- $
300

|,321
15,6,$

166
-0-
-0-

7,143

-u-

2,O16

{_$
131

3,280

618
-0-

-0-
-0-

42,OO2

-0- $
-0-
-o-

-0-

_0- $
-0-

3,9216

-0-
-o-
-0-

3,469
-0-

73,401

,1

-0- $
'13'l

7,226
-0-

727

3,469

73,41

-0-
42,08

320,137 $ 314,744
695 395

8,706 14,6
15,648 -0-

936 73A
149 'l9'l

3,469 2,435
7,143 2,709

73,41 58,036
5,'t 35 3,007

-0- 1,47
44,095 1,966

689 26,636 56,923 109 80,817 137,849 4a5,3tt 405,651

€8,017
37,214
16,122

37

44,714
32,467

3,AO2
4,176
4,601

,f3

46

-0-

-0-
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-
-0-

231

{)-

-0-

56,280

-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-

-0-
541

-0-
3,469
4,479

-0-

-0-

-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-

36,O42

-0-
4,277

-0-
1,447

-0-

4-

56,280
36,042

3,,169

4,479
a,2n

-0-
1 ,447

586

499,127
39,108
15,,164

4a|

&
56,280
36,042

3,,{69
4,479
8,277

231
1,447

3,000
232
1$

5E6 23,61

492 231 56,821 7,98 50,946 115,715 670,'t 34 @6,EEA

1E

(800) 't,094

(3,6r/)
-0-

6,962 3,285 0
0

0
0

0
0

'f,115 902 -0- 2,017 -0- -0-
-0- 42,134 -0-

-0- -0- -0-

(782)- 1,094 39,s76 7,464

(585) 27,499 3S,678 25 29,a71

266,614 258,011

-G (233) (335)

-0- 47,44 266,381 257,676

-0- 42,138
0

69,574 81,558 54,439

10,524 117,712 54,E50 3,290 437,861 i196,00' 717,203 662,7U

$ 9,939 $ 145,211 $ 94,s28 $ 3,31s $ 467,732 $ 565,57s $ 798,761 $ 717,203

13



Combined Statement of Current Operating Funds Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes
University and Community College System

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 with compantive totals for 1995
(Expressed in thousands) Exhibit7

ru".olo#ll onrvl

Unrestricted Restricted

Tuition and fees
Federal grants and contracG
State grants and contracls
Local grants and contracts
Private gifrs. grants and contracls
Endowment income
lnvestment income
Sales and seNices ot educational deoa.tments
Sales and seNices ot auxiliary enle.prises
Realized gain on investments
Other sources

Total revenues

Educational and gene nl :
Instruction
Research
Public service
Academic support
Institutional support
Student servic€s
Operation and mainlenance ot plant

Scholarships and fellowships

Total educatrcnal and general expenditures

Auxiliary enterpises.
Expenditures for food, housing and other

auxiliary services
Mandatory transfers:

Principal and interest
Student loan matching

Total €xpenditurss and mandatory transfers

Voluntary transfers, nel
Excess of restricted receiots over transfe6 to revenue

Transfers from pimary government
Transfers to primary government

Total other transfers and additions (deductions)

Net increage (decrease) in fund balances

The notes to the tinancial slatemenls are an inteEral part of this statement.

419,001 122,534 541,535 478,239

$ 81,588
11,355

1,150
169

166
7,223

26,187
40,349

2A3
5,418

179,581

$ -0-
70,570
16,014
6,748

25,294
2,326

19

829
-0-
-0-

147

121,947

s 81,588
81,925
17,164
6,917

30,997
2,492
7,242

27,016
40,349

283

301.528

$ 74,680
74,974
16,169
7,'t 98

30,142
1,578
6,614

25,014
41,502

-0-
14,446

296,317

167,226
14.641
11,916
44,854
56,664
34,862
36,900

9,546

15,250
49,302
34,249
4,277
't,891

5,282
201

12,063

142,476
63,943
46,165
49,131

40,144
37,101
21,609

156,121
60,230
41,246
40,989
52,101
36,845
32,026
r8,459

376,609

39,108

3,266
18

122,515

-0-

19
-0-

499,'124

39,108

3,285
18

438,0't7

37,214

2,985

(1,505)

224,476
(233)

(806)

3,145

(2,311',,

3,145
224,476

(233)

(2,549)

218,742
(21)

222,738 2,339 225,077 214,477

(16,682) $ 1,752 $ (14,930) $

14



A. Reporting Entity
The accompanying financial statements of the State of
Nevada (the State) have been prepared in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB), except as noted below. As required by
generally accepted accounting principles, these financial
statements present the State and its component units,
entities for which the State is considered to be financially
accountable. The discretely presented component unit is
reported in a separate column in the combined financial
statements to emphasize it is legally separate from the
State. The component unit has a June 30 year end.

Blended Component Units: The Public Emolovees'
Retirement Svstem (PERS) and the Leqislators'
Retirement Svstem (LRS) are governed by a seven-
member board appointed by the Governor. Although they
are legally separate from the State, PERS and LRS are
reported as if they were part of the primary government
under the provisions of GASB Stalement 14.

Discretely Presented Component Unit: The Universiv
and Communitv Colleqe Svstem of Nevada (University
System) is governed by a Board of Regents elected by
the voters. However, the University System is fiscally
dependent upon the State because of appropriations
from the State Legislature, the Legislative approval of the
budget for those appropriations, the levying of taxes, if
necessary, and the issuance of debt to support the
University System. The financial statements of the
University System have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed
by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants'
Audit Guide, Audits of Co eges and Un,Vers,fies, and the
National Association of College and University Business
Officers' publication College and University Euslness
Administntion : Administntive Sevice.

Comolete financial statements for each of the individual
component units may be obtained at that entity's
administrative otfices:

Public Employees' Retircment System
Carson City, NV

Legisl ators' Relire ment Sy stem
Ca.son City, Nv

Universw and Community College System of Nevada
Reno, NV

Related Organizations: The Governor is responsible for
appointing the members of many occupational licensing
boards. The State's accountability fior these boards does
not extend beyond making the appointments and thus
these boards are excluded from this reoort. The Stiate
does not exercise financial or administrative control over
the excluded occupational licensing boards.

B. Basis of Presentation
The accounts of the State are organized on the basis of
funds or account groups, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund
are accounted for in a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, equity,
revenues and expenditures or expenses. The various
funds are grouped by type in the financial statements.
The following fund types and account groups are used by
the State:

Governmental Fund Types:
General Fund - The General Fund is the general
operating fund of the State. All general tax revenues,
other receipts, and other financing sources that are
not allocated by law or contractual agreement to
another fund are accounted for in lhis fund. Paid from
the fund are the general operating expenditures,
intergovernmental expenditures, debt service and
other financing uses that are not paid through other
funds.

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are
used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources (other than expendable trusts or major
capital projects) requiring separate accounting
because of legal or regulatory provisions or
administrative action.

Debt Service Funds - Debt service funds are used to
account for the payment of principal, interest and
related expenditures on long{erm general and
special obligation bonds, other than bonds payable
from the operations of enterprise funds.

Caoitial Proiects Funds - Capital projects funds are
used to account for financial resources segregated
for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities.

15



(Note 1 continued)

Proprietary Fund Types:
Enterorise Funds - Enterprise funds are used to
account for operations that provide services to
citizens, financed primarily by user charges for the
provision of these services; and activities where the
oeriodic measurement of net income is considered
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability or other
purposes.

lnternal Service Funds - Internal service funds are
used to account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department to other departments of
the State or to other governmental units on a cost
reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Fund Types:
Trust Funds - Trust funds are used to account for
assets held in trust by the State in a trustee capacity
or as an agent for individuals, other governmental
units and other funds. There are three types of trust
funds:

Expendable Trust Funds - Both the principal and
revenues eamed on that principal may be
expended for purposes designated by the trust
agreement.

Nonexpendable Trust Funds - The principal of
the trust fund must be preserved intact.

Pension Trust Funds - These funds are used to
account for the activities of a State-administered
multiple-employer Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) and a single-employer retirement
system for State legislators (LRS).

Aoencv Funds - Agency funds are used to account
for assets held by the State as custodian.

Account Groups:
General Fixed Assets Account GrouD - This account
group is established to account for all fixed assets of
the Statq other than those accounted for in
enterorise funds. internal service funds and trust
funds.

General Lonq-Term Obliqations Account Grouo -
This account group is established to account for all
long-term obligations of the State, except those
required to be paid from the operations of proprietary

types, pension trust funds, and component

Component Unit:
The accounts of the University System are organized
as follows:

Current Operatinq Funds - Current Operating Funds
are used to account for unrestricted funds, over
which the governing board retains full control in
achieving the institution's purposes and restricted
funds, which may be utilized only according to
externally restricted purposes.

Fiduciarv Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to
account for assets held by student loan and
endowment funds in which the institution acts in a
fiduciary capacity.

Plant Funds - Plant funds are used to account ior
institutional property acquisition, renewal, replace-
ment, debt service and investment.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of
Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied
to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. All
governmental funds and expendable trust funds are
accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. Vvith this measurement focus, only
current assets and current liabilities generally are
included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of
these funds present increases, that is, revenues and
other financing sources, and decreases, that is,
expenditures and other financing uses, in net current
assets.

All proprietary funds, nonexpendable trust funds and
pension trust funds are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities
associated with operating these funds are included on the
balance sheet, Fund equity, that is, net assets, is
segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings
components. Proprietary fund type operating statements
present increases, for example, revenues; and
decreases, for example, expenses in nel assets.

GASB Statement 20 requires proprietary funds to apply
all applicable GASB pronouncements and, unless they
conflict with or contradict GASB oronouncements. all

fund
units



(Note 1 continued)

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Stiatements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles
Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins
issued on or before November 30, 1989. As permitted by
the Statement, the State has elected not to apply FASB
oronouncements issued after that date.

The financial stateinents are prepared on the modified
accrual basis for governmental fund types, expendable
trust funds and agency funds; and on the accrual basis
for proprietary fund types, nonexpendable trust funds,
pension trust funds and the University System.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized when susceptible to accrual, that is, when
they become both measurable and available.
"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can
be determined and "available" means collectible within
the current oeriod or soon thereafter.

The State considers revenues as available if they are
collected within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.
Principal and interest on general long-term debt are
recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts
have been accumulated in the debt service fund for
payments to be made early in the following year. Those
revenues susceptible to accrual are gaming revenues,
sales taxes, interest revenue and charges for services.
Fines and Dermit revenues are not susceptible to accrual
because they are generally not measurable until received
in cash.

The State reDorts deferred revenue on its combined
balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when a potential

revenue does not meet both the 'measurable" and
"available" criteria for recognition in the current period.

Deferred revenues also arise when resources are
received by the State before it has a legal claim to them,
as when grant monies are received before the incurrence
of qualifing expenditures. In subsequent periods, when
both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the
State has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for
deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance
sheet and revenue is recognized.

Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the
time liabilities are incurred.

D. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity
Cash and Pooled Investments - The State Treasurer
manages a cash pool where all temporary surplus cash is
invested. These investments are reported on the
combined balance sheet as equity in pooled investments.
Eamings from these pooled investmenF are credited to
the General Fund and to certain other funds which have
specific statutory authority to receive a prorated share
based on weekly cash balances. No entry is made to
reduce the cash balance in each fund since the cash
management pool has the same general characteristics
as demand deposit accounts. Also included in this
account is cash held by departments in petty cash funds
and in bank accounts outside the Treasureis cash
management pool.

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as bank
accounts, petty cash, money market demand accounts
and certificates of deposits with original maturities of
three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are
reported in the combined statement of c€sh flows for
proprietary fund $pes and nonexpendable trust funds.
Cash equivalents are reported in the combined balance
sheet as'cash and pooled investments" and "restricted
assets, cash."

lnvestments - Bonds, U.S. Government obligations and
government guaranteed mortgage notes are stated at
original cost, adjusted where appropriate for bond
premiums or discounts, except as noted below.
Premiums or discounts are amortized over the life of the
issue using the straight-line method. The net amortization
of oremium and accretion of discount of those
investments using straight-line amortization is not
materially different from use of the effective-interest
method. Interest income is adjusted by amortization of
premium and accretion of discount. Bonds are normally
held until maturity dates to improve yields. The cost of
bonds and mortgages sold is determined by specific
identification.

Marketable equity securities are stiated at cost, except as
noted below. Premium income on options written is

defened and recognized upon expiration, exercise or
sale. The cost of marketable equity securities sold is

determined on the average cost method. Dividend
income on marketable equity securities is recorded as of
the ex-dividend date.

Investments of $1 15,647,613 in the
Compensation Fund, an agency fund, are
market value.

Deferred
stated at
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(Note 1 continued)

Investment securities held by the State Industrial
Insurance System (SllS) are carried at market value.

Unrealized gains and losses on securities are
reported as a separate component of equity. Realized
gains or losses are recognized as income upon the
maturity or disposition of the investment or when a
decline in value is considered other than temporary. For
purposes of computing gains and losses, the cost of
bonds and mortgages sold is determined by specific
identification.

Real estate investments in the Public Employees'
Retirement System, a pension trust fund, are stated at
cost. Additions and improvements to real estate

investments are capitalized. Ordinary maintenance and

repair expenses are charged to investment expense as
incurred.

Short-term investments, consisting of commercial paper

and U.S. Government securities, are stated at cost which
approximates market.

During fiscal year 1996, PERS and LRS entered into
certain derivative transactions. These included options
related to marketable equity securities, asset-backed
securities and collateralized mortgage obligations related
to fixed income securities. In addition, PERS' and LRS'

investments in commingled funds include derivative
instruments such as foMard rate contracts,
futures contracts, currency swaps, and interbank
currency forward contracts.

These transactions are designed to stabilize investment
cash flows, to enhance return on investment of cash and

to manage market risks associated with the underlying
securities. They may also reduce PERS' and LRS'
exposure to changes in stock prices, interest rates and

currency exchange rates. PERS'and LRS' management
believe that there are no significant credit or legal risks
associated with these transactions because of the
credibility of investment counsel, counter parties and the
ready marketability for these types of instruments.

ECeClyeblgg - The composition of receivables at June 30,

1996, is presented in Note 4. Most licenses, fees, permits

and similar revenues are not susceptible to accrual, and

are recognized on a cash basis. Receivables in

proprietary fund types have arisen in the ordinary course
of business. Accounts receivable for SllS are net of an
allowance for uncollectible accounts. No allowance for

uncollectible accounts has been established in any other
fund, as collection history has been excellent.

Property taxes are levied July 1 on property values
assessed by the prior January 1. Property tax billings are
payable in quarterly installments on the third Monday in

August and the first Monday in October, January and
March, after which time the bill is delinquent.

lnterfund Transactions - The State has three types of
interfund transactions:

1) Services rendered and employee benefit
contributions are accounted for as revenues,
expenditures/expenses in the funds involved.

2) Operating appropriations/subsidies are
accounted for as operating transfers in the funds
involved.

3) Equity contributions are accounted for as equity
transfers (additions to or deductions from
beginning governmental fund balances or
proprietary fu nd contributed capital).

Operating transfers and due to/from other funds are
oresented in Note 5.

lnventories - Inventories are stated at cost on the first-in,
first-out basis. Inventory in the State Highway Fund, a
special revenue fund, consists of expendable supplies
held for consumotion. The cost is recorded as an
expenditure at the time individual inventory items are
consumed. The reserve for inventory of supplies is equal
to the amount of inventory of supplies and recognizes
that a Dortion of the fund balance is not available for
expenditure on a budgetary basis.

Advances to Other Funds - Long-term interfund
advances are recorded by the advancing fund as a
receivable and as a reserve to maintain the accountability
and to disclose properly the amount available for
appropriation (unreserved fund balance). Repayments
are credited to the receivable and corresponding
reductions are made in the reserve. A summary of
interfund advances at June 30, 1996, is presented in
Note 5.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation - An inventory of State-
owned land, buildings and equipment was developed in
1985. All fixed assets are stated at historical cost or
estimated historical cost, based on acquisition of
comparable property or agency records, if actual
historical cost is not available. Donated fixed assets are
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(Note 1 continued)

stated at appraised fair market value at the time of
donation or estimated fair market value at time of
donation, based on acquisition of comparable property, if
appraised fair market value is not available. Interest
during construction has not been capitalized on general
fixed assets. Certain public domain fixed assets
(including highways, bridges, highway lands and rights-
of-way) are not capitalized. No depreciation is provided
on general fixed assets.

Enterorise fund. interndl service fund and pension trust
fund fixed assets are stated at cost which includes net
capitralized interest. They are depreciated principally on a
straight-line basis over estimated useful lives ranging
from 5 to 75 years for structures and improvements and 2
to 40 years for furniture and equipment.

In the University System, where cunent operating funds
are used to finance plant assets, those amounts are
accounted for as (1) expenditures for normal acquisition
or replacement of movable equipment and library books;
(2) mandatory transfers for required provisions for debt
amortization and interest, and for equipment renewal and
replacement; and (3) as voluntary transfers for all other
cases. Property, buildings and equipment are stated at
cost at the date of acquisition or fair market value at date
of donation, except plant assets acquired before 1962,

and library books and media acquired before 1976, which
are stated at estimated original cost less accumulated
depreciation computed on a straight-line basis over
estimated useful lives of 40 years for buildings and 5 to
10 years for furniture and equipment.

Comoensated Absences - Compensated absences are
accounted for in accordance with GASB Statement 16,

Accounting for Compensated Absences, which requires
that a liability for compensated absences relating to

services already rendered and that are not contingent on
a specified event be accrued as employees earn the
rights to the benefits. Compensated absences relating to
future services or that are contingent on a specified event
will be accounted for in the period those services are
rendered or those events take place. Proprietary fund
types and pension trust funds report accrued
comoensated absences as liabilities in the approPriate
funds. Governmental funds report compensated
absences expected to be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources as an expenditure and a
fund liability. Amounts not expected to be liquidated with
exoendable available financial resources are reported in

the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

Deferred Revenues - Deferred revenues in the General
Fund consist primarily of food stamp coupons and
refundable gaming tiaxes and fees.

Lonq-Term Obliqations - The State records long-term
debt of governmental funds at face value in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Certain other
governmental fund obligations are also recorded in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Long-
term debt and other obligations financed by proprietary
funds and oension trust funds are recorded as liabilities in
the appropriate funds.

Fund Equitv - Fund equity in the governmental tund types
and fiduciary fund types consists of reserved fund
balances, and unreserved, designated and undesignated
fund balances. Fund equity in the proprietary fund types
consists of contributed capital, reserved retained
earnings, unreserved retained earnings and net
unrealized gain on equity securities. The nature of
reserved and designated fund balances is explained
below:

"Encumbrances and contracts" indicates assets required
to meet future payment obligations.

"lnventory" indicates consumable supplies held in stock
by governmental fund types and expendable trust funds.

"Advances" indicates assets, which have been advanced
to other funds on a long-term basis.

"Balances foMard" indicates unexpended funds brought
foMard to the next year, which are legally restricted for a
specific purpose.

"Othe/' generally indicates assets, which because of their
nature, are unavailable for expenditures. See Note 12.

"Designated' indicates assets which have been
designated by the Legislature or governing board for
specific purposes. See Note 12.

E. IntergovernmentalAssistancePrograms
The State participates in various federal financial
assistance programs. Federal financial assistance is

received by the State in the form of both cash and
noncash awards. Federal reimbursement type grants are
recorded as revenues when the related expenditures are
recognized. Certain grants have matching requirements
in which the State must contribute a proportionate share
of the total costs of a program. Use of grant resources is
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(Note 1 continued)

conditioned upon compliance with terms of the grant
agreements and applicable federal regulations which
include subjecting grants to financial and compliance
audits.

F, "Memorandum Only" Total Columns
Total columns on the general purpose financial
statements are captioned "memorandum only' to indicate
that they are presented only to facilitate financial
analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial
position, results of operations or cash flows in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles. Such data
is not comparable to a consolidation. Interfund
eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of
this data.

G. lmplementation of Accounting Principles
During fiscal year 1996, the State adopted the provisions
of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No.24, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Ceftain
Grants and Other Financial Assisfanco (GASB 24).
GASB 24 required that distributions of food stamo
benefits be recognized as revenue and expenditures, and
that food stamo balances held at the balance sheet date
be reported as an asset offset by deferred revenue.

GASB 24 was applied retroactively by restating the 1995
financial stiatements. The restatement of 1995 financial
statements resulted in an increase in total assets of
$27,523,243, an increase in total liabilities of
$27,523,243, an increase in total revenues of
$94,591,541, and an increase in total expenditures of
$94,591,541, all in the General Fund.

A. Reclassification of Funds for GAAP Reporting
The following funds are misclassified in the statutes:

FUND NAME
GAAP

CLASSIFICATION

NEVADA REVISED
STATTITORY STATUTES G\'RS)

CLASSIFICATION REFERENCE

Care gt Sites for Radioac{ive Waste Disposal

Class-Size Redudion

Cleaning Up Petroleum Discharges

Contingency

HospilalCare to Indigent Persons

Human Resourc€s Gifi

Mobile Home Lot R€nt

Museums and History

National Judicial College

National Juvenile and Family Law College

Rural Rehabilitation

Stabilize the Operations of State Government

Subsequent Injury

Uninsured Employe/s Claim

WICHE Student Loan

Special Revenue

SpecialRevenue

Special Revenue

Special Revenue

Special Revenue

Special Revenue-Miscellaneous

Special Revenue-Miscellaneous

Special Revenue-Miscellaneous

Special Revenue-Miscellaneous

Special Revenue-Miscellaneous

Spscial Revenue-Misc€llaneous

Special Revenue

An account in Special Revenue

An accpunt in Special Revenue

Special Revenue-Miscellaneous

I rust

Trust

I rusl

Trust

Trust

Trust

I TUST

I tust

I rust

Trust

I rust

I tust

Trust

Trust

I rust

459.231

388.730

590.830

428.175

232.355
'1'r88.215

381.0064

1.470

1.480

561 425

353.288

616.4261

616.437

397.063

B. Individual Fund Deficits
Enterprise Funds

Industrial Insurance (SllS) - During the year ended June
30, 1996, SllS recorded net income of $363,470,000, and

unrealized gains on equity securities of $15,882,000,
resulting in a decrease.of its deficit fund balance to
$1,352,288,000 at June 30, 1996. Changes to the claims
management process and statutory changes in 1993
have contributed to the improvements in the overall
financial condition of SllS. See Note 15A.
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Nevada Maqazine - The Nevada Magazine was removed
from the General Fund in the fiscal year ended June 30,
1984 to be accounted for as an enterprise fund, A
residual equity transfer (contributed capital) of $66,849,
representing the value of inventory and property,
established the new fund. Although Nevada Magazine
had a liability for deferred subscription revenues of
$278,774 at June 30, 1983, no cash was transferred.
This resulted in a deficit beginning retained earnings of
$278,774. The retained deficit is $453,322, and the deficit
tund equity is $386,473 atJune30, 1996.

Marlefte Lake Water Svstem - The Marlefte Lake Water
System was acquired by the State in 1962 by the
issuance of general obligation bonds. These bonds were
serviced with general State revenues rather than
revenues of the fund. The original bonded debt, along
with any additional General Fund appropriations for
capital improvements to the System, have resulted in
contributed capital of $2,885,884. Operating losses and
retained earnings deficit are the result of not charging
water users for depreciation expense on the contributed
assets, with no foreseeable change in this policy of
charging users. The retained deficit is $1,673,458 at June
30, 1996.

C. Budgetary Process and Gontrol
The Governor must submit his proposed budget for the
Executive Branch to the State Legislature by the 10r'r day
of each regular session, which convenes every odd-
numbered year. The budget presented spans the next
two fiscal years, and contains detailed estimates of
revenues and expenditures. The Legislature enacts the
budget through passage of the General Appropriations
Act, which allows expenditures from unrestricted
revenues, and the Authorized Expenditures Act, which
allows exoenditures from revenues collected for soecific
purposes. Once passed and signed, the budget becomes
the State's financial plan for the next two fiscal years.

The legal level of budgetary control, the level at which
appropriations are approved and the level at which over-
expenditure of appropriations or transfers of
appropriated amounts may not occur without Legislative
action, is at the total program level within each
department or agency.

Limited budgetary revisions may be made without
Legislative action through the following managemenu
administrative procedures. Revisions of more than
92,000, which would increase or decrease program

expenditures by the lesser of 1Oo/o ot the level approved
by the Legislature or $25,000 must be approved by the
Legislative Interim Finance Commiftee (LIFC). Revisions
not exceeding this threshold require only budget director
approval. The LIFC approval is not equivalent to
governing body approval as total appropriations for a
program may not be increased except as follows. The
Legislature appropriates limited funds to the Contingency
Fund (a special revenue fund), which may be allocated to
programs by the LIFC upon recommendation of the
Board of Examiners. Allocations totaling $2,630,733
were made in the 1996 fiscal year. Unencumbered
appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year,
unless specific authority to carry forward is granted in the
Appropriations Act. Unexpended authorized resources
under the Authorized Exoenditures Act are carried
forward for expenditure in the next fiscal period.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders,
contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of
funds are recorded to reserve that portion of the
applicable appropriation, is employed in governmental
fund types. For financial statement purposes,
encumbrances outstanding at June 30, for which the
goods or services have not been received, are shown as
a reservation of fund balance.

Budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund and
special revenue funds. The State's budget is prepared
principally on a modified accrual basis, with the following
exceptions:

1) Cash placed in petty cash funds or outside bank
accounts is considered expended for budgetary
purposes.

2) Advances to other funds are considered
expenditures. Repayments of such advances are
considered revenues.

3) Certain prepaid/deferred assets are considered
expended for budgetary purposes. Inventory is
an expenditure for budgetary purposes. Certain
deferred revenue is considered revenue for
budgetary purposes.

4) Expenditures are only recognized if the liability is
liquidated within 45 days after the fiscal year end.

5) Revenue from grants is only recognized when it
is received in cash.

6) Encumbrances for goods or services not
received by fiscal year end are considered an
expenditure of the current period, if received and
paid within 45 days.
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Actual amounts in the budgetary comparison statements
are presented on a budgetary basis. Because this basis

differs from generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP), as described above, a reconciliation between
the budgetary and GAAP bases is presented in Note 2D.

D. Budgetary Basis vs. GAAP
The accompanying Combined Stiatement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and
Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis); General Fund and Special Revenue Funds presents comparisons of the legally
adopted budget with actual data on a budgetary basis. Since the budgetary and GAAP presentations of actual data
differ, a reconciliation of ending fund balances is presented below (expressed in thousands):

Sp€cirl
Rcverue

Fund brlrtrc.s (budgctrry brsls) June 30' 1996

Adjutlm.nlt:
Ba:i: Diferences:

Petty cash or oulside bank accounts
Investnents not recorded on the budgeLry basis

Accrual ofr€.eivables under GASB 22

Accrual ofc€iain oth€r rcceivables
Inventory
Advanc€s to other funds
D€fened charges and other assets

Accrual of certain occounts payable and accruals

Accrual of longevity pay

Contract retentions Dayable

Defen€d revenues
Encumbrances
Other

Fud bdtrnce3 (GAAP brsis) Jutre 30, 1996

Total fund balance on the budgetary basis in the General
Fund at June 30, 1996, is composed of both restricted
funds, which are not available for appropriation, and
unrestricted funds as follows (expressed in thousands):

Fund Funds

$ 400,728 $ 349,573

1,669 I,l 14

-0- 391,986
4,441
t,174

-0-
3,890

-0-

I1,420
49,009
10,709

29

(u,674\ (2,431)
(673) (te?)

-0- (l8s)
(74,518) (623\
4,4t2 4,4t9
1,s72 (294')

$ 271,96t $ E14,570

There were no expenditures in excess of appropriations or
authorizations in the individual budget accounts for the
year.

Tot l fund balane (budgetary basis)

Rest cted Funds

Urrdtrlctcd futrd bdrnce
(budgetrry b.sis)

$ 400,?28

(240,9s2)

s 1s9,776



Notes
For t re Yeer Ended .

A. Balance Sheet
Amounts on the combined balance sheet relating to

deposits and investments are as follows (expressed in

thousands):
Totsl Tobl

Prinrry Conporert Reportitrg
cov€rrEent Unit Enlity

$ 1,735.102 S 35.269 g 1,770,311
8,685,571 224,432 E,910,003
140.384 -0- 140.3E4

Deposits in the U S Treasury
investmelt pool in the name
ofthe Stale 315,801 3l5,E0l

Uncollateraliz€d or collatenliz€d
with securities held by the
pleiginB finucial institution,
or by its rust departmenl or
agent but not in the State s

Primant govamrnena:
Insured or collateralized with

securities held by the State
or by an agent of the State
m State's name

Carrying Brtrk
Vrlua Brhtrce

$ 304,140 $ 327,961

cash snd pooled investrnen!3
Investnents
Rcstricted assets (Note 6)
Less r.stsict€d assets other

lhan ffsh and
invcstrnents (Note 6)

Totrl

(39.950) -0- (39950)

-q__.r91?.lJ!r- -q-?!g391- -!--lqJg.!9!-
Totrl deposit!

38.128 39.221

B, Deposits

The Statutes of the State authorize the State Treasurer to

deposit in any insured state or national bank, credit union

or savings and loan association. Insured deposits are

covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
Statutes require all deposits within the custody of the

State Treasurer not within the limits of insurance
provided by an instrumentality of the United States to be

secured by collateral comPosed of obligations of the

United States; bonds of this State; bonds ofany county'
municipality or school district within this State; promissory

notes secured by first deeds of trust or instruments in

which the State is permitted to invest.

At June 30, 1996, deposits were held an various
institutions throughout the state as follows (expressed in
thousands):

primary gov€rnmetrt 

-SEj!8- 

682.989

Uncollat€ralE€d or cnllaleralized
with securities held by the
pledging flnancial institution,
or by its ttust departrnenl or
agent but not in the Stat€'s

35.269 15,269

3s.269 35,269

$ 693.938 $ 718,25t

Toall d€porits
compotr€nl unit

Total deposits
r€porting antity

C. Investments
Statutes authorize the State to invest in United States
Treasury notes, bonds, and certificates; bonds of this or
of other states: bonds of certain political subdivisions of
this or of other states: bonds, notes, debentures and
loans if they are underwritten by or their payment is
guaranteed by the United States; obligations or
certificates of the Federal National Mortgage Association,
the Federal Home Loan Banks, the Federal Home Loan

Mortgage Corporation, the Federal Farm Credit Banks
Funding Corporation or the Student Loan Marketing
Association, whether or not guaranteed by the United
States; farm mortgage loans fully insured and guaranteed

by the Farmers Home Administration of the U.S.

Department of Agriculture; negotiable certificates of
deposit issued by commercial banks or insured savings
and loan associations; certain banker's acceptances,
commercial paper, and notes, bonds and other
unconditional obligations for the payment of money
issued by corporations or depository institutions
organized and operating in the United Stales; money
market mutual funds registered with the SEC, rated
"ArM", or its equivalent, and invested only in securities
issued by the federal government or in repurchase
agreements fully collateralized by such securities. Limited
types of repurchase agreements are proper and lawful

investments of the State; generally no money of the State
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(Note 3 continued)

may be invested pursuant to a reverse-repurchase
agreement. The State's Permanent School Fund is
turther limited by statute to the types of investments it
may purchase. Investments are made afrer diligent in-
quiry of the govemmental unit and written legal opinion of
the Aftorney General. Investment policies of the State are
reviewed at least every fiour months by the Board of
Finance.

The following table (expressed in thousands) provides
information about the credit and market risks associated
with the State's investments at June 30, 1996. Category
1 includes investments that are insured or registered or
for which the securities are held by the State or its agent
in the State's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the securities are
held by the counterparties' trust department or agent in
the State's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the securities are
held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or
agent, but not in the State's name.

Prtmat! govamaznl:
Equity secuities
U.S. Govcmment s€curities
Foreign invcstnents
Corponte tlonds
Repurchase agreements
Municipal bonds
Bank accepranccs

Commercial pap€r

Negotiable c€rtificat€s of deposit

G rraDte€d investment contsacts
Red estatc
Mongages
Secured loans
Investsnent in limited parrnerships

Inedfian8 hehl b! ogarts
ln ,rurlual lundr lor:
Fiduciary funds

Defencd comp€nsation

Totsl pdmrry gov.mmant
Correorunl unll:

Euity sccurities

U. S Govemment sccuritics
Foreign inves[n€nts
Corporatc bonds

Re3l estltre

Intqdn ttl h.ld bt agena
In t,ti.lual tutdt lor:
University System

Totrl compotrcrt urit
Totrl rcponiog.rlity

25,869 4- -0- -0-
3t7,106 -0- -0- -0-

000
0 41 614 0

-0- -0-

1,u7,781
690,8 | 0
293,968

14,746

Crtagorl
UDclcrsill.d Crrryinc Mrrkct| 2 3 .s to Rkk Amolni Vrluc

$ 3,2t8,207 $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $
1,601,400 4- 34.21? -0-
328,528 -0- -0- -0-

89,710
104,262

3,288,201 S

1,635,677
328,528
89,?10

t45,876

3,710,884
|,632,609

4tt,686
89,719

145,876
393,25t

25,869
317,106

391,974 -0- -0- -G. 391,974

35,O02
6.242.058 -& 75,891

6.242.058 75.891

t2,880

25,869
377,tO6

9l9,7ls 9t9,1t5

t,44t,78t 1,526,069
690,810 1t0,248
293,968 293,968

-0- 35.0u
-0- 6.311.949 6,EE9.209

14,746 14,146
6t,E2l 61.821 t7.909

2,509,t26 2.509.126 2.622,940

3,393

2,O59

1,368,391

115.648 | 15,548 115.648

1.035,363 t.035,363 1.484.039

3.544.489 9.862.438 10.996.188

-0- 42,880 46,64s
-0- 3,393 3,3U
-0- 2,059 2,393

335 -0- 335 351
48,661 -0- 48,667 52,139

5,000 5,000 3.911

t10.16s 170,76s t92.350

t15.765 224.432 249.000

!___:t2v!_ -$___l-9,9!gg9_ !_____.11?1tJ!l!_



A summary of receivables by fund type at June 30, 1996, is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Propri.trry Fiduci.ry Conponcnt
Gov.rldeDt l Frrd TyD6 FuDd Typ.! Ford Typ6 Uria

Spccirl D€bt Ctpt0l
Totd Tool

htcrtrd Trultrld PriDrry Urivcnity Rcponirg
C.lcrrl ;!ry S.rvict Proi.ctt Eot rprLe Scrvic. jCgSL @!f! SylteE Entilv

Tlxcs receivable

s 4.956 $ 1,406 $ -0- $ -0- I 128,067 S 4t6 S 49,774 S 184,619 $

262,t89 12,500 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 274,689

-0- $ 184,619

-0- 214,689

-0- 73,271

14,571 168,307

|,529 15,049

46 46

Accrucd in@resl, dividends 10.925 -0- -0- -0- 12,351 -0- 49,997 73273

Intcrgovernmenial r€.€ivable 91,921 213a6 5,792 2,582 101 706 11,242 153,736

Acoounh. notes rec€ivable 708 2,A12 -0- 4- -0- -0- -0- 1,520

Acsucd iDvcstrnent incomc 4- -0- -0- -G -0- -0- -0- -0-

Othcr rcccivrbl€s

Totd
+ -0- -0- 724 724 4- 724

t 370,69 $ 38,104 S 5,792 S 2,582 S 140,525 S 1,122 t lll,?37 I 690.551 L_ r6J4_ 

'_JJW_

25



turlh. tuc,,l Y?.rE,fied Jun 30,199A

A. lnterfund Advances
A summary of interfi,lnd advances at June 30, 1996, is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Ganaral Fuid
Sp.dal R.'aru. Fund

State Highway
Enlarprlta Futdt

Pison IndusEy
Marlctte Lake Waler System

Totsl cntlrprisr funds
hrLanol Sardca Fu dt

Buildings snd Grounds
Motor Pool
Purchasing
Infomation Serviccs
hinting

Total intemal seflic€ funds

Tot l

B, Interfund Receivables and Payables
Interfund receivables and payables are the portion of interfund advance due by June 30, 1997. Asummaryof
interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 1996, is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Advrtrc€a To
Oth.r Furdg

l_39_
29

-0-
-0-

-0-

-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-G.

-0-

t 3,9t9

Advalc6 Flom
Othcr Futrds

$ -o.

-0-

t90
t48

338

t,655
634
334
747
2tl

3.581

s 3,9t9

Gatnl Fun.l
Wclal Raalua Fun.Is

Siate Highwry
Contingency

Tolal special rrvenue funds
E oprtt. Fundt

CRC Po\rrr Marketing
Prison Industfy
Marlette l,6ke waler System

TotEl cnte.prise funds
Intamol Senlca Fundr

Buildings rnd Crounds
Motor Pool
Purchasing
Infonnation Sewices
Printing

Total in@m6l sarvice funds

ToI'l

lrtarfu[d Inicrftod
Raaaivabl6 P.vrbl.!

s 572 $ -0-

4 -0-
4 -O-

8 -0-

0
0
0

0

0
0
4
4

55

o

t95
t07
23

154

4- 25

-0- 504

s 580



(Note 5 continued)

C. Due From/Due To Other Funds
A summary of due ftom and due to other funds at June 30, 1996, is shown below (expressed in thousands):

Due From Due To
Other Fuds Other FuDd!

$ 20.433 $ 32t,827General Fund
Special Revenue Fands
State High',lay
Class-Size Reduction
Employment Security

Regulatory

l,egislative
Municipal Bond Bank
Worken' Compensation and Safety

Hrgher Education Capilal ConsEuction

Cleaning Up Petroleum Discharges

Hospiral Care to Indigent Persons

Tourism Promotion
Ollenders' Store

Colorado River CommissioD

Contingency
Care of Siles for Radioactive Waste

Disposal

Stabiliz€ the Operdtions of Slale Oovemment
Miscellaneous

Totrl Spccid Rcvcrrc Furdi
Deht Service Fuadt
consolidated Bond Inrerest and Redemption

Hrghway Revenue Bonds

Totrl Debt Scrvicc tr'urds
Copitul Ptujecls Fun.ls
Parks Capital Project Construction
CIP Molor vehicle
CIP University Syst€m

CIP General State Govemment
CIP Sp€cial Projects

CIP Prison System

CIP Wildlife
Miscel laneouj

Totrl Cepia.l Pmjecb F||trdg

E rlerp se Fu^ds
CRC Water TreaEnent

CRC Water Transmission

CRC Power Marketing
Housing Division
Industnal Insumnce

Forestry Nurseries

Pnson IndwEy
Nevada Magazine

Marlette lnke Waler System

Totd Ent€rpris€ Futrdr
Inlemal Senice Fands
Self-lnsurance

Buildngs and Grounds

Motor Pool

Communications

Insumnce Premiums
Administrative S€rvices

Personoel

Purchasing

Information Services

Printing

Tot l Intemal S.rvice futrds
husl a4d Agmq Funds
Gift Funds

Custodial Funds

Henry Wood Chrisfnas
Pefmanent School

Public Employees' Retirement

Intergovemmental

State Agency Fund for Bonds

Motor Vehicle
Restitution Trust
Veterans Custodial

Local Govemment Pooled Investment
State Payroll

Tot8l Trust 8Dd Agcrcy Fuods

Totsl

251 403

150.393 35.873

12,298 -0-

284 -0-

12.582

20,342

4,t12
39

30

529

327

499

-0-
-0-
93

-0-

2sl
306

25

l3l
123,392

Du€ From
Othcr Fupds

9tt
t4

472
-0-

2,876
-0-

188

t
21

4.503

t,058
145

243

120

519
-0-

2
5,t26
2.794

231

10.244

20
43
-0-

210

6,193
183,008

-0-

4-
6

-0-
zl

189.562

$ 398,677

Due To
Othcr futrds

'71

1l
93

?80

2

46
-0-

t.088

26

l8
570

l6
379

1,815

106

-0-
4l

3.0t I

2

6,145

7

852
78

2,t04
54

20,860
8

-s.
2l

6,Ot2
36.203

s 398,677

t2,156
-0-

862
t,394

83

2,951

t2,160
l4E

2

68

45

I

t,054

-0-

ri
-0-

27

I

-0-

-0-
9,957

1

490
-0-

l3
55

438 -0-

10,960

27
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(Note 5 continued)

D. Due From/Due To Component Unit
A summary of balances receivable or payable between
the primary government and the University System (a
component unit) at June 30, 1996, is shown below
(expressed in thousands):

E. Transfers
A summary of interfund operating transfers for the year
ended June 30, 1996, is shown below (expressed in
thousands):

TrrNfers
Out

s 38.055 $ 76.365

2,6E7

27,726
301

I,130

4-

23,392
518

76.429 74,080

45,821 -0-

1,4t9 1,026

-0- 441

Tran!fers
h

GaEoI Fu d
Wtol Rdau. Flads

State Itrghr|'uy
Enployntntt S€qrrity
Regdatory
Cleaning Ltp PeEoleum DisclErgca

Totrl Sp.drl Rcvcruc Frrd!
E tdprhc F/,/,tb

Irdustrial ftBurance
Prison IndusFy
MlrlerE [,6ke Wat€t Syst€m

Totrl E erprtlc Fhtrdr
I dul S.rvie Funb

Self-Insuanc€
Motor Pool

Purchasing
Infonndion S€rvic€s

Printing

Tot l lDLrrd S.rvica hrd!
Totd

Doa From
ComFo.trt

Unii

I}|cTo
Comporant

Unit

2,948
-0-

5,160
4,142

-0-
36,980

s,914

t2,954
1,088
2.631

-0-
r,003

s4$n,lu

.G 186

s l,l7l s n2n

GenuaI Fund
Speclol Racnu. Funds

State Highway
Class-Siz! Reduction
Employmcnt Security
Re8u1atory

Legislative
Municipal Bond Bank
Workers Compensation

and Safety
Higher E/ucation Capital

ConsEuction
Tourism Promotion
Contingency
Stobilize fie Op€Iations of

State Govemment
Miscellaneous

Totrl Sp.citl Revenu€ Fundg

Debl S.ntca Fund
Consolidat€d Bond

Int€rest and Redemption

Cap al ProJecls Far&
En eryfi1. Funds

Inlemdl Scnice Fun(k
Exp.ndatle TnLn Fnds

Cuslodial Funds
GiftFunds

Totrl Erp.drbl€ Trust Futrds

Noneqenddbte Trusl Funals
Permanent School
Henry Wood Chrismas

Tolrl Norcxpeodrblc Trust Funds

Pe^ion Tn st Furds

Totrl TrrDsfels

126

23

6
3l

+
.G
.G
+

-0-

-0-
24

8,333

426
n
2

.G
-G
-G

168

l6
126

I

t"

-G

.G

.G
{r

0
0

| 2so

5,497
3

-0- 5,500

$ 152,441 $ 152,441

147 3,729
-0- 6

141 3,73s
-0- 44

28



(Note 5 continued)

F. Transfers From/Transfers to Component
Unit

A summary of transfeE between the primary government
and the University System (a component unit) for the
year ended June 30, 1996, is shown below (expressed in
thousands):

General Fund
Speclol Revanue Funds

Class-Siz€ R€duction
Legislative
High€r Education

Capital Construction

Trrlcfcl' FroE Trrrtfar! To
Comporani Compotrart

UDit UTit

$ 163 $ 224,476

Toaol Spccif,l Rcvenue Funds
Debl Senice Fund

Consolidated Bond
Int€rest and Red€mption

Capirol hojects Fund
CIP Univcrsity Syst€m

Totrl Trro3fcn

-0- 131

70 -0-

-0- 2,430

-o- 10 ltt
$ 233 S 266,6t4

2,561



For the Fiscal Yar Ended June 30, 1996

Various debt service. ooeration and maintenance, capitial
improvement and construction (acquisition) funding
reouirements of bond covenants. trust indentures and the
federal repayment contract are recorded as restricted
assets on the enterorise fund and soecial revenue fund

balance sheets. These restricted assets are established
either from bond proceeds, retained earnings, or
advances from the federal government. The components
of restricted assets at June 30. 1996. are as follows
(expressed in thousands):

EntcrDris€ Funds

Colortdo Totrl
Strtc Rivcr Housing ReponiDg

Highwry Commilsiotr Diviiiotr Ertitv

Speciel
Revenu€

F||Dd

-0- 582

38,889 26,429
.0- 841

-0- $ 30,889 $ -0- $

-0- .0- 69,545

-0- .0- 1,061

-0- s 2,617 S

30,889

69,545

1,061

-0- $ 2,631
'70,606 7t,t 88

-0- 65,718

-0- 841

Resldde*
Cash

Investn€nts
In!€rest recelvable

Right of way acquisitions

Totrl
Reslrlcled lor:

Debt seavice

Debt service reserve

construction reserve

Other and all purpose reserve

Tot l

38.889 -0- -0- 38.889

$ 38.88e $ 30.88e LJ9j9!_ $ 140.384

A slatement of changes in general fixed assets for the year ended June 30, 1996, is shown below (expressed in

thousands):

Struciurs Furnilure Construction
rtrd rnd itr

__Ip!IgMg!g_ Equipmepl Prosress Tot.l

Balance, July l, 1995 (as restated)

Additions
Deletions

Balance, Ju|le 30, I 996

Prisons

Natuml resources & wildlife
Human r€sources

State library

Supreme Coun
Stare olnce, Las Vegas

Other projects

Tolrb

$ 79,989 S

1,986

377,sBt $

l5,642
189,30r $

3l,44E

CoInmitted

$ 3,716

220
t,562

45

E2

l3
5,098

_!___JE!_

209,672 S 856,543

31,387 80,461

Rcquired
Future

Finencinq

Non€

None

None

None

None

None

None

(r 13) (51) fl5.60t) (1s,560) (11.332)

_$__qL $ 3e3.172 $ 205.141 $ 225.4ee .$_:9191_

Construction in progress is composed of the following (expressed in thousands):

Projecl Erpcnded lo
Authoriz{tion June 30, 1996

$ 129,230 $

33,057

19,898

20.283

26.t59
29,037

1 t,282
2t.328
6.236

t7,t20
24,559

28,866
l2t.9l0 56.10E

s 319.514 S 225.499
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A. Long-TermObligations
Long{erm obligations at June 30, 1996, of the primary government comprise the following (expressed in thousands):

PriDcipd
Itrftrest tnd Inter€st Prlnciprl
Rrtc Autlorizcd ksued in FY 1996 Oubrrndfug

Gcr.nl lrry-Tcr[ OblisrtioN Accoutrt Grcrp
Gercnl obligdtion bords :
Subjecr to Constitutional Debt Limilation
ExemDt ftoln Constitutional Debr Limiladon
Speclal obligalo, boads:
Exempt from Constitutional Debt Limitstion -

Highway lrnprovehent R€venue Bonds
Totrl Bonds

Obligations under capital leases

Comp€nsated absences obligations
Arbitrag€ rebat€ liability
ClainJ and iudgmenls
F€derai repayment contract
Judicial retirement net p€nsion obligation
Totrl gererrl loDg-aem oblig.tior!

Ent rpr-lsc lirnds
C o I o t ado Nv er C o rntnisri on :

General obligation bonds exempt from
Constitutional D€bt Limitation

Eouslng Dlvision:
Mortgage revenue bonds

Torrl g.rerrl obllS.do[s
Net obligalions under cipital le3s€s

Comp€nsated absences obligations
Totrl enlerpris€ furds

Iotcrnrl service ftrtrds
Obl igrtions under capital leases
lfss current Donion
Net obligations under c{pital leases

Comp€nsated absences obligations
Tolal itrtern{l service futrds

P€trsioo trusi firnds
Notes payable

Obligations under capihl le€se

Tolrl p€nslon trut furds

967 $ 9,482

B. Changes in General Long-Tem Obligations Account Group
The following is a summary of changes in General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1996 (expressed in thousands):

6 00-to t50/o s t72,3t0 $ l5t,8l0 s 13,t50 $ 10.780

3 45-t150yo 1.250.000 t.174,787 125.412 707,688

.!........@ry1!l__!___-Llq 788,168

$ 26,470 $ 1.017 11,478
3222

$ 803.166

4 00-10 000/0 $

3.50-9 80%

4U)-7W.

2 t9-t22y/o

771,779 S

945,166
170,299 S 45,084 $
943,841 56,192

448,280
'to1,141

59.820
t,2@,241

3,287
57,01E

I,104
334

t78,906
1,963

$ 1.451.853

$ 13.463 $ 2.64r t 
i.?11
2,E12

r-#
$ 9,563 $

296 r08 t29

-[_1E52_ _t____Jg_.9____2i!r_

4 06-8 63%

Bonds

obligations under c5prtal l@s€s

Comp€nsated absences obligations
Arbrtrage rebate liability
Claims and judgements

Federal contracts payable

Judicial retirement net p€nsion obligation

Tolrl

9 30r/r
5.74y.

Babrce
July I, 1995

N.w Obligrtionr
Itrcurrcd rrd
Chrnges i!
Estimrtes

Obligotions
Rctired

$ 8t0,031 $

4,18E

55,1l3
7El
t5
-0-

-0-

(r83,430) $

(r,050)
-0-

-0-
(85)

-0-

-0-

Bahnc€
Junc 30, 1996

1,2W,241
3,287

57,0tt
I,004

331

178,906

t,963

582,640 $
t49

1,905

334

t78,906

_{_!z9J_2!_ !___________1949_ -$_LlgJ!:r _$____.1$.!,!:l_



(Note I continued)

C. ConstitutionalDebtLimitations
Section 3, Article 9, of the State Constitution (as

amended) limits the aggregated principal amount of the

State's public debt to two percent (2o/o'1 of the assessed
valuation of the State. Exempt from this limitation are

debts authorized by the Legislature that are incurred for
the protection and preservation or for obtaining the
benefits of any property or natural resources within the

State. At June 30, 1996, the debt limit and its unused
portion are computed as follows (expressed in

thousands):

Debr limitation (2% of total

assessed valuation) S

,€$ Bonds and lea$s Payable
ai ofJune 30, 1996, subJect

to limitation 451,567

Remaining debt capacity S 243,014

D, Nevada MuniciPal Bond Bank
General obligation bonds have been issued through the
Nevada Municipal Bond Bank, a special revenue fund, as

authorized by NRS 3504 and NRS 349.950. These

bonds are subject to statutory limitation of $800 million

and are exempt from the constitutional debt limitation.
Proceeds from the bonds are used to purchase the
validly issued general obligation bonds of the State's
local governments to finance projects related to natural
resources. The State anticipates that the debt service
revenue it receives from the participating local
governments will be sufficient to pay the debt service
requirements of the State bonds as they become due.

Twenty-six projects were funded through the Nevada
MuniciDal Bond Bank as of June 30, 1996, and total
investments in local governments amounted to

$391,974,362.

E. Refunded Debt and RedemPtions
On December 28. 1995, the Colorado River Commission
(CRC) issued $118,590,000 in State of Nevada General
Obligation (Limited Tax) Bonds to advance refund term
bonds in Series 1994 with a par value of $105,995,000.
The general obligation bonds were issued at par and,

after paying issuance costs of $2,784,508, the net

Droceeds were $115,805,492. To accomplish the
advance refunding, the CRC used the net proceeds to
purchase U.S. Government securities. Those securities
were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow
agent to provide for all future debt service payments on

the refunded bonds. The advance refunding met the

requirements of an in-substance debt defeasance, and
the liability for those bonds have been removed from the
CRC's balance sheet.

The advance refunding resulted in a reduction of the
CRC'S debt service requirements of $37,429,620, which
resulted in an economic gain (difference between the
present value of the debt service payments on the old

and new debt) of $7,303,744.

In the current and prior years the State defeased certain
general obligations and other bonds by placing the
Droceeds of new bonds and other monies in an

irrevocable trust to orovide for all future debt service
payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust
account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds
are not included in the State's Financial Statements. The
total amount of defeased issues at June 30, 1996 is

$794,256,000.

F. Debt Service Requirements for Bonds
Debt service requirements (principal and interest) for all

long-term bonds and notes outstanding at June 30, 1996,

of the primary government are summarized as follows
(expressed in thousands). Debt service requirements for
all capital leases and installment purchases are
presented in Section I of this note. No debt service
requirements are presented for compensated absences
obligations since the repayment dates are unknown. All
amounts listed for Housing Bonds are projections and are
subject to change based upon changes in the mortgage
interest market rate. Actual results may vary
considerably from these proJections at any point in time,
depending upon market rates of interest.
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(Note I continued)

GeDarrl Loog-Tcrm Obligraions Account Group
General oblBation bonds serviced troht
Corrsolidaled bond inlereit and rcdeDgtiorl

debl senice lund
Various gencml obligation bonds

N€vada Municipal Bond Bank Bonds (Muicipal

Bond Bank Fund)

Fedeml repayment contract (user fees)

University System projecis bonds (slot machin€ tax)

Tot{l gen.rrl obligrtion boods

Specid obEgoion bonds:

Highway bon& debl seniceland:
Highway improvement revenue bonds (fiiel tax)

Totrl Gcn.rll Long-Term Obligrtions

Account Group

Enterprise funds

GmeruI o igotion bonds seriiced lrom:
Colorado River Commission bonds (user fees)

Housing bonds (tepaid housing loans)

Totrl ent€rprise funds

Pension trust fund

Noles payable serviced ftom Public Employees'

Retirement System of Ncvada

G. Amount Available in Debt Service
Funds

At June 30, 1996, the amount in the Highway Revenue
Bonds Debt Service Fund available to service the
Special Obligation Highway Revenue (Motor Vehicle
Fuel Tax) Bonds was $1,136,471. The amount
available in the Consolidated Bond Interest and

Equipment
Less accumulated d€preciation

Totil

For Thc Fiscrl Ycrr

73,163 $ 833,334

29,140 457,458

8,935 253,128

7,774 7,7t2 7,79t 7,793 7,E01 34,111

118,542 5,830 tr7,829 I19,639 119,639 1,578,531

27,829 19,780 18,939 -0- {- -0-

146.371 $ 135,610 $ 136,768 $ 119,639 $ 119,639 $ 1,578,531

6,892 I16,3t9

69,273 $

32,560

8,935

70,139 $

2t,914
t,935

72,567 S

28,536

8,935

73,152 $

29,759

8,935

6,913 6,896 6,895

l0l,9t4 100,25E 9t,t58 94,882 86,114 912,229

$ 108,827 $ 107,154 $ 105,758 $ 101,777 S 93,006 $ 1,02t,548

6,q)0

Getrerd ltrternrl Pcnsion

FLcd Asseb Enacrpnsc Servicc Trusa

Accouna Grouo Funds F[nds Fuod!

$ 5,555 $ 26,4',t\ $ 12,644 $ 301

-0- 11.009 7,472 105

$ 5.555 $ 15.461 $ 5,172 S 196

967 S 9,403 $ -0- $ -0-

$ 44,9?0

18.586

-q__2!t!!

96? $ 96? $

Redemption Debt Service Fund to service debt was
$26.279,322.

H. Bond Indenture Provisions
There are restrictions and limitations contained in the
various bond indentures. The State is in comDliance
with the requirements of the bond covenants.

l. Capital Leases
The State has entered into various agreements fior the lease of equipment. Assets acquired under such leases of the
primary government at June 30, 1996, consist of the following (expressed in thousands):
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(Note I continued)

For all capital leases of the primary government, the
gross minimum lease payments and the present value of
the net minimum lease payments as of June 30, 1996,
follow (expressed in thousands):

For th€ y.iranditrr ftna 30 Amount

$ 7,956

6,034
4,795

2,48E

l5
21,288

2.O12

19,216

1.570

$ t7.706

J. Arbitrage Rebate Requirement
The Tax Reform Act of 1986 imooses a rebate
requirement with respect to some bonds issued by the
State. Under this requirement, an amount equal to the
sum of (a) the excess of the aggregate amount earned
on all investments (other than certain specified
exceptions) over the amount that would have been
earned if all investments were invested at a rate equal lo
the yield on the bonds, and (b) any income earned on the
excess described in (a), must be rebated to the United
States Treasury, in order for the interest on the bonds to
be excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes. In accordance with the Intemal Revenue
Service Regulations, an arbitrage rebate liability has
been calculated as of June 30, 1996. The liability is
payable as follows (expressed in thousands):

K, Gomponent Unit Obligations
Bonds, notes and capital leases payable
University System at June 30, 1996, consist
following (expressed in thousands):

by the
of the

Antr[al
Irtcrlst
R,otc %

Student fee revenue

bonds 3 10-8.50

Notes payable 5 05-13 06

Capital leas€s 419-19 59

Totrl

2016 $ 63,540

20ts to,2t2
2001 1.'t23

$ 75,63s

s 6,036

5,707

4,9E9

4,483

4,008

50,412

$ ?5,635

Fioel
Pryment

Due
Pitftiptl

Oubtlnding

Zcrj.'

Less:

1997

| 998

t999
2000
2001

Total payments

Amounl rcprcs€ntrng Interest

Cunent portion for
intemal service funds

Totrl

The student fee revenue bonds are secured by tuition
and fees, auxiliary enterprises revenue and certain other
revenue as defined in the bond indentures.

Accrued compensated absences payable by the
University System at June 30, 1996, were $17 ,728,430.

Debt service requirements (principal and interest) for
bonds, notes, and capital leases payable by the
University System for the years ending June 30 are as
follows (expressed in thousands):

Fisc.l ycsr ctrditrg Jun! 30 Amourt

2001

There!fter

Totrl

199'l

1998

1999

2000

For tha ycar
etrding June 30

t997
t998
t999
2000

2001

There3llEr

Tot.l

AmouDt

$3
-0-

458

643

-0-

-0-

At June 30, 1996, debt in the amount of 927,461,000 is
considered to be extinguished through refunding of prior
issues by a portion of the current issues. Sufficient
proceeds were invested in state and local government
securities and placed in escrow to assure the timely
payment of the maturities of prior issues. Neither the debt
nor the escrowed assets are reflected on the financial
stiatements.

$ r.r04

The Nevada Legislature has created various plans to
provide benefits to qualified employees and Legislators of
the State as well as employees of other public
employers. The Public Employees' Retirement Board

administers the Public Employees' Retirement System of
Nevada (PERS) and the Legislators' Retirement System
of Nevada (LRS). A summary description of the plans
follows.
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(Note 9 continued)

A. PERS
General - All full-time State employees and tull-time
employees of participating local government entities in
the State are members in the PERS, a defined benefit
cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employees'
retirement system established in 1947 by the Nevada
Legislature. Any government employer in the State may
elect to have its general, police and fire department
employees covered by PERS.

The payroll for State employees covered by PERS, total
State payroll, and covered payroll for State employees in
police and fire departments for the year ended June 30,
1996, was (expressed in thousands):

Benefits - Benefits, as required by statute, are
determined by the number of years of accredited service
at the time of retirement and the membe/s highest
average compensation in any 36 consecutive months.
Benefit payments to which participants may be entitled
under the plan include pension benefits, disability
benetits and death benefits. Monthly benefit allowances
for regular members are computed al 2.5o/o oi avenge
compensation (36 consecutive months of highest
compensation) for each accredited year of service before
retirement with a ceiling of 75Yo ot the average
compensation. Regular members are eligible for
retirement at age 65 with 5 years of service, at age 60
with 10 years of service or at any age with 30 years of
service. Police and firemen are eligible for retirement at
age 65 with 5 years of accredited police and fire service,
at age 55 with 10 years of accredited police and fire
service, or at any age with 30 years of accredited
service. A member who retired on or after July 1, 1977,
or is an active member whose effective date of
membership is before July 1 , 1985, and who has 36
years of service, is entitled to a benefit of up to 90% of
average compensation. Vvlen members are eligible for
earlier retirement due to the increased service years, the
ceiling limitation on monthly benefit allowances increases
from the normal 75yo to a maximum of 90% of average
compensation. Regular members and police and firemen
become fully vested as to benefits upon completion of 5
years of service.

Contributions - Member contribution rates are established
by statute. Prior to July 1, 1983, each governmental
employer belonging to PERS could elect one of two
contribution plans. One plan provides for matching
employee and employer contributions while the
other plan provides for employer contributions
only. From July 1, 1985, to December 31, 1990, all new
employees and employees of a participating public
employer who attained ten years of accredited
contributing service were required by statute to enroll in
the employer-pay contribution plan.

In a lawsuit instituted by the State of Nevada Employees'
Association, the Ninth U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals held
the mandatory employer-pay funding mechanism
unconstitutional. Beginning January 1, 1991, new
employees of the State of Nevada and those of other
public employers who were not under employer-pay upon
the enactment of the1983 legislation, havethe option of

Primrry
Governmetrt

Compon€nt
Utrit Total-Tffiifr- n.po"tiog

S$tem Enaity

Payrollcovered by PERS $ 451.750 $ 65.916 $ 517,666

Totaf Sbre payroll S 419,241 $ 279,649 $ 75t,E96

State polic€ and firc
employees' palroll
covercd by PERS $ 1826 $ 1,076 S 79,t42

At June 30, 1996, the number of participating
govemment employers was:

Stale and iu comDonent units

Cities 20

Counties and rel6ted agencies 26

School districts lE

Hospitals and health care l0
Utility and inigation districts 11

Sp€cial districB and a8encies 28

Totrl cmploy.rs _____l2o_

At June 30, 1996, the date of the most recent actuarial
valuation, PERS membership consisted of:

S e ni c e Mi rc ?s, dis oh I I I ly t alplenl s
a d bettelcladd rcc.ling benefiLt:

14,494

2,O71

t.018

_____.trg.

3,082

60,333

1.182

Regular employees

Police and firemen
Survivor benefi t recrpients

Toirl benefi t reciplctrts

Inacdve rnembers verlad:
R€gular employees

Polic€ and firemen

Tohl imctiva mambars

Regular employees

Police and firemen

Totrl ective memb.E

JC



(Note I continued)

selecting either the employee/employer or the employer-
pay contribution plan.

Under the employer/employee contribution plan, the
matching contribution rates are 10% for regular members
and 14Vo for police/fire members. Contribution rates
under the employer-pay plan are 18.75olo for regular
members ?,nd 27o/o for oolice/fire members. The
actuarially determined matching contribution
requirements under the employer/employee plan are
9.75o/o lor regular members and 14.21o/o for police/fire

members. The actuarially determined contrlbution
requirements under the employer-pay plan are 18.33%
for regular members and 27 .360/o for police/tire members.

The basic funding objective is a level pattern of cost as a
percentage of salary throughout an employee's working
lifetime. The actuary used the 'entry-age-normal" cost
method, which is intended to meet this objective and
result in a relatively level long-term employer contribution
requirement as a percentage of salary.

The State's contribution requirement for the year ended
June 30, 1996 was (expressed in thousands):

Enproyed, f, mproye,', J:l,ff":"
Coptribulion Cotrtribution R.quircp.ot

himny govanrD.nt S 25,276 $ 6E,629 S 93,905

CoE pn rt znlt:
Univ.rsity Synem 3212 9,569 l2,8ll

Totrl Eponiry.ntig $ 28.51t S 7E,198 S 106,716

Conrributions a! pcrc€ ag€s

o{covered payroll 60/, 15% 2l%
ContibutioN as pcrc@iag€s

of total conEibutions of all
paiicipding cDliti6 of
u7 1,701 60/. 17% 23v'

Fundinq Status and Prooress - The amount shown in the
following table as 'pension benefit obligation" is a
standardized disclosure measure of the oresent value of
pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected
salary increases, estimated to be payable in the future as
a result of employee service to date.

The measure is the actuarial Dresent value of credited
projected benefits and is intended to help users assess
PERS funding stiatus on a going-concern basis, assess
progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay

benefits when due, and make comparisons among
PERS. The measure is independent of the actuarial
funding method used to determine contributions to PERS.

The pension benefit obligation was determined as part of
an actuarial valuation at June 30, 1996. Although PERS
annually receives an actuarial valuation indicating the
contribution rates required to fund PERS on an actuarial
reserve basis, contributions actually made are in

accordance with the required rates established by the
Nevada State Legislature pursuant to NRS 286.410.
Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation
include the following:

lnvestment Yield: 8%

Pavroll Growth: 7.5Vo per year for regular members
and 8.5% per year for police/fire members based
upon total payroll.

Salarv lncrease: The actuarial cost calculations are
based on an age-related salary scale in addition to
an assumed inflation rate ol 5% per year. The age-
related salary scale, which is based on the recent
salary experience of covered employees who remain
in service, ranges from 5.76% at age 60 to 13.4oo/o at
age 20.

Retirement Aae: Actuarial assumptions are to be
based upon different rates of retirement at all ages of
eligibility. The actuarial assumed retirement rates are
based primarily on retirement experience during the
past two fiscal years. The retirement rates vary from
20% to 100%, depending on age for 30 or more
years of service for regular members and 20 or more
years of service for police/fire members. Further
detail of retirement rates are located in the June 30,
1 996. actuarial reDort.

Wthdrawal Rates: Withdrawal rates range from
22.5% al22 years of age to 3.7% at 57 years of age
for regular membeE and 9,3% al22 yearc of age to
1.4o/o at 57 years of age for police and firemen.

Disabilitv Rates: The assumed rates of disability
range from .03% at 22 years of age to 1.45o/o al62
years of age for regular members and .05o/o at 22
years of age to 1.40o/o at 62 years of age for police
and firemen.

Mortalitv Rates: The assumed mortality experience
is projected by using the 1983 Group Annuity
Mortality Table for all nondisabled members and the
1983 Railroad Retirement Board Disabled Life
Mortality Table for disabled members.



(Note I continued) national statistics compiled by the U.S. Social Security
Administration. Additionally, it is assumed that female

Presence and Aoe of Soouse: The assumed proportion spouses are on the average three years younger than
of married employees varies by age and is based on the mare soouses.

The PERS does not make separate measurements of assets and pension benefit obligations for individual employers
such as the State. The total and unfunded pension benefit obligation as ofJune 30, 1996, for the PERS as a whole is
as follows (expressed in thousands):

Reguhr Police and
MembeB Firemen Tot.l

Pensi on b en ell o b li g a1i on :
Retirees and beneficiaries currendy receiviog

b€nefits and terminat€d emDlovees not
yet receiving benefits

Cunenl enployes:
Accumulat€d employee contributions

includrng allocat€d investrn€nt rncome

Employer-finarced, vested

Employer-fi nanced, non-vested

Tolal p€DsioD bcDclit obligrtioD
Net assets available for benefits at cost

(ma*et values $6,411,449, $1,301,108 and

$7,? 12.557 resp€ctively)

Utrfurd.d Dcnsioo bcoelit obligrliotr

Trend lnformation - Ten year historical trend information
showing the PERS' progress in accumulating sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due is presented in the
PERS June 30, 1996, comprehensive annual financial
repon,

B, LRS
General - All State Legislators are members in the
defined benefit, single-employer public employees'
retirement system established in 1967 by the Nevada
Legislature. The State's payroll for Legislators covered
by LRS for the year ended June 30, 1995 was $491 ,400.
Total payroll for the year ended June 30, 1995 was
$524,810. There was no payroll for the year ended June
30, 1996.

A, Ionuary I, 1995, LRS ,rEnbedhip
consisled oI:

1.644.589 s01,220 2.145.809

R€tirecs and benefi ciaries cunently
receiving benefits and terminat€d

employees entitled to benefits
but not yel.eceiving th€m

Active en ployees:
Vested

Non-vested

Benefits - Benefits, as required by statute, are
determined by the number of years of accredited service

2,783,381 $

t8E,974

2,319,963

632,007 S 3,415,394

31,331 220,305
507,298 2,82',7,261

8,60t,769

5,468.012 t,t@.62t 6.57't.699

j_uryl_ s3p_ $ 2.o3 r.o?o

at the time of retirement. Service years include the entire
election term whether or not the Legislature is in session.
Benefit payments to which participants may be entitled
under the plan include pension benefits and death
benefits. Monthly benefit allowances are $25 for each
year of service up to thirty years. Contributions and
investment earnings provide benefits under the system.
Legislators become fully vested as to benefits at age 60
and 8 years of service before July 1, 1985, or at age 60
and 10 years of service after July 1 , 1985.

Contributions - The Legislator contribution oi 15o/o of
compensation is paid by the Legislator only when the
Legislature is in session, as required by statute. The
Legislature holds sessions every two years. State
statutes were amended during the 1985 Legislative
session to orovide for increased annual State
contributions actuarially determined to be sufiicient to
provide LRS with funds to pay all benefits for which LRS
will be liable. The annual State contribution required to
meet the net normal cost ($8,500) and to amortize the
unfunded actuarial liability over 30 years from January 1,

1995, ($206,300) is $214,800. The total contribution to
LRS for the year ended June 30, 1995, was $504,614.
The contribution consisted of Legislators' contributions of
$75,014 and the actuarially computed State portion for

6,936,9t3 1,611,856

78

t1
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For the Fiscal Y@r Ended June 30, l99A

(Note I continued)

two years of $429,600. The State portion was 87olo of
annual covered payroll.

Fundino Status and Proqress - Actuarial valuations of the
LRS are prepared every two years to determine State
contributions required to fund the system on an actuarial
basis. The last determination of the actuarial liability was
January 1, 1995. The totial untunded accrued liability as
of that date is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Llabw lor:
$ 3,259

4,605

2,t98

s 2AO1

This total unfunded accrued liability is to be amortized
over a period of 30 years from January 1, 1995. Net
assets available for benefits at June 30. 1996, were
$2,721,632 at cost (market value $3,171,659). Due to
the date of this most recent actuarial report, the total and
unfunded pension benefit obligation (as discussed for
PERS above) at June 30, 1996, is not determinable. LRS
has used the standardized pension benefit obligation
measure for financial reporting purposes in its actuarial
valuation as of January 1, 1995. The unfunded pension
benefit obligation as of January 1, 1995, the date of the
most recent actuarial valuation, fiollows (expressed in

thousands):

Cunent bcn€fit r€cipients

Active employe€s
Totrl rccru.d lhbility rt l.t6a valurlion
d.ta, Jrrorry l, 1995

Net assets available for ben€fits at cost,
January I, 1995

Tot l urfrrrd.d rccn.d lirbiliay

The total pension benefit obligation of the Legislators'
Retirement System differs from the total accrued
actuarial liability derived from the actuarial valuation as
of January 1, 1995. The difference results from the use
of different actuarial cost methods to comoute the two
amounts. The total pension benefit obligation is
determined on the basis of the projected unit credit
method (as required by GASB Statement No. 5),
whereas the total accrued actuarial liability is determined
on the basis of the entry-age-normal-cost method.
Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation
include the following:

Investment Yield: 8%

Retirement Aoe: Members retire at an average age
of 64 years.

Mortalitv Rate: The assumed mortality experience is
projected by using the 1983 Group Annuity Mortality
Table (with margin).

Turnover: Turnover rates are based on the limited
experience of the Nevada Legislators' Retirement
System and tumover experience of Legislators in
other states. The assumed rates project that only
about 20o/o of the Nevada Legislators will remain in

office for more than '12 years.

Pention Benefrt Obbgolion:
Pensione6 and benefi ciades cunently

rcc€iving b€nefits and tcnninated
employees not yet r€c€iving benefils

Cunanl errployed:
Accumulaled employees contributions
Employer-fi nanc€d vest€d
EmployeFfinanced non-vested

Totrl pcnsion b€nelil obligrtior
Net assets available for benefits, rt book value

UnfuDd.d p.nsion betr.fit obligrtion

s 3,85r

4,470
2,t9t

s 2,272

t7t
335

99



(Note I continued)

Analysis of funding progress is available as of January 1, 1995, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation.
Analysis of funding progress is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Unfund.d
PeNion Bancfit

Annurl Obligrtiotr As
Covered 7o ofcovercd
Pryroll Pryroll

Nct Assets Urfund.d
Avrilabla Pension P€nsion

For B€nelit! Benefit P€rc€nt Benelit
Jin, I At Cola Obligrtion Fundcd Obligrtion

l99l
t993
1995

1,780

|,976
2,I9E

45.7 2,tt9
,511
) 71)

491

492

491

43r.6

514.8

462.1

43.8

49.2

3,899

45@
4,470

Trend Information - Ten year historical trend information
designed to provide information about LRS' progress
made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due is presented in the LRS June 30, 1996, annual
report. Three year trend information is below.

LGgisl|tor's Cortribuaior

1996 0"/o

1995 tsyo

t994 0%

C. The Judicial Retirement System
General - The justices of the Supreme Court and district
court judges have been granted special retirement
provisions by various Legislatures. This is a single-
employer, State of Nevada, defined benefit, unfunded
plan that is admrnistered by the clerk of the Supreme
Court. An actuarial valuation fof this plan was prepared
according to the provisions of Govemment Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 27, Accounting for
Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers.
At the actuarial valuation date of July 1, 1995,
membership consisted of 49 active members and 28
retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits.

Benefits - Benefits to which members may be entitled
under the plan are defined by statute and include
pension benefits, disability benefits and death benefits.
Justices and judges who have served as a justice of the
Supreme Court or a judge of a district court are eligible
for retirement at age 60 with five years of aggregate
service in any one or more of those courts. The annual
benefit is equal to 4.1666 percent of the salary of the last
year of service. The benefit is increased 4.1666 percent
for each year of service between five years and 22
years. The maximum benefit is three-fourths of the salary
of the last year of service at age 60 with 22 years of
service. Any justice or judge who has the years of
service necessary to retire but has not attained the

required age may retire at any age with a benefit
actuarially reduced to the required retirement age.

Contributions - No contributions are required of the
justices and judges. Funding is provided from the
General Fund on a pay-as-you{o.basis, according to
statute. Benefit expenditures are reported in the law,
justice and public safety function of the General Fund.
The State's contribution for the year ended June 30,
1996, was $917,822. The actuarial valuation at July 1,

1995, determined the annual required contribution for the
year ended June 30, 1996, using the entry-age'normal
level percent of pay cost method for salary related
benefits and level dollar for non-salary related benefits.
The annual required contribution, annual pension cost
and net pension obligation for the year ended June 30,
1996, are as follows (expressed in thousands):

An ual rcqulr.d coaIibzlion
Annual normal cosl beginning ofyear
40 year amortization ofunfunded actuarial

acc.ued liability, b€ginning of y€a.

Interest to end of year
Annual rcquired contribution, end olyear
Interest on net pension obligation
Adjustrnent !o annual required confibution
Annaol pensioa cost
Benefitr Daid

lncr€ase in net pcnsion obligation
Net pension obligalion, beginning ofy6at

Net pensiorr ohligolion, end oJ lear

$ r,097

t,571
213---E

-0.
-0-

J,8-5T-
9lt---j,%-3-

.0-

$ 1,963

The net pension obligation of $1,963,000, is reported in
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.
Historically, an actuarial determination of the actuarial
required contribution has not been made. The
contribution to the plan has equaled the benefit
payments from the plan. As a result, the net pension
obligation at transition is equal to zero as of July 1 , 1995,
in accordance with GASB Statement No. 27.
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(Note I continued)

Fundino Status and Proqress - The plan accumulates no
assets to pay benefits. The unfunded actuarial accrued
liability as of July 1, 1995, was $20,229,000. This
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is to be amortized,
using the level dollar method, over a period of 40 years
on a closed basis from July 1, 1995. Significant actuarial
assumptions used in the valuation included the following:

lnterest Rate: 8%

Salarv lncrease: Position pay increases are
assumed to be 3% per year in anticipation of
legislated increases. Longevity increases at 6% after
six years and 1% per year for each subsequent year
up to 17 additional years.

Retirement Aqe: This is assumed to be normal
retirement a9e.

Termination Prior to Retirement : None.

Permanent Incaoacitv: None.

Mortalitv Rates: The assumed mortality experience is
projected by using the 1983 Group Mortality Table.

Presence and Aqe of Soouse: All of the members
are married and lhe spouses are assumed to be
three years younger/(older) if the member is
male/(female).

UAAL rs r
Parcctrtrgc of

The analysis of funding progress for the transition year is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Uofund.d
Acfurrial Acturfirl Actuarial Accrucd

Vrlurtiotr
Drte

Vrluc of
Assats

Lirbiliti.s
Li.biliti$ _.,!!J4\L)_ Rrtio P.yroll Cov.r.d P.yroll

7tr95 $ -0- $ 20.229 $ 20.229 00/. $ 4.154 487%

Trend lnformation - Transition year trend information follows (expressed in thousands):

Fiscal Atrnual Parca[trga of Nea

Ycar Pansion AnnurlPcNion PcNiotr
Erdcd Co€t Cost Cotrtributcd Oblicrtio!

680t96 $ 2,881

D. Post-RetirementlnsuranceBenefits
Any retiree of the State who meets the eligibility
reouirements for retirement as outlined in sections A
through C of this note, and at the time of retirement is
covered or had his dependents covered by any group
insurance or medical and hospital service, has the
option upon retirement to continue group insurance. NRS
287.023 establishes this benefit upon the retiree
assuming the portion of the premium not covered by the

$ t,963

State. For the year ended June 30, 1996, 3,491 retirees
were covered at a cost of $5,206,574 which represents
61% of total costs.

The State allocates funds for payment of insurance
benefits as a percentage of payroll. The cost of
the employer contribution is recognized in the year the
costs are charged. Any unused funds are carried foMard
to the next fiscal year. The carry forward to fiscal year
1996 was $138.018.

3t 9%
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The State of Nevada established the Selflnsurance Fund
and Insurance Premiums Fund in 1983 and 1979,
respectively. Both funds are classified as intemal service
funds. The claims liability of $333,625 in General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group, $9,098,000 in the Self-
Insurance Fund, and $5,383,627 in the lnsurance
Premiums Fund at June 30, 1996, is recorded in

accordance with GASB Statement No. 10, which requires
that a liability for claims be reported lf information
received before the issuance of the financial stiatements
indicates that it is probable that a liability has been
incurred at the date of the financial statements and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

The property casualty insurance functions that are
accounted for in the General Fund are financed by the
State. At June 30, 1996, incurred but not reported claims
liability is based upon experience trends.

The Self-lnsurance Fund is financed primarily by the State
for group health insurance coverage. At June 30, 1996,

incurred but not reported claims liability is based upon the
actuary's estimate for the Selflnsurance Fund.

The Insurance Premiums Fund is financed by the State
and third party insurers. At June 30, 1996, incurred but not
reported claims liability is based upon the actuary's
estimate for the Insurance Premiums Fund.

The State has a maximum exposure of $50,000 for each
general liability and fleet liability claim. lt has a self-insured
retention of $200,000 for property and contents per

occurrence with an aggregate annual limit of $400,000.
\Men the $400,000 aggregate limit is met, the deductible

oer occurrence is reduced to $50,000 and the remainder

is insured uo to $100,000. Per State statute, in the event
of future general liability or fleet catiastrophic losses and

fund overage is exhausted, coverage would revert to the

General Fund.

There were no significant reductions in insurance

coverage from the prior year for group medical, general

liability, automobile liability, or property and casualty.
There were no material settlements in excess of insurance
coverage br each of the past three fiscal years

Worker's comoensation insurance is obtained from the

State Industrial Insurance System, which is reported as an

enterorise fund.

Interfund premiums are reported as quasLelternal
transactions of the General Fund, Self-lnsurance Fund
and lnsurance Premiums Fund. All State funds participate
in the insurance progrElm. Changes in the claims liabilities
were as follows (expressed in thousands):

Gen€rrl Lodg-

Beginning balance,

July I,1995

Clarms and changes

m es marcs

Claim payments

EDditrg bal.trce,

J'ne 30, 1996

85S

590

SllS has established a liability for both reported and
unreoorted insured events. which includes estimates of
future payments of claims and related claim ad,ustment
expenses, and which is based on the estimated ultimate
cost of seftling claims. In estimating its liability for
incurred but unpaid claims, SllS considers prior

experience, industry information, cunently recognized
trends affecting data specific to SllS and other factors
relating to workeis compensation insurance undeMritten
by SllS. Because actual claim costs depend upon such
factors as duration of worker disability, medical cost
trends, occupational disease and inflation, the process

used in computing the ultimate cost of senling claims and
expense for administering claims is necessarily based on

estimates. The following represents changes in the
aggregate liabilities for incurred but unpaid claims (IBUC)

for SllS during the year ended June 30, 1996 (expressed
in thousands):
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lnsurttrca
Term Obligrtions Insunrc. Pr€miuE!
Account Group Fund _Egg_

7,698 $ 4,463

53,831 2,662
(341) ____!a!D 0.741)

$ 334 $ 9.098 $ 5,3E4



(Note 10 continued)

Liability for IBUC and claims
adjushcnt expenses,
July I, 1995, undiscount€d

btcunad clairr6:
Provision for insured
event! of th€ current ycar

Dedetlcs In provision
for insur€d €yentl
ofprior years

Net change in provision
for claim adjustrnent
expanses

Cloimt porrrEiA dfiilulobk lo:
InsurEd events of thc cunent ysr
Insured evenb ofprior yelrs

Liability for IBUC and claims
iroJusEnent expens€s,

Jun€ 30, 1996, undiscounted

l,ess rciniurance recoverable
on unpaid claims

Liability for IBUC at June 30, 1996

UndeMriting income totaled $272,272,000
$214,668,000 for the years ended June 30, 1996
1995, respectively.

and
ano

I 2,600,000

407,000

Q22,0oO\

7.000

2.692,000

5l,000
191.000

2,450,000

(7,000)

t 2,443,000

The State offers its employees a defened compensation
plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The plan, available to all State employees,
permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future
years. The deferred compensatlon is not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death or
unforeseeable emergency, All amounts of compensation
deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased
with those amounts, and all income attributable to those
amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made
available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the
property and rights of the State (without being restricted

to the provision of benefits under the plan), subject only
to the claims of the State's general creditors. Participants'
rights under the plan are equal to those of general
creditors of the State in an amount equal to the fair
market value of the deferred account for each participant.
It is the opinion of the State's legal counsel that the State
has no liability for losses under the plan but does have
the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary
prudent investor. At this time it is unlikely that the State
will use the assets to satisfy the claims of general
creditors in the future.



Fund balances, reserved for other and unreserved, designated fund balances are explained as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Conponcnr
Toarl Udt

Spccirl D.bt Crpibl Fiduchry PnDrly Univ.Biry RcpoiirS
G.n.nl R.v.nu€ Scrvicc Preie.rt Furd Typ.3 _ G.*--4- _$I!l4- 

-ry_Fttn l bahtc6, rcsenedlot olh.r:
R€s€rved for pr€paid ilems
Rcs.rv€d for noacurreni loans rcc€ivabl€

R.s.rved for fisoal cmcrgcncy

Res.rvc! for debt s€flice
R€scwcd for €nploy€es' rctrcmcnl system

Rcscwcd for the prircipal ponion ofnor-
crpcdabl€ Eust filndj

R€sdv€d for endoghent
R€scrvcd for investme s in nunicipal secunues

Rcscrv€d for sD€oifio firtu€ allocations

Rcscrv€d for Univcrsity Systdn
un.rqcndcd plarl

Rc.q.w€d for Uoivdsity Syn.rD cun€

opcnrinS restichd filtrd

Rcsdv€d for appropriarioos subjcct to rev€rsion

and for r€fiDdabl€ f€dsil graDls

Miscellaftous

Totrl fund brlrnc6, r..€F€d for oth..
Unt6.n d, daieraled luid bdl'tces:

D€sigFalcd for approvc! capiirl prqects
D6ignatcd for budscl slabiliz:non

D€siglatcd to prcs.ft€ a portion of prilciPal

D.r NRS 504 450

Desigalcd by Board ofMu$ums and History

Totrl unrtserv€d, d€lign.l.d fund
belances

Retained earnings, reserved and changes to contributed capital are explained as follows (expressed in thousands):

Proprictrry Furd Types

Intemal
Enterprise Servic€ 

-&!!L-
R e I al n e d ea, n i ng s, r etc nE d :

Reserved for o[rmtion and maintenance

Reserved as security for outstandbg obligations

Totrl rctriftd €amitrgs, r€cFad

Chang8 lo contribul.d copllal:
Cont buGd capitd, JulY l, 1995

Transfer to Southem Nevada Water Authority

Cotrtrtbutcd ctpitel, Juna 30, 1996

81.010

$ 9,924 S 4,t64 $ 14,688

(4.723]. _-___-9: -!_C4lzll

Covlmp.otrl F!!d T!r*.

s 20,205 s -0- s -0- s
tt6 11,321 -0-
4- 123,392 -0-
{- -0- 27,4t6
-0- + .0-

4- .{)- -0-
-0- 4- -0-

-0- 391,974 -0-

-0- -0- -0-

-0- 4- -0-

-(! 4- +
.0- 5,000 -o

56,961 -0-

30 145,210

39t,914 -0-

500 -0-

-0- 94,529

4- t8,360

5,000 1,501

99,7E2 S -0- 3

t0,10? -0-

-0- S -0.

-0- 1E

-0- {-
-0- 4-
-0. 6,580A21

20,205 S

14,2E5

21,4t6
6,580,421

-0- s

2,432
{-

3,315
{.

56,961
30
-0-

500

.G

+
-G.

-0-

-0-

4-

{-

s -0- t -0- s -0-

10,10? .0- -0-
I 99,7E2 $ -0- $

-0- -0-

-0- {- -0- + 171 174 .0- 114

$ 10,107 $ -0- $ -0- s 99.7E2 $ L!?l $ 110,963 $ '0' s 110'963

s84l$ $ 841

_-31p!9-
-$--!J,!gL i----ig: l-g!:l-

0
0

s------!4- S--!r &- -q-19!:-

20,20s
16,117

t23,392
30,?31

6,580,421

56961
t45,240
39t,914

500

94,529

It,360

t2,501

99,7t2
10,107

900

The principal taxing authorities for the State of Nevada
are the Nevada Tax Commission and the Nevada
Gaming Commission.

The Nevada Tax Commission was created under NRS
360.010 and is the taxing and collecting authority for
taxes. The following are the primary tax revenues:
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(Note 13 continuedt

Sales and Use Taxes are imposed at a total rate of
6.5%, with local county option up to an additional
.5%, on all taxable sales and taxable items of use.
The State receives tax revenue of 2% of total sales
with the balance distributed to local governmental
entities and school districts. Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax
is levied at 23 cents per gallon on gasoline and
gasohol sales. 17.65 cents of the tax goes to the
State Highway Fund, the remainder to the counties.
lnsurance Premium Tax is imposed at 3.5% on
insurance premiums wriften in Nevada. A "Home
Office Credit" is given to insurance companies with
home or regional offices in Nevada, but not to exceed
80% of the taxes due. Other Sources of tax revenues
are: Cigarefte Tax, Estate Tax, Net Proceeds of
Minerals Tax. Business Tax. and Liouor Tax.

The Nevada Gaming Commission was created under
NRS 463.022 and is charged with collecting state gaming
tiaxes and fees. The following sources account for
gaming tax revenues:

Percentaoe Fees are the largest of several State
levies on gaming. They are based upon gross
revenue and are collected monthly. The fee is
applied on a graduated basis at the following monthly
rates:

Three percent of the first $50,000 of gross revenue;
four percent of the next $84,000 of gross revenue;
and six and one quarter percent of the gross revenue
in excess of $134,000.

Casino Entertainment Taxes are imposed at loyo ot
all amounts paid for admission, food, merchandise or
refreshment, while the establishment is providing
entertainment as specified in NRS 463.401. Flat Fee
Collections are levied on the number of gambling
games and slot machines operated. Nonrestricted
licensees (those operating more than 15 slots or any
number of games) remit $20 per quarter per machine
and pay a fee at variable rates on the number of
games operated as established in NRS 463.375 and
NRS 463.383, respectively. Restricted licensees
(those having 15 or fewer slot machines and no table
gaming) remit $61 to $106 per quarter per machine.
Several Other Sources of gaming tax revenues are:
Annual State Slot Machine taxes, Annual License
Fees and Miscellaneous Collections, which consists
of penalties and fines, manufactureis, diskibutor's
and slot route operato/s fees, advance payments,
race wire fees, pari-mutuel wagering tax and other
nominal miscellaneous items.

The State has nine enterprise funds which provide the
services described below. Net working capitrl is not
shown for Housing Division and SllS in the table of
segment information since their balance sheets cannot
be classified.

The Colorado River Commission (CRC) is responsible for
managing Nevada's interest in the water and power
resources available from the Colorado River. Until
January 1, 1996, CRC maintained three enterprise funds.
Two of the funds operated together as the Southem
Nevada Water System (SNWS) and were transferred,
effective January 1, 1996, to the Southem Nevada Water
Authority (SNWA) and accounted for as discontinued
operations. SNWS is a utility supplying water to five
retailing entities in Clark County, Nevada. The other
enterprise fund, the Power Marketing Fund, is required by

the bond resolution authorizing the financing of Nevada's
share of the cost of uprating the generating facilities at
Hoover Dam, lt is used to record ourchases and sales of
power and other power marketing related activities.

In accordance with Chapter 393 of the 1995 Legislature,
certain ights, powers, duties and liabilities of SNWS
were transferred from the State and CRC to the SNWA
effective January 1, 1996. These rights, powers, duties
and liabilities included, but were not limited to, the State
of Nevada General Obligation bonds, the existing water
user contracts, the Federal Repayment Contract, the
Service Contract between the Commission and the Las
Vegas Valley Water District, and all other contracts
related to the System including contracts ficr capital
imorovement.
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(Note 14 continued)

The Nevada Housinq Division was created to make
available additional funds to assist private enterprise and
governmental agencies in providing housing facilities for
low and moderate income households. The Division is
currently authorized to issue its bonds, notes and other
obligations in an aggregate amount not to exceed
$1,250,000,000. These funds may be used to make loans
to purchase mortgage loans from mortgage lenders, and
to make temporary loans and advances in anticipation of
insured mortgage loans or to Rnance permanent
mortgage loans for the construction or rehabilitation of
multi-unit residential housing.

Industrial Insurance (SllS) is a separate self-supporting
agency of the State, which provides insurance to
employers against liability for workers' compensation
claims. SllS also operates a rehabilitation center in Las
Vegas.

Other funds include: Forestrv Nurseries propagates,
maintiains and distributes plants for conservation
purposes. Prison Industrv produces various products,
while employing and training inmates. NSgg_MeggZ[C
publishes the State magazine to promote tourism.
Marlefte Lake Water Svstem operates a water distribution
system.

Segment information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Colondo Rlvcr Commlsriob

W.ter Watar
TE{tmert TrrnJmilslotr Mrrl(eting

Industrirl
Itrsu.rtrcc

Housitrg
Divisiotr

op€rating revenues

Depaeciation exp€nse

Operating income (loss)

Openting grants

operating interfund taansfers out
Ner income (loss)

Tmnsfer ofdeficit !o other govemment

hopeny, plo oml equipm.nt:
Addltions and adjuiEnentr
D€letions aDd adjustsnents

Net working capital
Total assets

Bonds and olhet long-lerm liabiliiet:
Payable ftom op€mting rcvenues

Payable ftom other sourc€s

Total equity (deficit)

24,616 $ 57,226 S

-0- 22

0 5,965
-0- 520
-0. (l9E)
84 6,288

-0- -0-

-0- 24

-0- -0-

35222 nla
86,509 816,659

80,780 701,803

2.19t -0-
957 83,394

5,606 $ 57E,8t 8

185 6,528
(29s) 296,658
100 620
(11) (441)

(f73) 31O,2s9

-0- s4,516

29 27,922

l8 296,743
|,792 31 ,Ol4
5,187 2,372,250

62t to3,424
7 1t,659

3,764 (l,261,t13'

1,602 $

1,233

3,499

-0-

-o-
326

1,802

19,025

I10,549
-0-

53,098

13,095 $

t,709
2,9t1

-0-
-G.

264
46,774

34

185,309

-0-
9t8

470,613 $

3,3',t9

284,468
-0-

(232',)

363,410

-G.

8,810

861

|,409,879

14,220

69,448
(1,352,286)

0
0
0

-0-

{)-

A, To assist in the maintenance of the solvency of
SllS, the Legislature revised certain Nevada statutes.
For preservation of the liquidity of SllS, Nevada Revised
Statute 6168.110 was adopted. This statute authorized
the collection of a solvency surcharge by the
Commissioner of Insurance from each employer who was
insured by the Nevada Industrial Commission, or SllS at
any time after July 1, 1979, self-insured employers, and
any association of self-insured or private employers. To
date, no surcharge has been assessed.

Management believes that the combination of changes in
the claims management process and statutory changes
has made positive cash flow possible and has continued
to allow SllS to build its combined cash and investment
portfolio and to decrease the liability for incurred but
unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense.

SllS is involved in litigation arising out of matters incident
to the conduct of its insurance operations. ln the opinion
of management, resolution of this litigation will not have a
material adverse effect on SllS's financial position.
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(Note 15 continued)

B. In 1977 and 1989 the State issued $13.730,000
and $14,755,000, respectively, in General Obligation
Sewer lmorovement Bonds for and on behalf of Clark
County. To date, the bonds have been completely
serviced by Clark County, however, the State remains
contingentiy liable on the bonds through maturity on July
1, 2004. The amount of bonds outstanding at June 30,
1996, is $17,240,000.

C, The State Attorney General's Office reported that
the State or its officers and employees were parties to
numerous lawsuits, in addition to those described below.
In view of the financial condition of the State, the State
Attomey General is of the opinion that the State's
financial condition will not be materially affected by this
litigation, based on information known at this time.

Several of the actions pending against the State are
based upon the State's (or its agents') alleged negligence
in which the State must be named as a party defendant.
However, there is a statutory limit to the State's liability of
$50,000 per claim. Such limitation does not apply to
federal actions such as civil rights actions under 42
U.S.C. Section 1983 brought under federal law or to
actions in other states. Tort claims are handled in

accordance with NRS 41.

The State is a party to several lawsuits that have been
filed under the federal civil rights statutes. In the district of
Nevada, none of the United States district judges have
ruled that the Stiate is directly liable for damages awarded
under federal civil rights statutes. However, the State is
statutorily required to indemniry its officers and
employees held liable in damages for acts or omissions
on the part of its officers and employees occuning in the
course of their public employment. Several claims may
thus be filed against the State based on alleged civil
rights violations by its officers and employees. Since the
statutory limit of liability (discussed above) does not apply
in federal civil rights cases, the potential liability of the
State is not ascertainable at the present time.

D. PERS has entered into investment funding
commitments as of June 30, 1996. For alternative
investments, PERS has committed to tund $35,656,126
at some future date.

E. The State is obligated by leases accounted for as
operating leases. Operating leases do not give rise to
property rights as capital leases do. Therefore, the
results ofthe lease agreements are not reflected in
the account groups. Lease expense for the year ended
June 30, 1996, amounted to $14,937,810. Following is a
schedule of future minimum rental payments required
under operating leases that have initial or remaining
noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of
June 30, 1996, (expressed in thousands):

tr'or thc Y.sr
Endirg Jurc 30 Amouot

t997 S 12,653

t998 t0.t72
t999 8,934

2000 1,2t6
2001 4,833

Thereafbr 12,591

rotrl -{ 5S2_

F. The University System (a Component Unit) is a
defendant or co-defendant in legal actions in several
jurisdictions. Based on present knowledge, management
believes any ultimate liability in lhese matters, in excess
of insurance coverage, will not materially effect the
financial position of the University System.

G. The Tax Reform Act of 1986 imooses a rebate
requirement with respect to some bonds issued by the
State. Under this requirement, an amount equal to the
sum of (a) the excess of the aggregate amount earned
on all investments (other than certain specified
exceptions) over the amount that would have been
earned if all investments were invested at a rate equal to
the yield on the bonds, and (b) any income earned on the
excess described in (a), is required to be rebated to the
U.S. Treasury, in order for the interest on the bonds to be
excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes. Rebatable arbitrage is computed as of each
installment computation date. The present value of the
rebatable arbitrage has been recorded in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group at June 30, 1996.
Future calculations might result in different rebatable
arbitrage amounts.
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For th. Hscat Yg€r End.d June

ceneral Obliqation Bonds - The following bonds have
been sold afrer June 30, 1996:

$203,280,000 Series, July 1, 1996, A, B, C General
Obligation (Limited Tax) Bonds (Nevada Municipal Bond
Bank Project No's 52, 53, 54, 55 and 56) and Cultural
Affairs Bonds due in annual installments of $80,000 to

$7,755,000, plus interest, at 3.50% to 7.00o/o through May
15, 2016. Series 1996A also has term bonds of
$46,280,000 plus interest of 6.00% due May 15,2021,
$35,100,000 plus interest of 6.000/o due May 15,2024
and $27,115,000 plus interest ol 5.75o/o due May 15,

2026. Bonds are callable on or after May 15, 2006 at par
plus a premium of 1.0olo until May 14,2OO7, and at par

thereafrer. $199,220,000 Series 1996 A and B Bonds are
exempt from the constitutional debt limit, but $4,060,000
Series 1996 C Bonds are sub,ect to the constitutional
debt limit.

$41,905,000 Series, November 15, 1996 A and B

General Obligation (Limited Tax) Capital lmprovements
and Natural Resources Bonds due in annual installments
of $25,000 to $3,435,000 plus interest at 4.90% to 6.00%
through May 15, 2014, callable on or after November 15,

2006, in whole or in part, at par. $41,185,000 Series
1996 A Bonds are subject to the constitutional debt limit,

but $720,000 Series 1996 B Bonds are not subject to the

constitutional debt limit.

Mortoaoe Revenue Bonds - The following bonds have
been sold by Nevada Housing Division, an enterprise
fund. after June 30, 1996:

In July, 1996, the Division issued 1996 lssue C Single
Housing Revenue Bonds in the amount of $30,000,000.
The last maturity date is April 1, 2028.

In August, 1996, the Division issued 1996 Multi-Unit
Housing Revenue Bonds in the amount of $10,750,000.
The last maturity date is october 1, 2028.

In September, 1996, the Division issued 1996 lssue D
Single Family Housing Mortgage Bonds in the amount of
$30,000,000. The last maturity date is October 1, 2028.

In November, 1996, the Division issued 1996 Multi-Unit
Housing Bonds in the amount of $31,495,000. The last
maturity date is October 1, 2026.

ln November, 1996, the Housing Division issued 1996
lssue E Single Family Housing Mortgage Bonds in the
amount of $25,000,000. The last maturity date is October
1,2028.
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Combining, Individual Fund and Account
Group Statements and Schedules

scribed in the HOA 300 regulations) is an
additional requirement. Obtaining such satis-

factory work experience is solely the responsi-
bility of the student.

This program is designed for those who
have earned a grade point average of 2.50 or
better.

Candidates with management experience
and qualifying undergraduate academic
records should consider the graduate program.

Second Degree Program
Increasingjob opportunities for Hotel

College graduates have encouraged candidates
who hold other degrees to apply to the UNLV
Harrah College of Hotel Administration for a
second bachelor's degree. A special transfer
policy has been created by the College faculty
to clari! the requirements needed by such
applicans.

Under this plan, a Bachelor of Science in
Hotel Administration (B.S.H.A.) may be earned
in two semesters (36 credia) by studens hold-
ing undergraduate degrees in business, and in
three semesters (54 credits) by those holding
degrees in other disciplines.

Noncredit work experience for the equila-
lent of one summer (500 clock hours as de-
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The General Fund is maintained to account for financial resources traditionally associated with

General Fund

t that are not accounted for in another fund.

Good Neighbor Policy
In an effort to work with neighboring

states to provide aflordable education to our
residens, UNLV has developed a number of
exchange programs. A sample of such programs
is provided below.

Al individual who graduated from high
school or attended a community college in
Mohave Counry Arizona, or San Bernadino and
Inyo Counties, California, and who has main-
tained a legal bona fide resident status in one of
the above counties for a period of at least 12
consecutive months prior to the first semester
in which enrollment is sought, may be charged
reduced nonresident tuition. Furthermore, any
person who resides in one of the above counties
in which a designated high school or commu-
nity college is located and who has maintained
a bona fide legal resident status for a period of
at least 12 consecutive months prior to the first
day of the semesrer in which enrollmenr is

50

sought, may also be charged a reduced nonresi-
dent tuition.

Undergraduate children of UNLV alumni
who reside outside the state of Nevada will be
allowed to attend UNLV for a reduced out-of-
state tuition fee. This applies only to alumni
who have received the baccalaureate degree
from UNLV.

We stern Undo gr a du ate Ex change
(wuE)

Residents of Alaska, Colorado, Hawaii,
Idaho, Montana, New Mexico, North Dakota,
Sou*r Dakota, Oregon, and Wyoming may be
eligible for a reduced out-of-state tuition fee. As
a WUE participant, you will be charged tuition
at the reduced nonresident rate, or one and
one-half times the amount charged a resident
of Nevada.



Comparative Balance Sheet
General Fund

June 1996 with

Cash and pooled inve$nen1s:
Cash with tr€asurer
Cash in cuslody of olher officials

Food stamp coupons

Receivables:
Accounts receivable
Taxes feceivable
Accrued interest and dividends
lr ergovemmental receivables
Notea receir/able
Other receivablG

Oue from other funds
Due frgm component qnits
Interfund receivables
Advances to other funds
Ofrer essgts.'

Prepaid items

Total assets

LlaUlrlles:
Accounts payable and accruals:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabililies
Intergovemmental payablEs

Due to other funds
Due to component units
Detened revenue
other liabilities

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved:

Encumbrances and contracts
Advances
Balanc6 forward
Othet:
Prepaid items
Other

Unreseryed:
Deslgnated for budget stabilization
Undesignated deficit

Total ftrnd balances

Total liabilites and tund balances

$ 110,390,508
8,833,310

15,002,628

321,a27,2A6
27,103p47
99,729,113
11,125,67

594,012,459

4,412,2s
3,890,120

23E,,161,359

20,204,s08
EEs,91E

10,10724

totals for 1995

June 30, 1996

$ 430,2so,s17
I,664,823

24,252,244

4,956,s69
262,188,593

10,924,57A
91,9?0,723

7()E,469
-0-

20,432,503
4,287

571,851
3,890,120

20,204,508

$ 871,973,829

June 30,1995
(Restated)

$ ,|a9,33),{&1
I ,1,18,8,15

27,523,243

2,925,730
175,694,024
10,584,603
95,172,899

752,82
83,370

20,969,354
7,764

383,569
4,215p4

| 8,61 4,'t 3)

$ 847,406,767

$ 1 I 1,9d1,08!l
7 ,611,387

17,956,4{t6

390,258,725
u,808,214

102,195,813
6,776,741

67't,570,465

395,9.13
4,215,94

178,307,914

18,614,130
1,111,532

-0.
(26,809, r 57)

175,836,302

$ u7,ffi,767

Exhlbit A-1

lnqrease
(Decr€ase)

s (s9,079,s44
519,978

(3,270,95s)

2,030,E3S)
86,/t94,5@

339,975
(3,?52,176)

(44,363)
(83,370)

(s36,8s1)
p,4n)

1ffi,242
(325,820)

1,590,378

$ 24,567,062

$ (r,s72,s8r)
1,21,92.3

(2,953,868)

(68,431 ,4i|9)
(7,7O+,X27
(2,455,70O)
4,W,9%

ct7,558,006)

4,016,282
(32s,820)

60,153,,145

1,590,378
(22s,614)

10,107,24
26,809,157

102,125,068

$ 24,567,062

2n,!J61,370

$ 871,973,829
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Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995 Exhiblt A-2

June 30. '1996
June 30, 1995

(Restated)
lnctsase

(Deqrease)

Gaming tiaxss, fees, licenses
Sales taxes
Intergovemmental
Other taxes
Licenses, fees and permits
Sales and chaages for services
lnterest
Other

Cunent:
General govcrnment
Health and social services
Educ€tion and support services
Law, justice and public safety
Regulation of business
Recreation and resource development

lntetgovemmental:
Education
Other

Debt s€,ryica:
Principal
lnterest

Total sxpsndlturss

Ex@ss of r€venues over
expenditures

Proceeds trom caDital leasss
Proceeds from sale of fxed assetrs
Operating transfers in
TransFr trom comoonent unit
Operating transiers out
Transfer to component unit

Total other financing
sourco3 (uses)

Exc€ss (deficlency) ol revenues and other
fi nancing sources over expenditures
and other financing uses

Fund balances, July I

Residual equity transfers

Fund balancos, June 30

546,958,945
502,960,214
705,285,537
243,530,293

76,544,820
24,179,453
33,281,419
24,114,574

503,251,959
,146,503,559
656,471,689
260,510,525
68,131,698
23,236,088
21,793,082
20,577,618

43,706,986
56,456,655
48,813,848

(16,980,232)
4,413,122

943,365
11,488,337
3,536,956

I 2,156,855,255 2,OOO ,476,218

54,903,420
817,636,120
22,836,319

157,440,809
29,974,690
62,320,877

410,534,003
22,U7,909

152,089
35,700

1,578,381,966

422,094,252

817,742
't 18,139

31,990,599
21,392

(258,940,136)
(234,011,092)

(460,003,356)

(37,909,104)

218,745,406

(5,000,000)

$ '175,836,302

156,379,037

55,977,730
882,057,473
26,291,048

179,994,524
32,906,209
64,827,AM

519,363,206
30,741,341

250,385
50,702

1,074,3'10
u,421,353

3,454,699
22,553,715

2,931,519
2,506,937

108,829,203
8,193,432

98,296
15,002

214,078,4661,792,460,432

354,394,823 (57,699,429)

149,260
205,317

38,054,278

(76,36s,159)
(224 ,476,272)

(668,482)
87,178

6.063,679
141,429

182,574,977
9,534,820

(262,269,7 55\ 197,733,601

102,125,068

175,836,302

140,034,172

(42,909,104)

s,000,000

$ 277,961,370 $ 102,125,068



Special Revenue Funds
Special Revenue Funds account for the receipt and use of specific revenues that are legally restricted for panicular puqnses.

Students take classes in state-ofthe-art

facilities housed in Beam Hall



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

State Highway Accounts for the maintenance, Higher Education Capital Construction Accounts for
regulation, and construction of public highways and is the first $5,000,000 and 20o/o of the remaining annual
tunded through vehicle fuel taxes, federal funds, and slot machine tax, which is designated for capital
other charges (NRS 408.235). construction and payment of principal and interest of

construction bonds for higher education (NRS
class-Size Reduction Accounts for funding to be 463.385).
used to reduce the pupil-teacher ratio per class in
kindergarten through grade 12, with priority given to the Cleaning Up Petroleum Discharges Accounts for
earliest grades (NRS 388.730). fees collected and claims paid related to the use,

storage or discharge of petroleum (NRS 590.830).
Employment Security Accounts for the administration
of employment training programs (NRS 612.607), Hospital Care to Indigent PeFons Accounts for
unemployment compensation claims (NRS 612.605), taxes levied to provide care to indigent persons
and employment security laws (NRS 612.615). hospitalized from motor vehicle accidents; and for

taxes received and payments to counties for
Regulatory Accounts for receipts and expenditures supplemental medical assistance to indigent persons
related to investigations of gaming license applicants (NRS 428.175).
(NRS 463.331) and cash transactions of gaming
licensees (NRS 463.332), enforcement of regulations Tourism Promotion Accounts for room taxes and
on manufactured housing (NRS 489.491), enforcement other monies designated for the support of the
of regulations puruant to dairy products (NRS Commission on Tourism (NRS 231.250).
584.460), legal judgments against real estate
licensees (NRS 645.842), examining financial records Offenders' Store Accounts for operations of the
and asseb of authorized insurers (NRS 6798.300), general merchandise stores and snack bars used by
regulation of public utilities (NRS 703.147), and ofienders. Eamings, except interest, must be expende
regulation oftaxicabs (NRS 706.8825). for the welfare and beneft of all offenders (NRS

209.221).
Legislative Accounts for the operation of the
Legislature and Legislative Counsel Bureau (NRS Colorado River Commission Accounts for all general
218.085). administrative activity, costs of engineering studies,

analysis, negotiation, and other efforts necessary in the
Municipal Bond Bank Accounts for revenues and development of sources of water or power ftom the
expenditures associated with buying local government Colorado River (NRS 538.191), and records the
bonds with proceeds of State general obligation bonds development and sale of State lands in the Fort Mojave
(NRS 349.952), with financing the construction of local Valley (NRS 321.520).
govemment water treatment projects (NRS 350A.190),
and with operating a revolving fund to finance local Contingency Accounts for funds appropriated by the
govemment pollution control projects (NRS 445A.120). Legislature for contingencies. Funds can be allocated

to State agencies and officers by the Interim Finance
Workels' Compensation and Safety Records Commiftee upon recommendation of the Board of
assessments on insurers for compensation of injured Examiners (NRS 353.266).
workers and administration of regulations for employee
safety (NRS 616A.425), assesses self-insurers to pay Care of Sites for Radioactive Waste Disposal _
claims against insolvent self-insured employers (NRS Accounts for receipts for the care of sites for the
6168.309), accounts for compensation benefits to disposal of radioactive waste (NRS 459.231).
physically impaired employees from a subsequent
injury in the course of employment (NRS 6168.554), Stabilize the Operations of State Government
and accounts for injury claims of employees of Accounts for funds appropriated by the Legislature to
uninsured employers (NRS 616A.430). be expended only if actual revenues for the biennium

fall short bv 5% or more from anticioated revenues or
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the Legislature and Govemor declare that a fiscal
emergency exists (NRS 353.288).

Miscellaneous Accounb for receipts and expenditures
related to compensation of vic'tims of crime (NRS
217.26O)i fees related to private investigators and
recoveries for unfair trade practices (NRS 228.096);
prosecution of racketeering (NRS 207.415); the office
of advocate for customers of public utilities (NRS

228.31O\i administration of capital improvement
projects (NRS 341.146)i and substance abuse
education, prevention; enforcement and treatment
(NRS 458.400). lt also accounts for appropriations
and interest income for support of museums and

history (NRS 381.0064); loans for farm projects (NRS
516.405); fees collected from owners of mobile home
parks to provide mobile home lot rent assistance to
low-income mobile home owners (NRS 1 188.215);
liquor taxes collected for and gifrs received by the
Department of Human Resources (NRS 232.355);
loans and stipends to students in professional and
graduate programs where such education is not
available from an institution within the State (NRS

397.063); and appropriations, donations and interest
income to support the National Judicial College and the
National College of Juvenile and Family Law
(NRS1.470 and 1 .480).



Combining Balance Sheet
Soecial Revenue Funds

June 30, 1996 with comparative totals fot 1995

State
Highway

Class-size Employmcnt
Reduction Secudty Regulatory Legislalive

Cash end Noled investments:
Cash with treasurer
Cash In custody of other otticials

Inv6tmEnls

RocaivaUas:
Accounts rec€iyable
Tax6 rec€iyable
Accrued interesl and dMdends
I niergovemmental receivables
Notes receivable

Due from other funds
Due from component unit
lnterfund receivables
hve orY
AdvarrcF to other tunds
R€slriqled assds (non.cash)
Prepald llems

Tolal assets

Uabltlt1€.r:
Accounb payaue and accruab:
Accounts payable
Acerued p€yroll
Inlergovemmental payables

Conlracts pafable
Due lo other funds
Due lo componenl unil
Detered revenue

Other liab&lhs:
P4/able trom re<dctred ass€ts

Totrl llabilities

Fund b.tances:
Reseryed:
Encumbranc6 and contracts
Invenlory
Advances
Balanc6 foNard
Olher

Fiscal eme€ency
Inveslments in municipal s€curitiF
R€volving loans
Other

Unteseryed:
U ndesignated

Toial tund balances

Total liabilitlas and tund balances

1'1,312,950 S 17,269,,$3
205,117 43,125

5E9,130 59,886
+-G

3,8,13 6,E64

29,595 529,471
-Ur JJZ
-G -O-
+ 253,.186
-{]. -0-
-G4

134,646,123 $
864,515

578,339
12,214,92.+
8,r45,781

{-
20,u2,204

{r
4,424

r0,r39,33
24,767

3E,888,665+

7,393,'t15 $
-u-

12,163,590 $
225

-G.

71,7U
23,144

+.
1,669,616

.(!

.G

.G
4

{r-
{r+
-G

4171 ,A35

-G
-o.
+.
-{r + 30,632 42,585

s 2x,e€7,N $ 11,564,950 $ 14,167,534 $ 12,171,267 $ 1E,205,292

$ 4,121,M $
5,685,268

11,363,E91

9,'t75,871
12,755,565

125,673
3,793,E23

3E2,288 $
458,884
21, 4

a61,702

+.

442,418 $
185,280

oo7

1,394,204
6,545

4,26,137

-G

+$
4-

-0-

1,14I3,277
391
-{!

185,475
42,766

38,E66,865

E5,910,365 -(! 1,747,451 1,416,909

103,5,14,50,|
10,139,329

m,767
13,214,635

-{L

-0- 433,543
-G .0-
-(! -0-
+-G

335,688
253,486

'14.395,109

-0.+

-0-

87,210

+

4.
.0-

-{!
4

13,019,672 11,564,950 .fi,9E6,540 5,A28,475 t,804,100

t 39,9,16,904 11,564,950 12,420p53 s,915,685 .t 6,788,38it

2s,as7,269 $ fi,s64,950 $ 14,t67,s34 $ 12,171,267 $ 1E.2e5.292



Exhibit &1
Page 1 of 2

Higher
Workers' Education Cleaning uP

Hospital
Care to
Indiger Tou srn

Plomotion
Municipal Compensation CaPital Pelrolrum
Bond Bank and safety Conslruction Dischatges Persons

ofierders' ColoradoRivcl
Store Cormission

s 31.7s5,'f39 I 16,393,774 $ 24,7€F,704 $ 1,829,779 $ 2,762,749 $ 4,067,961 $ 1,693,168 $
-o- 300 -0- -G + -G -0-

391,974,T2

10,6,7$

327,OO1
-(r

.G

-0-

-&

1z3
57,808

243,z'31

il{19,'t 64
-0-
.G
-{t

+.
-G

,lo,3Eo

-(r

-+
+.

4

-&
-G

703,087

+

976

251,048

+
+
4

3,9i13,@6
m
+.

38,586

11,547

305,527

-o-

.0-

-0-
-0-
-o-
-G
-(l

.0-

376

-G.
7,491

-0-
-G
4
-{r
{)-

+$
4

13,431

1,500

16,760
88,367

67,68'l
-u-

2,52.

32,747

45,470

$ 434,520,247 $ 17,194,400 $ 24,804,084 $ 1,829,n9 $ 3,ss8,572 $ 4,075,E2E $ 2'261'407 $ 4'299'606

250 $
-G

1,794,1n

3,335,070

784,632 $
136,909

20

-n-
2,%1,84

2@

_G$

12,760,238
-G

986,684 $
{-

120,172

.0.
147,553
30,66'l

-0-

656,374 $ 196,752 $ 26,3z3
19,E45
2,113

-G
651

5.1m,ffi 3,873,1,15 12,7@,m 1,287,080 14,931 831.7M 25.009 ,€,9t3

-u-
-u-

-0-

-0-
-G
-G

-G
+.
{-
+.

-G
-G

++
-G.

.G

15,160
-u-
-u-
-0-

2,111
316,215

1,097

-G

-().
-{)-

-0-391,974,362
37,378,76

37.7g313,260,7l|512,0/a,E'16s42,6993,543,6413'28'p641'668'0724'249,576-
429,390,801 13,321,255 12,043,8'16 542,699 3'543,641 3,24,124 1,9E6,398 4'250'673

$ 4s4,52o,247 $ 17,194,,100 $ 24,804,084 $ 1,829,29 $ 3,ss8,572 S l'mf'828 $ 2,m1'47 $ 4'299,606
-----+,-,
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Combining Balance Sheet
Special Revenue Funds

Exhibit &1
June 30, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995 page 2 of 2

c
for Radioaclive Operations of

Waste State
Total All Funds

Contingency Dlsposal Government Miscellaneous 1996 (Redated)

Cash and pgded invsstnen&j
Cash \'vllh tre6surer
Cash in custody of other officials

lnvestmenb

Receivaues:
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Accrued interest and dlvidends
Intergovemmental receitrablG
Notes receiyable

Due from other tunds
Due from componenl unlts
Interfund receivables
Inventory
Ad!,/anc6 to othea funds
Restricted assets (non-cash)
Prepaid items

Total assets

Llabllltles:
Accounb payable and accruab:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Intergovemmental payables

Conlracts payable
Due to othef funds
Due to component units
Defened revenue

Olher liabilillas:
Payable from restrided assels

Tot l lhDilities

Fund batances:
Reseryod:
EncumbEnc€s and contracts
Inventory
Advances
Balances lorward
Other:
Fiscal emergency
Investments in municlpal securitiF
RevoMng l@ns
Other

Unrcseryed:
Und6lgnated

Total fund balances

$ 16,301,s24 $
{J-

-0-
-0-+

4,WO

25,000
-u-

3,6,1E+
{)-
-0-

8,472,730 S

+

+
+

123,392,226
-0-

-0-

130 759

+

4

-0- $ 10,040,6s6 $ 304,810,.141 $ 259,23,557-0- -G 1,113,532 8,007,328

-0- 11,500 391,985,862 193,,t36,500

26,794 1,,106,328 1,s61,926
-G. 12,499,474 11 ,017,$7

107 107 47,7E1
85,717 21,#5,722 52,737,65ii

2,411,542 2,811 ,s42 2,817,319

256,713 150,392,504 142,711,852
4. 392 12,998
+. I,072 5,881
-G. 10,709,030 11,U7,N7
-G 28,767 34,625
4- 3E,888,865 33,621,762-0- -0- 73,217 87,143

$ 16,374,972 $ 8,603,i|E9 $ 123,392, $ lg9!!9x $ e36,113,ess $ 7't6,620,7ee

18,674 $
.G

4-
1,054,485

4

361,754 $
60,578
15,706

-0-
403,180

66,070

9,129,660 $
6,596,703

13,420,787

9,361,3,{6
35,872,86E

1e6,244
6,088,552

11,303,373
6,193,627
9,337,401

13,776,871
24,883,232

,19,923

3,986,568

',825 
$ .0-$

-{r
11,&

38,848,865 33,621,762
'| ,073,1 59 13,234 + 907,839 121 s45gx 103,152,757

-G
.G

-G
44,&O

+
-G

+
-{!

{)-
+

12,936 104,492,7fi 106,529,508
4 10,7G1,030 11,M7,@7
+ 2A,767 30,978-0- 27,609,74 32,78f,,74

-0- 123,392,% 100,000,000
-G 391,974,T2 193,.t25,000
4 37 37A,76 5E,EO7,34I)

7,811 ,542 7,856,342 7,8E4,519

15,257,013 8,590,255 -o- 4,500,716 111,126,ss7 103,256,939

15,301,El3 8,5 ,2s5 123,392,26 12,325,194 814,568,930 613,468,042

8,603,489 g 123,392,226 g 13,233,033 $ 936,113,9ss $ 716,620,799:-_-_
Total liabilities and tund balances $ 16,374.972 $
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Special Revenue Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995

State
Highway

$4
120,n7,492
158,254,013
97,54,978

8,302,257
9,275,444
6,296,823

-0-

65,937,695
-0-

344,182,88
-G

27,496

Class-size
Reduction

Employment
Security Regulatory Legislativc

@
Gaming tax6, fees, licensG
Inte€ovenmeotal
Other tax6
Licens6. fe€s and permits
Sales and chalges for servlces
lnterest
Other

General goveanment
Health and social serv|?es
Edu6tion and support seMa€s
Law, juslic€ and public safety
Regulation of business
Transporiation
Recreation, resource dev€lopment

lntergovemmentd:
Edu6tion
Othef

Debt seryice:
Principal
lnteresl
Bond issue cgsts

Total expendilures

Exc6s (deficiency) ot revenues
over expenditurF

Proceeds trgm caDital leas€s
Proceeds lrom sale of bonds
Proc€eds from sale of fo(ed assels
Operating transteF in
Transter from component unil
Operating transfers out
Transfer to component qnit

Tolal other financing
sources (uses)

Exc€ss (deficiency) of rcvenuF and
other linancing sources o,/er
expenditurE and other tinancing us€s

Fund balances, July 1

Residual equily transfeF in

Fund balances. Junc 30

+$
-G

17,706,356
.G

+$
25,980,733

5,736,06i1
-0-

242,276
360,959

4,9.|0,341 $
132,62

6,1180,931
7,0F'5,474

19,245
12,763

+

4 797,379 82,E69 391,586

ues 399,9E5,007 18,875,921 33,157,410 18,E43,275 1,204,91a

-0,

-0-
-0-
.G

43,446'173

{J-
25,1,f5,806

-0.

1,944

17,570,511

.G

-0-

+
-0-
-0-

1U,874
36,EOg

4.

{-
.G

687,757 -0- 4.
156,8,15 -G -o-

4 -0- -0-

41 0,992,656 43,4$,173 ?5,1,15,806 15,168,216 17,712,198

(11,007,6,19) (24,570,252) 8,0't 1,604 3,67s,059 (16,507,280)

-u-
2,686,713

(2,s47,966)

27,725,925
-o.

50
307,340

-{r
(5,760,2O4\

1,129,643

(4,742,3s7)

0
0
0

12251943
70 000

0
0

0
0

0
0

-0- (130,680)

(261,2s3) 27,5%,245 (s,4s2,814) (3,608,934) 12,321,943

(11,268,902) 3,024,993 2,558,790 66,125 (4,185,337)

151,2r5,806

.G

E,539,957 9,86r,293 5,6119,560 20,973,720

I 139,9,16,904 $ 11,564,950 $ 12,420,083 $ 5.915,685 $ 16.788,383



Exhibit &2
Page 1 of 2

Higher Hospital
Workels' Education Cleaning up Cate to

Indigent Tourism Offenders' coloradoRiver
Store Conmission

Municipal
Bond Bank

compensation Capilal Petloleum
andSatety Construcllon Dlscharges Pelsons Promotion

-G$
4,063,866

20,132,34

-0- $ 14,934,186 $ +$
8,936,730

209,500

96, r 04
14,350

_0_ $
339,000

7,721,43
-0-
-0.

289,860

_0_ $

7,410,972

4,009

$7

-0- $

6,727,604
60,6't0

1,207,626
16,653,812

191,42
5,094

't,'t06,664
1,270,991

+
++

569,3,13
334,264

-0-

-(l
-o-

-{r
+
-{t

1n,604 24,910

24,1 ,214 20,435,589 14,934,186 9,255,684 E,350,3,13 7,47,971 6,917,818 928,517

500

-0-

-G.

+

10,253,&
-G
-G

-G
.G

9,321,257

5,054,797

.G
2,964,193

-o-
-G
-(r

5.587.0E0

4-

5,632,951
{-
{!
{r

++
+

813,320

1,105,617

{r
-0-
.o.

4,169,713
-G

-0-{)"

2,n7

+.+
4
{r
.G

.G
-G
-(r
-G

4,172An 10,?53,49 -G 9,321,257 8,0'rE,990 5,587,080 s,632,95r 1,918,937

m,oz31 1oia2l4 14,934,186 (64,573) 331,353 1,900,891 1,2A4,67 (990,4T)

194,414,2fi -G
1,075

-o. + 4,737 -G 24,311
-G

-G
(36,979,s86)

-&
+
{-

(266,096)

+
+

(2,245)(5,973,s82) (12,953,806) (366,052) (1,sO0) (1,088,.149)
-G' (2,.130,400) -0- -S +

1s7,434,664 (s,s72,s07) (1s,384,206) (317,31s) (1,s00) (1,064,138) (266,09s) (22,24s1

177,45a,6A

251,932,343

4,209,633

9,111,622

(4s0,020)

12,,193,866

(38r,888)

924,587 3,213,788

oJo. /cJ

2/o7,371

-0-

1,014,772

967,626

(1,012,665)

5,263,338

$ 429,390,801 $ 13,321,2ss $ 12,0,13,846 $ 542,699 $ 3,543,64r S 3,244,124 $ 1,966,398 $ 4,250,673
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Special Revenue Funds

Exhivt &2
For the Fiscal Yeat Ended June 30, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995 Paga 2 of 2

CareofSiies Stablllzcthe
forRadioac{ive Operaiionsof

Was{e State
Disposal Govemment Miscellaneous

Total All Funds

Contingcncy

2,095,631
765,313
5n,144

4,280,E38
354,081

-0-
2,142

r9,791,687
31,033,344

577,1a4
75,851,84
25,766,595

344,1A2,863
15,723,839

43/$,173
8,3@1,980

799,U2
't9s,598

1995
(Restated)

20,437,40
38,616,524

5E7.EsE
66,707,096
28,950,859

368,0i1{),163
14,54o,272

38,543,072
4,863,548

797,87
231,106

5E3,018,4a5

(35,'1E0,324)

1,854,753
63,900,000

4,947
175,550,464

-0-
(5e,1s3,841)

(130,680)

@
Gaming tax6, fees, llcens€E
Inlergovemmental
Other tax6
Lic€nses. te€a and Demlts
salea and charges for servicG
lntercs{
Other

Total revenues

General govemment
Health and social seMces
Edu6tion and support services
Law, ir.6{ice and public safety
Regulation ol businGs
Transportalion
Recreation, resourc€ developmea

lnteeovemmentaL
Educatlon
Other

D6bt seryice:
PrinciFl
lnterest
Bond issue cosls

Tolal erp€ndilurea

Excess (deticiency) of revenues
over ependitur6

Proceeds trom capital le€se6
Prcceeds from sale ot bonds
Prcc€eds from sale of lb(ed ass€ts
Operating transfers in
Trdnster frofi compone. unlt
Operating lransteF out
Transfer to comDonent unit

Tolal olher financing
sources (uses)

Excess (deticiency) of revenues and
olier financing sources over
oeenditures and olher linancing uses

Fund b6hnces, July I

R6idual equity transfeF in

Fund balances. Jun€ l0

+$

4+

4-$
-(r
.(}

347,818+
512,569

4,

-G$

-0-

4.$ 19,a74,527 $ 18,342,039
-G 152,031,369 171,307,371

1,930,626 230,830,986 199,265,604
3.394,076 10a,E?9,771 102,W,473

4 16,72,1@ 15,957 ,233686,538 34,147,66a 24,6A9,42A
-0- 1,114,4n 10,1z3f# '15,340,013

-G 7,125,717 572,559,957 547,83E,16r860,387

125,045
4+

97,961

-s

+.

-0-
-0-

-{r
-G+

47,42A

4.

4.+
-(L

{.
{.
-G

-o-
-o-
-0- 2,207 3,000

223,006

(223,006)

-0-
4-

E,333,259

(2,630,733)

+.
-G
-(r

(208,343)

++
2i,392,26

-o-
{'

-o-
-0-
-G

528,'t30

(138,657)

194,414,2fi
4,9G5

76,428,27
70,000

Q4,O79,s7s)

47.424 4 8,095,229 565,735,796

4- (969,512) 6,824,1618r2,959

5,702,526 (208,343) 23,392,26 389,473 194,276,727 182,064,6,t3

5,479,520 6M,616 23,392,26 (5E0,039) 201,100,8EE 146,884,319

9,422,293 7,985,639 100,000,000 12,905,233 613,,168,(X2 461,583,7

+ 5,000,000

$ 15,301,813 S 8,s90,255 5 123,392,26 $ 12,325,194 $ 8'14,s68,930 $ 613,,158,042

curent:



Debt Service Funds account for the tof

Debt Service Funds
and interest on

-.t!lrr..'r'-. '.-.,l{.?^s4r.r5..,.-.

Transfer Policv
For over twenty-five years, thousands of

studens have transferred to UNLV's William F.

Harrah College of Hotel Administration.
Transfer studens come from every state in the
nation and many foreign countries. The college
takes great pride in being a *transfer friendly"
program.



DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Consolidatod Bond Intercst and Redemption - Accumulates monies for the payment of principal and interest on
general obligation bonds ofthe State. Bonds have been issued for the following purposes: (NRS 349.090)

Outstanding
Final Balance

Purpose lssued Maturity

2016

2015

2013

2025

20'11

Purchase of MuniciDal Securities

Capital Construclion, Acquisition
and Renovation

University Projects

Recreation and Resource Development

Various PurDoses

$ 387,955,000

620,905,000

155,394,000

526,001,245

23,885,000

$ 343,275,000

370,200,000

78,s80,000

u3,406,245

18,475,000

$ 't,7'14,'140,245 $ 1,153,936,245

Highway Revenuo Bonds - Accumulates monies for the payment of principal and interest on the following highway
revenue bonds of the State: (NRS 349.300)

Highway lmprovement
(Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax) $ 152.100.000 1999 59,820,000

Some issues have been partially refunded by various refunding issues.
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Combining Balance Sheet
Debt Service Funds

June 30, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995 Exhibit Ci

Total Both Funds
Cons Bond
InteEst and
Redemption

Highway
Revenue
Bonds 't 996 1995

Cdsh and pooled investments:

Cash with treasurer
Cash in custody of other officials

Intergovemmental receivables

Due from other funds

Total assets

Uabilites:
Accounts payable and accrudls:

Accounts payable

Matured interesl payable

Matured bonds payable

Interesl payable

Due to other funds

Due to component unils
Bonds payable

Total liabilitles

Fund balances:
Reserved for debt service

Total liabilities and fund balances

$ 20,528,505

12,921

5,791,709
12,298,397

852,353

-0-

244,118

21,380,858
12,921

5,791,709
12,582,515

18,033,993

15,968

4,O41,281

2,211,648

$ 38,631,532 $ 1,136,471 $ 39,768,003 $ 24,342,890

109,915

7,921

5,000

7,714,374

-0-
4,515,000

109,915

7,921

5,000

7,714,374
-0-

4,515,000

7,921

5,000

3,'t94
73,873

'190,3't4

-0-

4-
-0-

12,352,210 12,352,210 280,302

26,279,322 1,136,471 27,415,793 24,062,588

$ 38,63r,532 $ 1,136,471 $ 39,768,003 $ 24,342,890



Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Debt Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 with compantive totals for 1995 Exhibit C-2

Total Both Funds
Cons Bond
lntergst and
Redemptlon

Highway
Rgvenue
Bonds 1996 1995

@
Intergovernmental

Taxes

lnteresl
Total revenues

@
Debt serr'ice:

Principal

Interest, fiscal charges

Bond issue costs
Arbitrage payments

Refunding payments

Total expendiiures

Deflciency of revenues

over expenditures

Proceeds from sale of bonds

Operaling transfeF in

Transfer from component unit
Transfer to component unit
Proceeds of refunding bonds
Paymenl to refunded bond agent

Total other flnancing sourcas (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
fi nancing sources over expenditures

and other financing uses

Fund balanc€s, July 'l

Fund balances, June 30

$ 10,366,876

47 ,194,7 40

2,691,530

60,253,146

-0-

34,842,390
10,366,876

82,037,130

402,668
79,229,197

2,691,530 3,702,018
95,095,536 83,333,883

47,015,000

54,860,506

267,543
-0-

30,420,000

4,928,880

-0-

77,435,000
59,789,386

267,U3

58,680,000
42,217,146

170,756
4,277 ,200

661.183

102,143,049

(41,889,903)

115,750

45,827,485
-0-

(193,637)

35,348,880

(506,490)

137,491,929 105,006,285

(42,396,393) (22,672,402)

0

0

0

0

0

0

115,750

45,827,485
-0-

{193,637)
-0-

24,408,540
314,838

(348,564)

84,177 ,383
(84,177,3S3)

45,749,598

3,859,695

22,419,627

45,749,598 24,374,814

(506,490)

1,642,961

3,353,205 1,702,412

24,062,588 22,360,176

$ 26,279,322 $ 1,'r 36,471 $ 27,415,793 $ 24,062,588





Graduate Courses
In 1983, the Master of Science degree was

initiated. Currently there are approximately 65
studens in the program. The Master of Science
degree offers students the ability to study, in
seminar format with no more than 15 students
per class, topics ranging from hotel law to
information technology in the hospitality
industry The William F. Harrah College of
Hotel Administration offers one of the most
extensive hospitality graduate curriculum in
the world.

Hotel Law
Organizational Theory Applied to the Service

Industry

Labor Management Reladons Feasibility
Staff Planning and Operational Analysis for

the Hospitality Industry
Computer Application to the Hospitality

Industry
Accounting for the Casino Hotel
Mathematics of Casino Games
Gaming Regulation and Control
Sociology of Gaming
International Tourism
Hotel Administration Seminar
Employee Development
Facilities Planning and Equipment
Hotel Realty
Practicum in Hotel Education
Seminar in Hotel Research
Association Management



Capital Projects Frmds
Capital Projects Funds account for the monies used for the acquisition and construction of major

facilities.

Operational Analysis in Hospitality Manage-
ment

Human Resources and Behavior in the Hosoi-
tality Industry

Financial Analysis for the Service Industries
Laws of Innkeeping and Food Service
Principles and Practices in Hotel Management
Principles of Casino and Gaming Management
Principles and Practices in Food Service Man-

agement
Information Technology in the Hospitality

Industry
Research Methodology
Marketing Systems
The Dynamics of Tourism
Customer Development Strategies for the

Casino and Gaming Industry

Human Dynamics and Organizational Leader-
ship

Research Seminar in Hotel Administration
Research Seminar in Food Service Adrninistra-

tron
Research Seminar in Hospitality Education
Research Seminar in Casino and Gaming

Management
Seminar in Hospitality Finance
Independent Study and Research
Special Topics in Hospitality Managemenr in

the Areas Of: Hotel Management, Tourism
and Convention Management, and Food
and Beverage Management

Professional Paper
Thesis
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Parks Capital Proiect Construction Accounts for the Capital lmprovement Program - Special Proiects

parks improvements program for the Division of Accounts for asbestos removal and master plan

State parks of the Department of Conservation and projects of the Public Works Board (NRS 341.146).
Natural Resources (NRS 407.O65).

Capital lmprovement Program - Prison System

Capital improvement Program - Motor Vehicle Accounts for capital improvement proiects for the

Accounts for capital improvement pro,ects for the Department of Prisons {NRS 341.146).
Department of Motor Vehicles and Public Safety

{NRS 341.146}. capital lmprovement Program - Military Accounts
for capital improvement projects for the Department

Capital lmprovement Program - Human Resources of Military (NRS 341 .1 46).

Accounts for capital improvement projects for the
Department of Human Resources (NRS 341.146). Capital lmprovement Program - Wildlife Accounts

for capital improvement proiects for the Department

Capital lmprovement Program - University System of Wildlife {NRS 341.146).
Accounts for capital improvement projects for the
University and Community College System of Miscellaneous Accounts for capital improvement

Nevada (NRS 341 .146). projects which are not directed by the Public works

Capital lmprovement Program ' General State
Government Accounts for capital improvement
projects for general government {NRS 341 .1 46).
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Combining Balance Sheet
Capital Projects Funds

June 30. 1996 with

Palks capital
Plojcct

Construction

ctP
Human

Resources

ctP
University
Sysiem

$ 2,419

778,419
158,519

81

-u-

-G

ctP
Gen State

Govt

$ 3,924
3,607

2,69E,131
1,14o,X1

634,9g2
+

ctP
Motor

Vehicle

Cash with lreasurer
Receivables:
Inlergovernmental receivable

Due from other funds

Totalassets

@
Liabilities:
AccounE payable and accruals:

Accounts payable
Inlergovemmental payables

Contracts payaue:
ContEcts payable
Retention payable

Due to other funds
Defened revenues
Due to componenl unils
Deposils

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Resei.ved:
Encumbrances and conttacts

UhreseNed:
Oesignated tor approved

capital projects
LJnd6ignated

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and tund balances

2,967,1A7

24,837

24,837

11r.| t11
998

327,412

$ 2,992,024 s 10,284,37'l

$ 2A,022

36,926
27,8$
'tt tt.l

5,863,923 $ 19,028,093 $ 4A9€J22

0
0 7,093 490,000

$ 19,035,186 $ ,18,980,122$ 5,863,923

90,/t38

18,095,7,$ 15,159,750

19,035,186 't 9,640,695190,280

219,&2

2,581,882

't03,904

-u-

141,710

1,562,300

4,159,913

2,734,56

27,1@,81
+

0
0

2,801,744 10,180,467

$ 2,992,024 $ 10,284,37'l $ 5,863,923 $ 19,035,186

29,339,427

$ 48,9E0,122
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Exhibi. D1
Total all Funds

ctP
Prison

Plojects System Military
ctP

Wildlite

ctP
Special ctP

Miscellaneous 1996 1996

s 26,47 $ 55,122,s87 S 689,782 $ 4,712,305 $

-G -G 2,557,510 -0-
-G 12,725 -0- 55,026 43fai3 10,960,036 97,697,472

S 26,,fo7 $ 55,135,312 $ 3,247,292 $ 4,767,331 $ 438,233 $ 150,20,201 $ '160,420,111

-0-$137,227,818$61,,190,394

{- 2,582,U7 1,231,8,1s

398$-0-$41.139$,13.230

-0- ,191,5,{5

747 -0-

-0- 10,188

29,238 2t 1,536

5,723,963 7,364,4N

4,275 -o-
-(L

r,566,183
-0- 56.472 538,3E4 4- -0- 2,082,995 3,886,719

421,73126,47
-0-
-0-
{-

1,024 -0- -0-
-0- |,114p20 -0-
-0- -G -0-
-s -{! {-

-0- 674,612
-0- 1,114,320

-0- 126,26
-0- 33,255,,198 23,116,'168

26,47 553,323 3,218,87 1,l8s 10,180 42,921,765 35,170,059

0 79,415 10,736,3202,698,6603,716,201

-G 50,E65,784 + 4,766,1$

6,86't,257

'r 'r 8,388,795
-(L

3,€,630 99,782,371
-G (2,670,255) 4. (2,670,2ss)

4- 54,581 ,989 2a,QS 4,766,15 42a,o4s | 07,8,18,,{36 125,250,052

$ 26,&7 $ 55,13s,312 $ 3,247,292 $ 4,767,331 $ €8,233 $ 150,770,201 $ 160,420,111



Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Capital Projects Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995

Parts Capital
P.oject

Construction

ctP
Human

Resources

ctP
University
Syslem

ctP
Gen State

Govt

6,957,€9

6,957,€9

ctP
Motor

Vehicle

ts

$ 454,159 0$
0

2,451 800,852

2,451 800,852454,159

2,458,952 2A24,053 1,27A,12s

2,45A,952 2,424,055 1,278,125

(2,004,793) \2,424,0,€5) (1,275,674)

-G.0$
0

-0-

4-
-0-
-0-

-0-

(s 000)

Total cxpenditules

Deficiency of revenues
over expenditures

Proceeds trom sale of bonds
Operating transfers in
Ope6ting transfers out
Transler to component unit

Total other fnancing sources (uses)

Excess (deticiency) of revenues and olher
financing sources over expenditures
and other financing uses

Fund balances, July 1

Fund balances, June 30

423,012 (5,000)

(1,58r,78r) (2,429,0E5].

4,383,525 12,609,522

(1s,341,717) 9,371,9ol

(14,s4O,865) 2,414,$2

14,540,E65 26,924, 5

-0-
423,012

800,E52

24p42,064
-0-
-0-

(39,383,781)

(6,9s7,439)

9,994,938
36,611

(659,8|8)

(1,275,674)

6,997,EE7

$ 2,801,744 $ t0,180,,167 $ 5,722213 $ -0- $ 29,339,427
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Exhibit D2

ctP
Special ctP
Proiects System Miliiary

ctP
Wldlife

ctP
Prison

Total all Funds

Miscellaneous 1996 1995

-0- $ 4- $ 3,093,583
44,626 -0-

0$
0
0

-G $ 3,547,742 $ 2,240,274
-G U,626 270,5EE

-G 8,825 5A4 -0- 817,574 199,369

-O- 93,,151 3,099,029 + 4A49p42 2,710,231

{- 4,930,027 9,1s7,s64 434,322 2W,725 27,931,209 4,54,344

-0- 4,930,027 9,157,564 434,32. 290,725 27,931,2@ 4,5/F'344

-{)- (4,E36.s76) (6,05E,s3s) (4343221 (M,725) (23,!€1,fr7' (37,8:t8,113)

45,000
-G
-0-

-u-
(12,394)

10,962,997
266,000

(228,815)
-0-

-0-
-0-

(120,103)
-G

-0-
718,770

44,999,999
1,4E9,393

(1,025,960)

23,520,000
95,'t06,347

(599,298)
(39,383,781) (23,520,000)

(12,84) 11,000,182 i1s,0o0 (120,1m) 718,770 6,079,6s1 94,507,049

(12,394) 6,163,606 (6,013,s3s) (ss4,as) 428,045 (17,401,616)

12,394 44,418,383 6,041,9,|{) 5,320,57'l -0- 12525,0,052 6E,581,116

$+$s4,581,989$28,/|05$4,766,1,16$428,0,15$107,Er|a,.t36$125,250,052
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Enterprise Funds
Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to

private businesses. The intent of the state is that the cost of providing these goods and services be
financed or recovered ori

circumstances with another undersraduate
Hotel c()urJc. HOA 3()0 i. a non-cridit course
that requires studens to find a paid position
within the hospitality industry The approved
practical experience required in HOA 300
allows a diversification of positions and a
diversification of employers in a profit-making
segment of the hospitality industry. Each work
experience is evaluated on an individual basis.

Experiential Learning
Opportunities

While classroom lectures are important to
any subject area, nothing can compare to
actual work experience in the field. The unique
business enrironment of the Las Vegas area
provides numer()us outlets for UNLV Hotel
Administration students to obtain the practical
rvork experience required by rhe College for
graduation.

Hotels, resorts, casinos, and restaurants
have positions that fulfill the specifications of
rhe work experience. Ar rhe same rime. slu-
dents earn income during this professional
education.

There are two work requirements. HOA
300 is required; the other, HOA 450, is also
required but can be replaced under special
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:

Students t"jq o aarie$ of educational
opportunities in the William F. Harrah
College of Hotel Administration.
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Colorado River Commission Water Treatment
Accounts for the operations of the Alfred Menitt
Smith Water Treatment Facility. Such operations
were transferred on January 1 , 1996 to the Southern
Nevada Water System (SNWfi), a utility supplying
water to retailing entities in Clark County, Nevada
(AB.542, Chapter 393, 1995).

Colorado River Gommission Water Transmission
Accounts for the ooerations of the Robert G. Griffith
Water Project (federal facilities). Such operations
were transferred on January 1, 1996 to SNWF (A.8.
542, Chapter 393, 1995). ,{

Colorado River Commission Power Marketing
Accounts for the State's share of the cost of uprating
the generating facilities at Hoover Dam, which was
financed through the sale of bonds. The fund also
records purchases and sales of power and other
power marketing related activities (NRS 538.211).

Housing Division Accounts for the State program
to assist private lenders in providing low interest
housing loans to low and moderate income
households. The program is financed through the
sale of bonds (NRS 319.170).

Industrial Insurance Accounts for the ooerations of
the State Industrial Insurance System. The system
provides statutory benefits of medical care, disability
comoensation and rehabilitation services for workers
who are injured or contract an occupational disease
in the course of their employment (NRS 616B.086).

Forestry Nurceries Accounts for the self-
supporting operation of State nurseries, which
propagate, maintain and distribute plants for
conservation purposes (NRS 528.100).

Prison Industry Accounts for a self-supporting
program of job training through the employment of
inmates in farming and manufacturing (NRS
209.1 89).

Nevada Magazine Accounts for the operation of the
publication, Nevada Magazine, which is published to
promote tourism (NRS 231.290).

Marlette Lake Water System Accounts for the
costs of operating the State-owned Marlefte Lake
Water System. The system serves the State
Buildings and Grounds Division and portions of
Carson City and Storey County (NRS 331.180).
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Combining Balance Sheet
Enterprise Funds

June 30. 1996 with comparative totals for 1995
Cololado Rlvor Commlsslon

Wator
Treatrnenl

Waler Power Housing
Dlvislon

lndustrlal
tnsutancoT.anlmllslon irarkgtlng

@
Cash and poolecl inveslments
Cash with treasurer
Cash in custody of other officials

Investments

R€c€ivab/esr
Accounts rcceivable
Acdued intercsl and dividends
Intergovemmental receivables

Due from other funds
Due from component units
Inventory

Restrbled assels
Cash
Non-cash

Mortgage loans rec€ivable

Defened chaees and olhea asselsl
Prepaid expenses
Defeaaed charges
Other assets

Lano
Struclures and imp,ovemenls
Fumiture and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Conslruction in progress

Total arsgta

@
LiabifiAes:
Acaaunls payable and acuuals:

Accounl$ payable
Unpaid benefts
Due lo brokers for security purchases
Interest payable
Intergovernmental payables

Due to olher funds
Due to component units
Interfund payables
Accrued compensated absences
Delerred revenue

Eond s, olher oblig ation s:
Bonds payable
Federal repaymenl conkacl

Advanc€s from general lund
Obligations under capital leases

Other liabilihes.
Payable from reslriciled assets
Deposits
Other liabilities

Total llablllge!
Ftnd equity (deficiq:
Contributed capital
Retai ned eaming s (defr cit) :

Reserved foa operalion and maintenance
ReseNed as security for oulstanding

obligalions
Unaeserved

Net unrealized gain on equity securities

Total fund equity (deflclt)

Total liabilitl.e and fund equlty

-0- $ 2,257,145 $ 2,146,4E5 5 11,867,594
-0- -0- .0- 2,443,000,000
-0- -0- -G 222,851,OOO
-0- -0- 23,292,196 -0-

E47,143 -0- -G .0.

70,619 92,692 23,062 740,517
-0- -0- -0- -G'
-0- 54,E81 -0- -G
-0- 81,331 115,265 2,742,000
-0- 95,295 -0- -0-

52,153,596 S

14,637

917,670

-0-

-0-
-0-

11,141

-0-
.G

584,334 $

-0-

'r,522,090

464,791
-0-

,{71,669

30,E77,13E

6,962,132
54,E81

45,482,6?4
{-

140,483 $
-0-

177,251,121

6,595,284

116

70,60,1,941
551,745,008

-0-

9,528,179

45,157
704,056
303,118

(258,708)

296,692,000
3,816,000

941,791,000

126,172,636
5,276,000

-0-

2,476,475
626,000
614,000

-0-
-0-
-0-

471,000
-0-

795,000
3,779,000

15,302,000
26,937,000

(22,528,000)

-0-

-0-

-0- E9,263 -0- 6,859,000

$ 53,098,403 $ 917,762 $ 66,509,172 $ 816,658,755 $ 1,409,879,111

0
0
0

-0-

0
0
0
0

$ 45,737 $

52,969,547

-0-

0
0
0
0

12 500
0
0

80,780,000
.0-

-0-
.0-

707,68E,004
-0-
-0-
-0.

-0-
-0-

'11,478,000

-0- 1.348.639
-0- -0-

-0- -0-
-0- 48,692,000
-0- 20,756,000-0- 842,078

53,09E,403 917,762 85,552,061 733,265,092 2,762,167,1't1

-0- -0- -0- -0- -0-

0

0
0
0

-0- 841,012

-0- -0-
-0- 116,099
-0- -0-

-0- -0-

81,010,613 -0-
2,383,050 (1,420,533,000)

-0. 68,245,000
-0- 957,111 83,393,663 (1,352,288,000)

$ 53,098,403 $ 917,762 $ 86,509,172 $ 816,658,755 $ 1,409,879,111
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Exhibit E-1

Tot l All Funds
Forostry

l{uFerlos
Pdgon l{evada tlarlettG Lako
Induatry Lagazin€ Watar System t99A 1995

.r29,09E

-0-
-0-

-0.
51,000

4U
-G

47,658

115,109
(88,605)

-0-

976,526
-0-
-0-

230,964

46,923

188,031
27,141

553,010

7283
140

135,838
{-
{-

7,807

30,821

-0-
-u-
-0-

96,1,1E

-0-

-0-
-0-

9,31,{

26,565
1,969

-0-
-0-

132,@7,UO
1,863,93'1

444,428,692

100,907 ,732
13,701,192

1,{,070

7,709218
1,708

't,233,365

184,673,E79
74,149,652

499,,{04,469

7,U2,063
18,223,653
53,154,299
4,546,06'l

238,30d,127
67,635,101

(107,338,562)

.0. .G 20.651
-0. -G -0-
-0- -G -0-
-0- 20,579 -0-

351,883,0E9
3,816,140

1,119,042,12'l

128,067 ,181
12,350,712

107,237

4.503,158
855,113

1,245,489

30,889,638
70,604,941

551,745,008

-0- 7,453,7E3
-0- 9,sE3,060
-0- 46,277,671

4,270,47E
19,290,734
29,598,299

126,282,163'

-u-
-0-
-0-

-G 2,157601
425,742

1,127,O77
1,,{48,995

(1,730,483)
749,522

(1,631,812)
-0-

-0-
44,555

(,{4,555)
-0- 6,9,18,263 '18,430,349

$ 260.397 $ 3.318,488 S 202,540 $ 1,405,327 $ 2,372,219,955 $ 2,160,733,297

13,933
-0-
-0-
{-

13.654
2,494

-0-

39,049
32,741

140,492
-0-

-0-

-0-
46,043

-0-
15,000

137,083
3,000

-u-
-0-

190,000

26,499
-0-
-u-
-0-
-0-

408

-0-
76,277

485,829

6,756

-0-
{-

1,669

5,723
30,882

-0-

147,E69
-G.

10,719,905
2,600,000,000

45,'t02,000
2s.28E,477

'17,92E

E,611,02,1
6,500

32,868
3,139,050
5,466,096

917,711,053
17E,905,964

412,039
6,'t83,271

16,615,947
47,409,000

-0-

16,504,643
2,443,000,000

222,A51,OOO
23,292,1
53,830,344

1,088,123
-G

75,604
3,221,847

616,865

788,468,084

337,E69
11,478,000

-0- 1,361,139
-G. 48,692,000

00
00
-0- 7,000

90,1,14 600,2E0
-0- -0-

-u-
-0-
.G
-G

-0-
-0-
-0-

-0-
-0-

-0-

-0- 21,605,078

10'1,871 538,618 589,013 192,901 3,636,422,A32 3,865,623,1'17

66,8219 2,885,884 5,200,705 9,924,1U

{- u1,012 5,603,574

-0- E1,010,613 74,790,5U
(1 ,847 ,57't,1121

68,382 2,179,590

-0- -0-

-0- -0-
(453,3221 (1,673,458) (1,419,47O,2071

-0- 68,245,000 52,363,000

158,526 2,779370 (386,,{73) 1,212,426 (1,264,172,877) (1,704,889,650)

$ 260.397 $ 3,318,488 $ 202,510 $ 1,105,327 $ 2,372,249,955 $ 2,160,733,297
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Equity
Enterprise Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995

Cololado River Conmission
Waler

Treatrnent
Water

Transrnission
Housing
Division

_0_ $
7,594,559

6,912
-n-

-0- $
13,@7,m2

6,055

Powel
Ma (eting

24,556,298
120,000

Nel premium income
Sales
Char96 for services
Renlalincome
Interesl income on mortgage loans
Investment income
Olher

Total operaling revenues

Salaries and benefits
Operaling
Claims expense
Interest on bonds payable
Materials or supplles used
Servicers' fees
Depreciation
Administrative e4,ense

Total operating erpenses

Operating income (loss)

lnterest income
Inveslment gain
Interest expense
Federal grants
Loss on disposal of assets
Other

Total nonoperating rcvenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before operating transfers

Operdting transters in
Operating transf ers out

Net income (loss)

Fund equity (deficit), July 1

Transfer ol deticit to other govemment
Changes in unrealized gains

Fund equity (deficit), June 30

-0- 4,449,743

7 ,ffi1,471 13,095,337 24,676,29a 57,226,005

83,752263 931

-0-

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

64,,190
39,110,31s
13,601,.157

2,870,039

1,232,647

-0-
8,475,699

-0-

1,70A,92A
-0-

24,566,29A
8i15,,183

5,803,,161

43,155,981

1,433,095
2,377

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

4,102,686 10,1A4,627 24,566,298 5t,260,397

5,965,60E3,498,785 2,910,710 110,000

234,735
-0-

(3,078,'Ao)

(326,90E)

309,560

(2,9s6,339)
-0-
-0-
-0- (120,000)

-0-
520,470

-0-

93,752

-0-
-0-
-0-

(3,172,6s3) (2,64€,,nq Q6,24a)

326,132

520,470

6,4E6,078

(19E,127)
0
0

326,132

18,127,5471

7,80't,415

263,93t

(47,038,273)

4,774,342
-0-

873,359

6,287,951

77,105,712

0
0

-0- $ 957,i t 1 $ 83,393,663
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Exhibit E-2

Total All Funds
lndus{ al
lnsulance

Foleslry
Nulseries

Nevada Matbne Lake
Industry Magazine Water System 1996 1995

+$ 4-$
174,56i 2,752,M

{- 362,4n
-0- 75,653
-0- -0-

,58,979,000 $
49,619,206

1,114,299
140,143

39,110,315
13,601,457

,151,2,13.000
80,099,240

1,1E6,,49
't47,365

33,7n 372
11,276,735

41,1 10,059
87,972,274

't67,661,000
37,326,633

1,608,692
1,171,805

10,930,771

4,137,004
11,652,000

(11,039,757)
907,5't9

279,386,0E6

(2,029,018,936)

44,743,@O

_0_ $
1,164,92A

616,903

_G$
289,096

-0-
-0-

r 1,634,000 6,717 f57,901 5,357

470,6'13,000 181,280 3,3,1E,,163 1,787,188

-0- 16,253,718 14/€5/74
289,096 578,818,138 592,215,675

39,751,000
24,1E7,790

3,379,000
<atEn n

186,144,7

15,882,000

205,519
207,OaA

-0-
38,103

-G.
10,41

-0-

984,243
1,062,E45

-0-

1,190,066

113,932
-u-

543,774

676,680

1,418

97,359
'126,E16

-0-

-0-

59,434
-0-

42,467,179
67,843,8r0

'113,502,000

43,'155,981
t,904,E,19
1,433,095
6,52a,217
E ?'E NNA

461,'191 3,351,086 1,805,447 283,609 282,160,131 353,159,792

244,&,210 (279,911) (2,6n) (18,259) s,47 296,658,007 239.055.883

,14,093,m0 +
32,6.13,000 +

(331,000) 4-
-0- 99,744
-0- -0-

2,828,000 114,622)

50,734

(624)

(1,3,19)
-0-

44,741,741
32,643,000
(6,366,,143)

620,214

-0-

-0-
-0-
-0-

-u-
-0-

(1,349) -0-
2,364,470 (851,s15)

79,233,000 85,122 4,761

353,70r,2't0 (1s4,789)

74,041,673 40,E05,251

-0- 4
(231,2101 (2,s8s)

363,470,000 (197,326)

(1,731,640,000) 35s,8s2

,16,'l38 (18,2s9) 5,447

0
0 -0- (8,s90)

370,699,680 279,861,134

I 4,02A
(44,s12) (s23,076)

370,259,216

(1,704,889,850)

,16,'l38 (18,259)

(368,214)

+.
-0-

0
0

(3,103)

1,215,529

-0- 4 54,575,757
-s 4- 't 5,882,000

$ (1,352,28E,00O) $ 'r 58,526 $ 2,779,A7O $ (386,473) $ 1,212,426 $ ('t,264,172,an\ $ (1,704,EE9,E50)



Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Enterprise Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995
Colorado Rlver Commission

Water
Treatrnent

water
Transmission

Powgr
Ma|k€tlng

Housing
Division

Cash f,ows from operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash received ftom other tunds
Cash received ftom comoon€nt unit
Cash r€ceived from mortgag€ loans
Cash paid to suppliers, othsr governments and bsneliciaries
Cash paid to employees for services
Cash Dakt to oiher funds
Purchase of mortgage loans

Net cash provided by (used fot) operating aclivities

Cash flols frqm noncapital llnancing activitie€
Proc€eds from sale of bonds
Grants, transters, advances received
Retirement of bonds and notes
Interest payments on bonds
Operating transfeF out
Payments for prepaid power
Transiers to oiher govemment
Other cash used for noncapital financing adivities

Net cash provided by (used for) nonc€pital financing aciivities

Cash flows from capital financing activities
Proceeds from sale of bonds, equipment
Acquisition of propeny, plant, and equipment
Retiement of bondvnotevmortgages
Interest paid on obligations
Payments on advancesJc€pital leases

Net cash provided by (used foo capital financing adivities
Cash flowE from investing activities
Proceeds from sale ot inveslments
Purchase of investments
Interegudividends on investments

Net cash provided by (used foO investing aclivities
Net iocrease (decrease) in cash

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1

Cash and cash equivalenb, June 30

Roconciliation of op€ratlng Income (loss) to net
cash pfovided by operatlng activities
Operating income (loss)

Adjurtmenis io reconclle operaiing income (lGs) to
net cash provided by (usod fo.) operating activities

Oepreciation
Income on investments
Interest on bonds payable
lncrease in loans receivable and real estate owned
Decrease (increase) in accrued receivables
Decrease (increase) in inventory, deferred charges and other assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accruals, othe. liabilities
Prepayments for power
Other adjusknents

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Noncash investing, capital and financing activitles
lnteresudividends on investments accrued

s 7,235,257

-0-

(3,196,2 t2)

(56/.,428)
-0-

$ 15,887,792

-0-

(10,996,044)
-0-

(351,447',)

$ 25,062,107 $ -o'
-0- -0-
-0- -0-
-0- 94,310,421

(17,799,223) (1,405,214)
-0- (843,586)
-0- (13',593)
-0- (107,489,833)

3,474,617 4,540,301 7,262,5U

-0-

-0-
-0-

l7 4 ,238,769)
-s.

-0-
-0-
-0-

('t0,947,639)

-0-
(1,675,000)

-u-

(5,426,253)
-0-

('t27,636)

(7,228,889)

(15,559,805)

173,205,000
3,422,360

(80,534,626)
(44,877,336)

(198,r 27)
-0-
-0-

(3,878,481)

47,138,790(74,238,769) (10,947,639)

118,590,000
(22,216,158)-

(122,5O9,705)
(6,094,914)

-0-

u2,074
(89,263)

-0-
-0-
0

'0-
(23,724)

-0-
-0-

(33,746)

-0-

(32,230,777) (33,746) 752,815 (23,724)

-0-
-0-

3,765,565 375,491

409,335 247,673,832
-0- (292,783,552',1

1,780,364 13,672,084

3,765,565 375,491
(ee,229,364) (6,065,593)

151,395,460

$ 52,166,096

6,969,214

$ 903,621 $ 31,461,472

2,189,699 (31,437,636)

2,976,509 't17,625

28,484,963 22,858

140,483

3,498,785 $ 2,910,710 $ 110,000 $ 5,965,608

1,232,647
-0-

-0-
1,272,523
(139,391)

(2,389,947)
-0-
-0-

't,708,928
-0-
-0-

3,486,919

(3,566,256)

325,477

(161,215)
6,988,622

-0-

(13,601,4s7)
43,155,98'l

(52,248,330)
(399,025)

549,756

995,285

(24,168) 1,629,591 7,152,8U (21,525,4't3l

$ 3,474,617

$ -o-

$ 4,540,301 $ 7,262,884 $ (15,559,805)

$ -0- $ -0- $ -0-
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Exhibit E-3
Industrial
Insurance

Forestry Prison Nevada Marlette LakeNurseries Industry Magazine w"i"il""i"i
TotalAll Funds

1996

-o- . -sl ' - --l;1 (r1r'470) 
.Jl3'9?1,1991 (1e,623;813i

152,3'15,210 Q47.207) 2os.1s7 ----# 
-u- (107'489'833) (140'829 607i

--- ,psqrro ----Ezr'
,. -,. . -,982) 97.Oz2.o3s

##ffi $-jffi $-#F-T#=-*:111_ _ ?ts,605.450 177.786,325

$ 284,468,210 $ (279,911) $ (2,623) $ (18,259) $ 5,487 $ 296,658,007 $ 239,055,S83

$ {- $ -G $ _o_ $ -o_ $ -o_ $ -o_ $ 10,766



Faculty
The William F. Harrah College of Hotel

Administration has over 40 full-time faculty, plus
a cadre of industry professionals who teach part-
time. Our faculty are prolific writers and have

authored numerous textbook that are used
worldwide by other hospitality programs, as well
as industry professionals. Faculty have also
published hundreds of academicjournals
articles, and several holdjournal editorships.
Many also publish in tradejournals. Faculty are
also active in a variety of industry associations,
many holding o[Iicer/board positions.

James R. Abbey, Professor, B.A., M.B.A., Michigan
State University; Ph.D., Utah State University.

Mohsen Azizsoltani, Lecturer, B.S., University of
Utah; M.S., Univemity of Nevada, Las Vegas.

Richard Basile, Prof'essor Emeritus, B.A. Washington
& Lee University; L.H.D., Combs College.

Donald A. Bell, Professor, 8.A., M.B.A., Ph.D.,
Michigan State University.

Kathleen Betl, Advising Coordinator, B.A., Kent State
University; M.A., Ph.D., Michigan State University.

Seyhmus Bolaglu, Assistant Professor, B.S., M.S.,
Texas A & M University; Ph.D., Virginia Polytechnic
Instirute.

Robert Bosselman, Associate Professor, 8.A., State
University of NewYork; M.S., Florida International
University; Ph.D., Oklahoma State University.

Frank D. Borsenik, Professor Emeritus, B.S., M.S.,
Ph.D., Michigan State University, 

E6

Tohn Bowen. Director of Graduate Studies and
-Research,/Associate 

Professor, B.S., Cornell Univer-
sity; M.B.A., Corpus Christi State University; Ph.D.,
Texas A&M University.

Kathleen Pearl Brewer, Associate Dean for Aca-
de mic AJIairs/Associate Professor, B-S., M.S., Ph.D.,
Purdue University

Shannon L. Bybee, Director of the International
Gaming Institure,/Associate Professoq B.A., Univer-
sity of Nevada, Reno;J.D., University of Utah
College of Law.

David.f. Christianson, Dean, B.A., M.R.Ed., Brigham
Young University; Ph.D., Texas A&M Universiry

Leslie E. Cummings, Professor, 8.S., M.S., D.PA.,
Arizona State University.

Vincent H. Eade, Assistant Dean for Finance and
Administration,/Associate Professot B.A., MA, St.

Bonaventure Universiry

Bernard N. Fried, Assistant Professot B.A., the
Evergreen State College, B.S., University ofNerzda,
Las Vegas; M.B.A., Dallas Baptist Universiq'; Ed.D.,
University of LaYerne.

J<.rlie R. Gaston, Assistant Prolessor, B.A., University
of Tennessee; B.S., University of Nevada, Las Vegas;

J.D., University ofTennessee; College of I-aw.

Gerald Goll, Associate Professor, B.A., Michigan
State College; M.A., Pepperdine University; D.B.A.,
United States Intemational University.

John R. Goodwin, Professor Emeritus, B.S.,J.D.,
West Virginia Univercity.

Zheng Gu, l\ssistant Professor, B.S., Hangzhou
Universiry China; M.A., Ph.D., Unive rsity of Central
Florida.



Jean Herzman, Chef/Lecturer, 8.S., Cornell
University; M.B.A., Tulane Universiry

Susan H. Ivancevich, Assistant Professor, B.B.A.,
University of Georgia; Ph.D., Texas A&M University.

Alfred Izzolo, Assistant Professor, 8.A., Hartwick
College; M.S., State University College, Oneonta.

ThomasJ.A.Jones, Assistant Professor, 8.A., Univer-
sity of South Dakota; B.S., M.S., University of
Nerada, Las Vegas; Ed.D., Arizona State University.

Jim R. Kilby, Sam and Mary Boyd Chairllecturer,
B.A., University of Oklahoma.

ClaudeJ. Lambenz, Chef/Lecturer, Graduate of
Food Service, St. Paul Technical Vocational Insti-
tute.

Valentino Luciani, Lecturer, Diploma, Professional
Hotel Institute, Como, Iraly.

RobertJ. Martin, Professor, 8.S., Stanford Univer-
sity; M.S., United States Naval Post Graduate School.

Audrey McCool, Professor, B.S., M.A., University of
Illinois; Ed.D., Texas Tech Universiry.

Rhonda Montgomery Assistant Dean for Student
Alfairs/Associate Professor, B.S., M.S., Purdue
University; Ph.D.;,University of South Carolina.

Lyell E. Metcalf, Associate Professor Emeritus, B.S.,
B.A., M.A, University of Arizona; C.P.A., California.

Kathleen Nelson, B.S., M.S., University of Nevada,
l-as Veg-as.

Andrew M. Nazarechuk, Director of the Hospitality
Research and Development Center\Lecturer, 8.S.,
M.S., University of Nerada, Las Vegas.

Ellis Norman, Assistant Professor, B.S., Michigan
State University; M.B.A., University of Chicago.

Michael Petrillose, Assistant Professor, A.A.S., State
University of New York at Delhi; B.S., M.PS., Cornell
University; Ph.D., Kansas State University.

Boyce W. Phillips, Associate Prolessor Emeritus,
A.B., Wofford College; M.S., Florida State Univer-
sity.

Claude Rand, Assistant Prol-essor Emeritus, A.B.,
Tufts University; M.A., University of Georgia.

Wesley S. Roehl, Assistant Professor, 8.A., Trenton
State College; M.S., Southern Illinois University at
Carbondale; Ph.D., Texas A & M University.

Gail Sammons, Assistant Professor, B.A., North
Dakota State University; M,S., University of Nevada,
Las Vegas; Ph.D., Pennsylvania State University.

PattiJ. Shock, Associate Professor, B.S., M.S.,
University of Southern Mississippi.

Stowe Shoernaker, Assistant Professor, B.S., Univer-
sity of Vermont; M.S., University of Massachusetts;
Ph.D., Cornell University.

John M. Stefanelli, Professor, B.S., University of
Illinois; M.B.A., Michigan State University; Ph.D.,
University of Denver

Skip Swerdlow, Associate Professor, B.S., M.B.A.,
Ph.D., Arizona State University.

Ken Teeters, Assistant Professor, B.L.S., University of
Oklahoma; M.B.A., University of Nevada, Las Vegas.

JeromeJ. Vallen, William F. Harrah Chair/Professor,
B.S., Cornell University; M.Ed., St. Lawrence
University: Ph.D.. Corncll U n iversiry.

Donald Walter, Lecturer, 8.A., Otterbein College.

Gary A. Waters, Lecturer, 8.S., University of Califor-
nia, Berkeley; B.S., M.S., University of Nelada, Las
Vegas.
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Career OPPortunities
Tlie William F. Harrah Cirllege of Hotel
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Self-lnsurance Accounts for self-insured group life,

accident and health insurance plans for State and

other government employees (NRS 287.0435).

Buildings and Grounds Accounts for the
maintenance, housekeeping and security of most
State buildings (NRS 331.101).

Motor Pool Accounts for the operations of the State
vehicle fleet (NRS 336.110).

Communications Accounts for the operation of mail

services for State agencies in Carson City, Reno,

Las Vegas and Elko (NRS 331.103).

lnsurance Premiums Allocates the costs of fidelity
insurance, property insurance, workers
comoensation insurance, etc. to all State agencies
(NRS 331.187).

AdministrativeServices Provides administrative
and accounting services to various divisions of the
Department of Administration (NRS 232.219).

Personnel Accounts for the costs of administering
the State personnel system. Operations are financed
by assessments charged to user agencies (NRS
284.110).

Purchasing Provides purchasing services to State
agencies and other governmental units. The
operation is financed by an administrative charge on
purchase orders and warehouse orders (NRS
333.120).

Information Services Accounts for designing,
programming, and maintaining data processing

sofi\,vare and operating the State's central computer
facility (NRS 242.2'l'l); and accounts for the State's
radio communication and telecommunication
systems (NRS 233F.148 and NRS 242.213). These
last two activities were formerly reported in the Law
Enforcement Communications and the
Communications Intemal Service Funds.

Pdnting Accounts for the operation of the State
printing facilities (NRS 3,14.090).
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Combining Balance Sheet
Internal Service Funds

June 30, 1996 with

Cqrreat assets.'
Cash and pooled inveslments:
Cash with treasurer
Cash in custody of other officials

Receivables:
Accounts rec€ivable
Intergovernmenlal receivables

Due from other funds
Due from component units
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Propedy:
Land
guildings
lmprovemenls other than buildings
Furniture and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Construction in progress

Total p.opefty

Total assets

Current liabilifes:
Accounts payable and dccruals:

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Currenl portion, long-term obligations
Intergovernmental payables

Due to olher funds
Inlerfund payables
Accrued compensated absences

Total cu pnt liabilitlgs
Long-tem tiabilifes:
Advances:

Advances trom general fund
Advances from trust fund
Advanc€s from special revenue fund

Lease obligations

Total long-term llabillties

Total liabilities
Fund quily:
Contributed capital
Retained eamings

Total tund equlty

Total liabilities and fund oquity

totals for 1995

Self.
lnsurance

Buildings
and Grounds

Motor
Pool

lnsu|?nce
Communications Premiums

28,256,216 $
-0-

80,955

1,057,945
167,854

1,171,479 $
-0-

2,541
-0-

144,751

-0-
10,797

1, 7,411 S
-0-

2,799
-0-

243,359
16,7 44

7,725

'120,583

-0-
-0-

82,426

9,949,371

+.
-0-

518,777

29,562,970 1,329,568 2,210,313 212,189 10,468,148

-0-

-0-
424,297

(288,114)

20,400
2,408,791

41'1,06'l
567,936

(985,215)
-0-

-0-
1,M7,746

13,650
6,16'1 ,374

(4,311,727)

-0-
181,864

(130,820)
-0-

-0-
-0-

58,055
(33,7s2)

136,183 2,422,973 2,911,043 51,044 24,263

$ 29,699,153 $ 3,752,541 $ 5,121,356 s 10,492,411

9,386,790
'15,510

-0-

26,144
-0-

83,399

362,629

17,620
194,841
450,534

53,147
'11,069

14,912
570,453
106,821
78,973

16,'t 40
8,994

15,516

79,368

5,579,130
3,715

-0-
-0-

379,480

11,856
9,5'11,843 1,125,298 835,375 120,0't8 5,974,181

0
0
0
0

1,655,242
-0-
-0-

605,047

24,767

0
0
0
0

-0-

-0-

0 1,655,242 633,814 0

9,511,843 2,780,540 1,469,189 120,018 5,974,181

12,682
20,174,628

398,651
573,350

2,325,163
1,327,OO4

23,875
119,340

-0-
4,518,230

20,187,310 972,OO l 3,652,'167 143,215 4,514,230

$ 29,699,153 $ 3,752,541 $ 5,.121,356 $ 10,492,411263,233



Exhibit F-1
TotalAll Funds

AdministratiYe
Servicss

lnfo]mation
Ssrvices PrintingPelsonnel Purchasing 1995

2,03/.,344 $
100

1,339,576 $

-0-

1,939
-0-
-0-
-0-

1,556,r90 $
-0-

296,240
699,540

5,125,902
125,931
237,671

380,006 s
200

29,997
6,729

2,793,s86
1,081

-0-

598,679 $
75

1,574
-0-

237,189
743

390,985
-0-

17,241,097 $

4't 5,561
706,369

10,244,031
312,353
667,195

93,223

41,874,236
375

122,06'l
1,528,971

16,534,804
193,275
974,306
163,060

-0-
.G
-G

2,031,444 4,041,574 3,250,138 1,229,245 59,680,204 61,391,088

-u-
52,748
(6,593)

1,341,615

699,641
(622,376)

r5,000
r,563,756

17,581,182
(12,607,143)

597,932

2,277 ,149
(2,0s9,591)

'r30,954

424,711
28,523,O29

(21,570,781)

130,954
6,170,341

424,711
24,453,767

(19,539,488)
88,124

95,554
't40,000

518,783
(525,410)

46,155 77,265 228,927 6,552,795 815,490 13,266,138 11,728309

$ 2,080,599 $ 1,,118,880 $ 8,270,501 $ 9,802,933 $ 2'044'735 72,946,U2 $ 73,119,497

312 $
134,62

1 ,414p24

31,064 $
65,564

105,65E

421,222

5,501,682 $
16,333

-0-
1,332

454
23,027
71,220

630,673 $
161,402

6,963
40,869

154,574
740,975

80,726
31,822
52,543

39,703
25,056

211,977

21,U2293
417,230

1 ,570,082
33,522

3,0'10,821
504,319

2,234,829

20,860,087
365,332

1,725,425
135,850

5,932,858
356,58'1

2,129,722

'1,914,003 623,508 5,614,048 3,252,995 441,827 29,413,096 31,505,855

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

334,159 746,900
-0-

2,812,O79

210,903 3,552,251

24,767
2,812,O79

3,803,902
3,669

30,978
1,643,679

334,159 3,558,979 210,903 6,393,097 5,482,228

1,914,003 623,508 652,730 35,806,193 36,988,0835,948,207 6,Sl 1,974

166,596
-0-

795,372
1 ,'128,66't
1,193,633

275,153
2,715,806

599,461
792,544

4,763,646
32,376,503

4,763,646
31,367,768

166,596 795,372 2,322,294 2,990,959 1,392,005 37,140,149 36,131,414

$ 2,080,599 $ 1,418,880 $ 8,270,501 $ 9,802,933 S 2,044'735

9't

72,946,U2 $ 73,119,497



Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Equity
Internal Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Endecl June 30, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995

self. Buildlngs
lnsurance and Grounds

Moto.
Pool cornmunications

lnsurance
Premiums

@
Net Dremium Income
sal6
Charg6 for services
Rental income
Other

Tolal operaling revenues

@
Salari6 and benefds
Operating
Claims expens€
Materials or supplles used
DeDreciation
Insurance premiums

Total openiing expenses

Operaiing income (loss)

lnterest income
lnterest exDense
Loss on disoosal of assets

Total nonoperating
revenuos (expensesl

Income (loss) before operaling lransfers

@
Operating transters In
Operating transters oul

Net income (loss)

Fund equity, July 1

Fund equity, June 30

E1,901,413 I 4
-0- 824,978
-0- 7,200,730

8,.O4,099

-G 4,187,241
-o-
.G

4,187rc3 8,€s,531

_0- $
97,2ffi

+$
4

1,96'1,881
460,404 6,198 73,,+55

82,361,817 8,03r,906 2,132,624

755,s71
€8,018

53,830,647

193,302
24,475,703

3,237,7U
5,066,201

-0-
151,073

46,0,o21
3,n0364

193,3E7
130,0E5

2,662,357

13,753
8,78€,117

474,7ffi
635,697

-u-
3E9,111
576,025

79,693,241 E,455,138 2,075,613 4,244,147 11,787,699

2,668,576 (4n,n4 
'/,011 

(56,664) (3,354,168)

1,600,328
-0- -0-

9,172

9,172

66,183

-0-0
0
0

1,600,328

4,268,904 (423,232\ (s6,684) (3,3s4,168)

32,772 -G -0- -G -0-
(s,808) (372,234) (70,71s) (36,sos) (30,731)

4,291,868 (795,,166) (4,5321 (93,193) (3,384,89s)

15,4s5,42 1 ,767,67 3,656,699 236,,10E 7,s3,129

$ 20,187,310 $ 972,001 $ 3,652,167 $ 143,215 $ 4,518,230



Exhibit F-2

TolalAll Funds
Admlnistrative

Selvices
lnformation

Servlqes

$ -o-
-0-

$ -$$
n

4,926,721

3,238,55r
1 ,342,214

-0-

4,81
-0-

Personnel Purchasing Prinling

3,901,23E

400

{_$
1,37,536
1,586,194

_G$
5,424

r6,026,556
174,866
22Ap5

-0. $ 90,30s,512 I
5,341,563
32,961

,29,742
5,@0,163

25,,109,35'l

r5,982,00s
16,626,752
6,257,573

3,268,5,f3
3,506.307

1,074,655
(247,17s)

-0- 2,215
22,539 1A1,426

9,339,692 A,276,024
1,003,022 734,969

771 ,271 4,949,337 3,107,371 16,435,792 3,901 ,638 134,312,750 134,250,2A9

642,82
51,411

-(t
-0-

6,593

741,259
345,711

-(I
1,511,44

45,47

6,116,659
7,662,616

-0-
-0-

2,360,136

1,596,892
738,47

-0.
1,106,21E

123,730

17,2157,396

20,1EO,804
56,4)3,004

3,006,769
3,532,612

33,263,820 29,191,521

700,,{86 4,629,606 2,643,817 16,139,411 3,565,247 't 33,934,405 114,932,701

70,74s 319,731 463,554 296,381 336,391 378,3,tS 19,417,588

(14,e66) 1245,642152,108 (7,668)

24,577 113,329

54,092 (14,7/0)
(7,6fi)

40

1,600,328
(268,215)

37,142 (253,310) C/,131) 13A6,201 812,74

70,785 319,731 500,696 43,071 329,260 1,7U,56 n,230,328

-o- zAl ssn 494,322 1 ,807,577(s7,062) 171,154) (387,367) (116,847) (e7,706) (1,2s0,133) (1,1,t6,310)

347,774 231,554 1,008,735 20,891,595

152,A73 546,795 2,208,965 2,603,185 1,160,,151 36,131,414 i5,239,819

$ 166,5s6 $ 795,372 $ 2,32,84 $ 2,990,959 $ 1,392,005 $ 37,120,149 $ 36,i3i.414
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Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995

Selt- Buildings
Insurance and Grounds

Insurance
Communications Prgmiuma

ilotor
Pool

Cash flowE tfom operatlng actlvitles
Cash received from cuslomers
Cash received f.om other funds
Cash received from comDonent units
Cash paid to supplieIs, and other govemments
Cash paid to employees tor seryices
Cash oaid to olher funds
Cash paid to component units

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flowr from noncapital financing activities
Grants. transfers. advances received
Operating/equity transfe6 out

Nel cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing
ac{ivilies

Ca3h tlolva from capltal tinancing activities
Acquisition of property. plant, and equipment
Inter6t paid on obligations
Reduc,lion in advances/caDital leases
Proceeds from aale ot assgts

Nst cash used for capilal financing aclivities

Cash flow3 from investlng actlvliies
lnteresydiyidends on investm€nls

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net inqease (decrease) in cash

Cash and cash equivalents. July 1

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of operating Income (loss) to
net cash provlded by (us€d tor) operating activlties

Operating income (loss)

Adru3tment3 to roconcll€ operatlng Income (lGs)
to net cash provlded by (used for) operating activities
Depreciation
Decrease (incrsase) in accrugd rec€ivables
Decrease (increase) in invenlory and prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, acquals

and olher liabililies
Other adjusbnents

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used for) operating aclivities

Noncash Invegung, capital and linancing aqtivitigs
P.operty leasGd, accrusd or acquired
Interesvdividends on investmenls accrued
Construciion completsd or in progress
Adjustment lo advance
Loss on disoosal of assets

2,500,381 136,875 542,537

1,500 -0- 983,368 -0- -0-

$ 8,951,599 $
53,450,373
'19,428,741

(78,233,86,r)
(743,330)
(3s3.138)

-0-

83,094 $
8,164,513

(4,472,6561
(3,108.141)

(529.935)
-0-

12,785
1,946,525

(482,4121
(463,386)
(506,627)

(1,94s)

4,592,'t10
2U

(3,279,453)
(442,922'
(806,453)

(6,2O7\

$ -0-

7,425,949
557,142

(4,633,889)
(187.528)

(3,794,8711
-0-

67,007 (633,197)

(9,808) (2U,110) (53,705) (209,307) (49,380)

(8,308) (2U,1101 929,663 (209,307) (49,380)

(19,045) (7,423',) (675,218)

-0-

(28,489)
-0-
-0-
-0-

(2,214)

4-
(r9,046) (7,4231 (675,218) (28,489) 12,214]

1,504,122

1 ,504,'t22

3,977,149

24,279,067

(154,658) 836,982

'1,326,137 1,110,429

(170,7891 (684,791)

178,514 10,634,162

$ 28,255.216 $ 1,171,479 $ 'r,947,411 $ 7,725 $ 9,949,371

$ 2,668,576 I (423,232\ $ 57,011 (56,684) $ (3,354,168)

193,302
(531,104)

-0-

r69,607

151,073
215,701
(10,797)

152,022
52,108

576,025
(95,7171

45,218
-0-

13,762 13,753
335,771 6,559,194
80,634 -0-

(385,284) (3.851,976)
78,808 -O-

(168, r 95) 560,107 s25,526 123,69'l 2,720,971

$ 2,500,381 S 136,875 $ s82,537 $ 67,007 $ (633,197)

(563,273) $

607,958

0$
0
0
0
0

-0-

-0-
-0-

-0-
-0-
-0.
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Exhibit F-3

Administrative
Services

Informatlon
Services

State
Prlntlng

TotalAll Funds
1996 1995

_0- $
813,089

(15,289)
(647,564)

(48,396)
-0-

Personnsl Purchaslng

$ 402,944
3,224,920

50,8'r 0
(1,751,720)

(725,808)
(257,613)

-u-

32,889
4,U1,457

381,760
(308,565)

(3,202,07 4)
(1,004,895)

-0-

24,272 $
14,767,793

(6,876,785)
(6,071,325)

(778,682)
-{r

49,065
4,037,569

43,895
(794,443)

(1,653,825)
(1,148,466)

-0-

D Y,COO.JZO

102,964,298
20,540,199

(100,849,076)
(17,24s,903)

(9,229,076)
(8,152)

5,738,616

16,546,335
97,668.113
19,036,554

(83,088,522)
(15,947,062)
(17,213,819)

(75)

't0'!,840 440,572 943,533 1,065,273 533,795 't7,oo1,524

1,984,936 461,550
-0- (71,1U) (406,367) ('r 16,847)

-0-
(123,283)

3,431,354
(1,323,961) (1,963,667)

't,984,936 (71.154\ (406,367) 344,703 (123,283) 2,107,393 (1,363,810)

(52,748)

-0-

(20,794)

-0-
-0-

(10,725)
-u-
-0-
-0-

(309,090)
(245,642)

(2,393,376)
7,O17

(114,400)
(7,611)

(104,411)
900

(1,24O,147)
(253,253)

(2,497,787]-
7,917

(907,618)
(262,s92)

(2,,140,958)

147,711

(52,7481 (20,794) (10,7251 (2,941,0s1) (225.522) (3,983,270) (3,463,457)

0 -0- -0- -0- 1,504,122 905,010

1 ,504,122 905,010

2,O3/.,O28

416

3/4,624

991,052

526,441

1,029,749

(1,531,115)

1,911,321

184.990

413,764

5,366,E61

41,874,611

13,079,267

28,795,U4

$ 2,034,444 $ 1,339,676 $ 1,556,190 $ 380,206 $ 598,754

70,785 $ 319,731 $ 463,554 $ 296,381 $ 336,391

47,241,472 $ 41,874,611

378,345 $ 19,417.588

6,593
41,818

-0-

(17,356)
-0-

48,831
6,769

-0-

45,407
57'1,303

350,942

(487,673)

2,360,136
(1,643,7271

112,s12)

123,730
228,891
(30,919)

(124,298)
-0-

3,532,612
5,688,899

376,948

(4,369,104)

130,9'16

3,506,307
(997,787)

(44,1 13)

(4,907,691)65,241

31,055 120,441 479,979 768,a92 197,404 5,360,271 (2,416,064)

s 101,840 $ 440,572 $ 943,533 $ 1,065,273 $

3,401,051 $

-0-

5,738,616 $ 17,001,524

0

0

0
0

0$
0
0
0
0

-0- $

-0-
-0-

0$
0
0
0
0

2,a37,778

607,958
-0-

2,058,092
905,010

88,124
-0-

14,740



Grants-in-Aid
The hotel and restaurant industries

provide a special level of financial support for
deserving students. The Harrah College of
Hotel Administration awards these gran$ to
high achievers, with faculty looking for aca-
demic excellence, a strong professional vita,
and history of campus/communiry service.
Applicants are not required to demonstrate
financial need because these awards are based
on performance. Students with special financial
needs should also direct applications ro the
student financial services oIfice.

Friends of the College Scholarships Direct Support

Scholarships and

AH & MA Scholarshios
Stuart Alman Memorial Award
William Campbell Memorial Award
Robert Cannon Memorial Award
John Goodwill Memorial Award
Nat Hart Endowed Scholarship 

96

Hotel Sales and Marketing Association
(HSMA, Las Vegas Chapter)

Ner'zda Beverage/International Food Service
Executives Association
(Las Vegas Chapter: Endowment)

Las Vegas Strip Endowed Scholarships
Ruth Minor Loan Fund
Carl and Bonnie Schreiber Scholarshin
Shelby Williams Memorial Award
Southern Wines and Spiris of Nevada,

Inc.
Swerdlow Family Scholarship
University of Nevada, Board of Regents
William Weinberger Endowed Scholarship
Helen G. and Aaron Weisberg Memorial

Award

The College also refers and administers schol-
arship applications from narional and state
associations and from professional organiza-
tions. Some ofthe Scholarships are:

American Hotel Foundation, Inc.



Trust and Ag"r.y Funds
Funds account for resources which are held in a

California Resnuran t Associahon
Colorado/Wyoming Hotel and Motel Associa-

tlon
GES Exposition Services Scholarships
International Association of Hospitalitv Ac-
count2n$
Educational Foundation of the National Res-
taurant Association
New Mexico Restaurant Association
Ohio Hotel and Motel Association
SKAL (Las Vegas Chapter)
Statler Scholarships
Rose Schwarz Tradeshow Scholarship
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The Hospitality Research &
Development Center

The HRDC provides comprehensive
technical and training assistance to the hotel,
restaurant and convention industry. The
Center provides services such as market re-
search, faciliry layout and design, tourism
development, catering management sem inars
as well as the development of needs assessment
surveys for industry professionals. Interna-
tional outreach by the Center has included
contracts with the Dominican Republic, Fiesta
Americana Hotels, Mexico, South Korea, Suez

Canal University, Eg1pt, The University
D'Angers, France; and the Kenyan Betting
Commission.
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TRUST ANO AGENCY FUNDS

Expendable Trust

Unemployment Compensation Accounts for the
payment of unemployment compensation benefits
(NRS 612.585).

Museums and History Accounts for private funding
such as donations, gifts, and grants used to purchase
items of historical interest according to the restrictions
specified by the donors (NRS 381 .0031).

Gift Accounts for gifrs and grants received by the
Commission for the Preservation of Wild Horses (NRS
504.450), the Deparlment of Conservation and Natural
Resources (NRS 232.020), the State Board of
Education (NRS 385.095), the State Library and
Archives (NRS 378.090) and the Division of State
Parks (NRS 407.075).

Custodial Accounts for estates escheated to the
State in absence of legal heirs and used for
educational purposes (NRS 154.140); administration of
abandoned property (NRS 120A.370); survivor benefits
held in trust for children receiving welfare services
(NRS 422.250); personal property hetd in trust for
prisoners pending their release (NRS 209.241) and
revenue collected to benefit destitute offenders (NRS
209.383); and the residual activity, including
repayments from local governments, of emergency
distribution of SCCRT (Supplementat City-County
Relief Tax) (NRS 354.5988, repealed by Chapter 491,
Statutes of Nevada 1991 , at page 1452).

Nonexpendable Trust

Henry Wood Christmas Accounts for the bequest of
the late Henry Wood to provide Christmas gifts to
orpnans.

Permanent School Accounts for certain property and
the proceeds derived from such property, escheated
estates, and all fines collected under penal laws of the
State, which become permanent assets of the fund.
Earnings on the assets are to be used for education
(State Constitution, Article 1 1 , Section 3).

Pension Trust

Public Employees' Retirement Accounts for the
operations of the Public Employees' Retirement
System which provides income benefits to qualified
public employees (NRS 286.220).

Legislators' Retirement Accounts for the operations
of the Legislators' Retirement System (NRS 218-2375\.

Agency

Deferred Compensation Accounts for the activity of
the deferred compensation plan for State employees
adopted under the provisions of Section 457 of the
Internal Revenue Code (NRS 287.330).

lntergovernmental Accounts for taxes and fees,
such as sales and use, cigarette and jet fuel taxes,
collected by the Department of Taxation on behalf of
local governments (NRS 353.254).

State Agency Fund for Bonds Accounts for surety
bonds and deposits held by the State (NRS 353.251).

Motor Vehicle Accounts for taxes and fees collected
by the Department of Motor Vehicles pending
distribution to counties and other funds (NRS 482.180).

Restitution Trust Accounts for money received ftom
parolees making restitution (NRS 213.126).

Veterans Custodial Accounts for the estates of
persons for whom lhe Nevada Commissioner for
Veteran Affairs acts as guardian (NRS 417.113).

Local Government Pooled Investment Accounts for
investment funds received from local governments and
pooled to obtain greater interest earnings (NRS
355.167).

State Payroll Accounts for payment of payroll and
payroll deductions such as income tax withholding,
insurance deductions, credit union deductions. etc.
(NRS 227.130).



Combining Balance Sheet
Trust and Agency Funds

Expendable Trust Funds pendable

H€nry Wood
Chrislrnas

Unemployrnent Museumsand
Coinpensation History

Gin
Funds

Custodial
Funds

Cash and Noled invostmenb:
cash with lreasurer
Cash in custody of other officials

lnveslments

Receivables:
AccounE receivable
Accrued interest and dMdends
TEdes pending settlement
Intergovemmental receivables
Notes receiudble
Other receh/dbles

Due from other funds
Inventory
Other assets
Lano
Fumiture and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Total asscts

Liabililies:
Accounts payable and accruals:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Inlergovemmental pafables
Trades pending s€ttlement

Due to other funds
Oefened revenue
Notes payable

Leas€ obligations

olhet liabihties:
Deposits
other liabilities

Total liabililies

Fund balances:
Rese']r'ed:

Encumbrances and contracts
Inventory
Othet:

Employees reliremenl system
Principal of non-expendable trust funds
Other

UnrcseNed:
Designeted:

Principal preservation
Museqm prqects

Und6ignated

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and tund balances

315,EO4,818

49,757,741
-+

4-

{}.

283,658

-G

+$
23,a@

1,013,,188

54,601
-o

2,992
993

-o-

r,500

n,2@

-0-
-0-

15,106
-0-
-0-

1,324,306 $ 9,A24,252 $
+ 65,594

1,045,421

-0-
-0-

193,231

52,284

42,880

-0-

-G -0-

$ 365,562,559 $ 1,536,648 $ 1,3'16,999 $ 11,223,662 $ 57,593-+-

s,521,885 S

-0"
-0-

-0-

{-

6,413

-0-

4.
-0-

-0--0-

0
0

124,923

79,707

-0-

$ 5,030

13,916

-0-

$ 208,717 $
-G

2,603
-G

6,'t 45,389

{-
-0-

0
0 -0- 3,471,A97

0
0

5,521,845 204,915 21,357 9,828,606 6,413

-G.
-G.

283,65E

-0-
39,865

173,788

-0- -0-
-0- 30,000

578,500 -0-

900,000

360,04,674 a34,422 425,642
-0-

8't6,556

360,0,0,674 1,331,733 1,325,642 1,395,056 51,180

$ 365,562,sss $ 1,s36,648 $ 1,3'16,99s $ 1l??9,692 $ s7'ss3:
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Exhlblt G-l

Paga 1 of 2
Nonex-

pendable

Permanent
School

Pension Trust Funds Agency Funds
StatePublic

Employees'
Retirement

Legislators' Defer€d lnter- Agency Fund
Retilencnt Compensation governmental folBonds

Motor Reslilution
V.hicle Trust

8,292,3,10 5 11,61s,230 $ 37,s22,992 $ 478,753
-G 35,891,175 2,749,590 -G

-0- 31.738.588 -0- -G

$ 2,743,621 $

-0-
771,O45

247,125
120

-0-

-0- $ -0- $ -0- $
2,234,024 599 10A,732

6,563,704,516 2,720,49 115,647,613

45,769,291
-0-

30,801,849
-0-
-0-

0000
'15 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
-0- -0- -0- -G -0- -0-
-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -G

269,543 6.192,703 -0-
-0- -0- -0-

54,523 -0-

-0- 183,007,876
-0- -0-

-0- 614,561 4
-0- 1,181 {-
-0- -0- -0-
-0- -0- -0-
-0- -G -0-
-0- 4 -G
-0- -G -G

735

-0- 449,954 -0- -0- -0-
2,977 4- -0- -0- -0-

4- 912,275 -0- -0- 4-
4- (s9s,1s0) -0-

$57,783,086$6,649,,{69,,{62$2,721,758$115,810,66E$191,300,2'16$79,244,993$40,888,324S478,753

-0_ $

-0-

852,300
-0-
-0-

4,0,16,900 $
-0-
-0-

54,001,763

77,501
-0-

I,41 ,472
129,59

126 $
0

G

0
0
0
0

0

-0- $ -0- $
-0- -0-
-0- 149,143,741
-0- -G

-0- 2,104,D20

-0- -G
-0- -G

-0- $ -0- $
-0- -0-
-0- 16,197 ,729
-0- -0-

54,081 20,459,971
-0- -0-
-0- -0-
-0- -0-

{-

+.
7,632

-0- -0- 79,174,3AA 3,586,777 -0-

E52,300

-0- 4,o32,U1 -0- '! 15,81C,868 52,455 16,524 243,U7 471,121

71,77036 126 115,810,868 191,300,216 79,244,993 ,{0,8E6,324 474,753

0
0-0-

56,930,786
6,577,699,116 2,721.632

-0-
-o-

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

000
000
000

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

-0-
-0-

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

56,930,7E6 6,577,699,116 2,721,632 0 0

$ 57,783,086 $ 6,649.,169,,162 S 2,721,75a I 115,810,868 $ 191,300,216 $ 79,244,993 $ ,|0,888,324 $ 478,7s3



Combining Balance Sheet
Trust and Agency Funds

June 30, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995

Exhibit G.1

Page 2 of 2

Agency Funds Total all Funds

Cash and pooled inveshnenb:
Cash with treasurer
Cash in custody of other officials

lnvestments

Receivables:
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest and dividends
Trades pending settlement
Intergovemmental receivables
Noles receivable
Olher receivables

Due from other funds
Inventory
Other assets
Land
Furnilure and equipmenl
Accumulated depreciation

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals:

Accounls pafable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Intergovemmental payables

Trades pending senbment

Due to other funds
Defered revenue
Notes pa}"able

Lease obligations

Othet liablnies:
Deposits
Other liabilities

Total liabililies

Fund balances:
Reserygdl

Encumbrances and contracts
Inventory
Othet:

Employees reliremenl sfslem
Principal of non-expendable trust funds
Olher

UnreseNed:
Desighated:

Principal preservation
i,iluseum projects

Undesignated

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Veterans
Cuslodial

Local Govt
Pooled

hvcstment
State

Payroll

$ 6,072A41
-0-

-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

1995
(Reslated)

$ 689,901 $
-0-

{-
-0-

6,3E0
-t',-

$ 78,618,8,15 $
357,078,332

69,129,026
313,906,'t69

,o8
-0-

404,923,526 7,174,542,216 6,284,823,41A

3,454,0E4

-0-

-0-

-0-

49,773,840
49,997 ,427

-0-
31,242,205

€,012,083
44,676,230
17,723,510
24,820,205

'189,561,596 173,936,633

120 120
723,603 458,113

283,658 256,712
450,550 348,054

2,977
912,275

$ 696,281 $ 408,378,018 $ 6,093,274

2,977
472,47

(ss5,1s0) (4e5,733)

$ 7,932,592,494 $ 6,973,470,004

$ -0- $

-0-
-0-

-0-

_o- $

,10E,357,03E

-0-

-0-

11 ,694
4,427

-0-

6,072,374

-0-

4,779

7,5,1t],388
22,46

558,055,4a5

31,590,222
93,416

16,3't't,508

79,O4t,238

9,907,581 $
12,530

613,719,454
54,001,763

36,202,521
79,707

9/a1,872
129,469

a2,761,165
't24,800,613 104,208,845

931,096,675 797,09E,0E3

696,2E1

696,281 40E,378,0rE 6,093,274

$ 696,281 $ 408,378,018 $ 6,093,274

6,5E0,420,74a 5,805,139,658
56,960,786 53,321,342

618,365 648,882

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-
-0-

-0-

-0-
-0-

0
0

-0-
2E3,658

69,028
256,712

900,000
144,942

315,851,357

-0-
-0-
-0-

-0-
-0-

900,000
173,78E

362,134,474

7,001,495,819 6,176,371,921

$ 7,932,592,494 $ 6,973,470,004
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Exoendable Trust Funds

Forthe Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995 Exhibit G-2

Total All Funds

Taxes
Sales and charges for services
lnterest, investment gain

Other:
Donations
Other

Total revenues

Curent:
Health and social services
Education and support services
Law, justice and public safety
Regulation of business
Recreation and resource development

Inletgovemmental:
Other

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
expenditures

Operating transfers in

Operating transfers out

Total other financing soulces
(usest

Excess (deflciency) of revenues and

other financing sources over expen-
ditures and other flnancing uses

Fund balances, July 1

Fund balances, June 30

Unemploymenl Museumsand
compensation History

$ 6,s02,898 $ -0- $ -0- $
173,410,19s -0- -0-

-0- 557,580 -0-

20,854,799 248,767 80,582

-0- E91,535
-0- -0-

-0- $ 6,502,898 $ 6,134,326
-0- 173,410,195 155,026,589
-0- 557,580 558,6,16

205,839 21,389,987 '17,931,036

Gift
Funds

custodial
Funds

1995
(Restated)

nlal

101,905 -0- 993,440 581,,134

250 6,64€,2A7 6,64a,537 6,459,758

200,767.892 1,697,EE2 1A2,737 6,854,126 209F02,637 186,691,789

147,624,534

-0-

6,805,743

-0- 1,21s,474
3,639 -0-

-0- 169,316
-0- 145,574

160,87E -0-

-0- 60,s37

1,|n,8,fo,008 138,379,272-0-
1,610,188 1,209,'l09

131 ,714
1,613,427

't69,316

145,574
't 60,878 112,78

6,866,280 6,421,'190

154.430,2n 1,610,188 164,517 1,590,901 157,795,6E3 146,254,V23

46.337.615 87,694 1A,220 5,263,225 51,706,754 4,437,766

-0- -0- 4 3E7,290
(2,626) (5,497,3,4) (5,,t99,969) (s,478,437)

(2,626\ (5,,[97,3,t3) (s,499,969) (5,091,'147)

46,337,615 E7,694 15,594 (234,118) 46,206,785 35,3,16,619

313.703,059 1,244p39 1,310,048 1,629,174 317,886,320 282,539,701

$ 360,0,|0,674 $ 1,331,733 $ 1,325,642 $ 1,39s,0s6 $ 364,093,105 $ 3'17,886,320

0
0

0
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonexpendable Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 1996 with

Henry Wood
Christmas

@
Inlerest, dividends

Other:

Fines

Land sales/miscellaneous

Total operating tevenues

totals for 1995 Exhibit G-3

Total Both Funds

Pe]manent
School

1995
(Restated)

$ 3,1192,'134

2,953,611

156,639

6,602,384

377.177

53,345,9€

$ 56,981,966

1996

2,92

-G.

3,728,804

3,'t't 5,155

3,731,7

377 177

Operating transfer in

Operaling transfer out

Net op€tating ttansfets

Net income (loss)

Fund balances, July t

Fund balances, June 30

+
(6,413)

(6,413)

(3,421)

54,601

5t t80

147,112
(s,728,8O4)

(3,5E1,692)

3,639,,1{4

53,291,342

$ 56,930,786

3,142,308

50,203,635

$ s3,345,9,r3

7,221,136 7,224,128

147,112 30,027
(3,735,217',t (3,490,103)

(3,588,105) (3,,160,076)

3,636,023
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances
Pension Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 with totals for 1995 Exhibit G4

Total Both Funds

Publlc
Employees'
Retlrem€nt

Legislators'
Retirement 1995

Relirement contributions
Interest, dividends
Investm9nt gaans

Other

Total operating revenuos

Benefit payments
Investment expense
Depreciation
Refunds
Administrative expense
lnvestment losses

Total operating expsnses

Income before operating transfers

Ope.ating transfers out

Net income

Fund balanc€s, July 'l

Fund balances, June 30

471,706,813
402,629,426
r89,092,552

1,775,451

-0-
'138,890

214,096
14,173

471,706,813
402,768,316
189,306.648

1,749,624

416,469,355
341,929,809
45,'t 19,315

1,893,584

1,065,2U,242 367,159 1,065,571,401 805,412,063

267,548,673
10,621,680

99,419
I,872,453
2,798,853

300,837

2,340

267,849,510
10,62 t,680

99,419
8,87 4,793
2,800,568

242,245,551
10,074,324

81,691
8,851,042
2,551,736

5,710

289,941,078 304,892 290,245,970 263,810,054

775,263,164

144,341)

775,218,823

5,802,480,293

775,281,090

5,805,139,658

541,602,009

5,263,537,649

62,267 775,325,431

(44,3/1)

541,602,009

62,267

2,659,365

s 6,577,699,116 $ 2,721,632 $ 6,580,420,748 $ 5,805,139,658
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Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonexoendable Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 1996 with

Cash flows trom operating activitl€s
Cash rec€ived from other governments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cagh flows fron ngncapital financing
activitles

Operating transfers in
Operating transte6 gut

Net cash used for noncapitalfinancing activlties

Cash flows trom investing activitles
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchase of investments
Interesvdividends on investments

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities

Net lncrease (decrease) in cash

Cash and cash equivalenlg, July 1

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of gperating income to net cash
provided by operating activities

Operating income
Adjustments to reconclle op€ratlng

income to net cash provided by
operating activlties

(lncrease) decrease in accrued receivables
Operatrng interest

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating acliv ies

54,601 $ 2,743,621 $ 2,798,222 $ 3,973,465

2,992 $ 7 ,221,136 $ 7,224,128 $ 6.602.384

totals for 1995 Exhibit G-5

Total Both Funds

Henry Wood
Christmas

Perman€nt
School

1995
(Restated)

3,166,425

1996

3,477,789 3,477,789

0 3,477,789 3,477,789 3,166,425

0
0

76,797
(3,703,573)

(3,626,776)

76,797
(3,703,573)

(3,626,776)

8,500,000
(13,299,730)

3,773,474

96,291
(3,409,974)

8,500,000
(13,299,730)

3,771,443

(3,313,683)

-u-
(3,500,000)
3,420,355

2,031 (1,028,287)

(1,177,274)

3,920,895

(1,026,256) (79,645)

2,031

52,570

(1,175,243)

3,973,465

(226,903)

4,200,368

-0-
(2,9s2)

(2,992)

(14,543)
(3,728,804)

114,543)
(3,731,796)

56,175
(3,492,'t34)

(3,743,347)

$ 3,477,789

(3,746,339)

$ 3,477,789

(3,435,959)

$ 3,166,425
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Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds

Exhibit G-6

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 Page 1 of 2
Balance Balance

Additions Deleiions

@
Assols

cash in cuslody of other officials
Investments
other receivables

Total assets

Lhblt les
Other liabilities

@
Ass€as

Cash with treasurer
Due lrom olher funds

Total assets

Uablt .s
Intergovernmental payables
Due to other funds
other liabilities

$ 'l9l,300,216

July I, 1995

$ 137,599
95,,195,256

13,958

$ 95,646,8|3

$ 95,646,813

$ 3,78r
24,992,43

54,523

$ 25,050,737

$ 25,050,737

$ 32,6,4
4,A4o,O76

't 3,958

$ 4,886,682

$ 4,886,682

$ 4,14€243
14,566,663
5,2A4,414

$ 23,999,320

$ 71,509
23,064,0.f3

1,260

$ 23,136,812

June 30, 1996

$ 108,732
t 15,647,613

54,523

$ 115,810,868

$ 115,810,868

$ 't,099,494,24a $ 1,098,997,'110
183,007,876 164,443,442

$ 1,2A2,fi2,124 $ 1,263,880,952

$ 1 ,1s2,s71 ,2s4
,15,852,920

447,931

1a9 j 43,7 42
2,104,019

cash with treasurer
cash in custody of other offlcials
lnvestmenls

Total assels

Liabllltles
Due to other funds
Deposits
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

@
Asssts

cash with treasurer
Cash in cuslody of other offlcials
Other receivables
Due from other funds

Total assets

Uab Mes
lntergovernmental payables
Due to other funds
Deposlls
other liabilities

Total liabilities

@
Asseas

cash with treasurer

Llab flles
Due to olher funds
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

,16,768

s 172,679,044

$ 13,s34,617
33,042,147
29,228,OOO

$ 75,804,964

$ 7l,509
75,718,397

'15,058

$ 75,E04,964

52,455

$ 't9't,300,215

$ | 1,61 5,230
35,691,'t75
3't,738,588

$ 79,244,993

$ 54,081
79,'l74,3E8

16,524

$ 79,244,993

164,883,842

$ 172,679,044

't68,519,,t93

4,112,783

26,534,544
2,451,21s

437,072
8,6E9

$ 29,431,520

14,055,556
12,006,306
3,322,841

7,795,202

6,817
$ 29,,131,520

$ 585,9E1

$ 2,611
583,370

4,292,34
't83,007,676

$ '1,173,195,503

€,844,156
453,618

$ 1 ,217,493,277

$ 2,228,656
17,415,691

7,795,OO2

$ 27,439,349

$ 54,081
26,520,034

2,726

$ 26,576,E41

335,256,161
516,200

2,257,395

324,267,713
217,425

2,079,906

37,52.992
2,749,590

614,56'l
1.141 1.181

$ 38,030,937 326,574,133 $ 40,888,324

128,337,838
,| 99,142,39E

679,802

$ 126,195,665 $
190,288,733

415,866

16,197,729
20,859,971
3,5A6,7n

471.121

5617 074 5,420,044 243,847

$ 333,777,112 $ 322,320,308

$ 815,106 $ 922,334

$ ,10,888,324

$ 478,753

114,217 109,'t 96
773,141660,932

$ 775,1,t9

Total liabilities

Assets

$ '1,'198,872,10s

107

$ 478,7s3



Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds

Exhibit G-6
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 Paae2of2

Balance
July l, 1995

$ 24,830
a7, 1a, ota

2,717,59

$ 375,,199,717

Deletions
Balance

June 30,1996

@
As.r6tt

cash with lreasurer
Due from other tunds

Total assets

Llabltltles
Other liabilities

Total llabilities

Cash with lreasurer
lnvestments
Accrued interest

Tolal asscts
Liabtt qs

Intergovernmental payables
Due to other funds

Total llabililies

@
Ass€as

Cash with treasurer
Inlergovernmental receivables
Other aeceivables
Due from olher funds

Total assels
LiabifiAes

Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Intergovemmental payable
Due to other funds
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

@
Assets

Cash with keasurer
Cash in custody of other oflicials
lnvestments
Accrued interest
Intergovernmental receivables
Other receivab|es
Oue from other funds

Tolal assets

L,a lues
Accrued payroll

Intergovemmenhl payables
Due to other funds
Deposits
Other liabililies

Total liabilities

+$
+

867,906
6,3EO

2,O22

17E,005 $ 669,901
6,380

$ 696,281178,005

166,934 696,281

$ 166,934 $ 696,261

7,652,272
41p62

s11,072,841 $
41,962
2,O22

$ 9,344,266,525
8,7,{3,560,852

3,431,064

$ t 8,091 ,281 ,,{6'l

$ 629,1'12,E83
20,9E0

s 629,13,863

509,493,010 $

$ 9,344,314,947
8,711,370,254

2,717,959

$ 18,058,403,'t60

$ 596,236,281
19,241

$ 596,255,562

$ ,o8
4p4,923,526

3,,t54,084

$ ,O8,378,01E

$ ,108,357,03E

20,980

$ ,108,378,018

6 n7t aal

20,E33

$ 6,093,274

$ 11,694
4, Ar'l

6,072,374
4,n9

$ 6,093,274

$ 64,672,065
38,749,497

552,309,727
3,454,084

669,004
1E3,036,270

$ 842,890,727

13,273

s 7,707,507

$ 21,593
-u-

7,671,394
14,520

479 A97 733

$ 9E9,392,765

$ 319,878,590
4,427

122,047,939
66,904,606

$ 11 ,292,421 ,612
17,935,672

8,776,348,287
3,4s4,084

2,313,940
662,913,170

$ 20,755,3E6,76s

479,890,173

$ 991,006,998

$ 319,888,4{19

123,6,16,959
66,914,347

$ 7,707,507

$ 56,151,6,16
?q a?n oal

497,456,1A4
)'11'' OaO

41 ,962
,151,030

164,905,E04

$ 757,35s,s,{6

$ 11,2E3,901,'193
14,a17,136

8,721,494,744
2,717p59

41 p62
2,095,866

644,782,704

$ 20,669,E5r,5E4

$ 21,593
558,055,4a5

23,8133,444
79,041,23a
96,353,3,16

$ 757,35s,s46

$ 319,878,590
1,930,650,651

365,223,771
,7 I OO A?A

99,552,908

$ 2,742,505,7s6

$ 319,888,489
1,875,003,200

359,988,598
23,479,9@
78,610,379

$ 2,656,970,s7s

11,694
613,702,936

29.119,057
a2,761,165

117,M,a75

Assets

Additions

$ s08,83s,562 $ 510,449,79s

375,480,€6
19,2E1

375,499,717
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General Fixed Assets Account Group
General Fixed Assets Account Group records fixed assets acquired or consructed for general

Hospitality Technology
Laboratory

The Hospitality Technology Laboratory is
a computer technology classroom designed to
introduce hotel students to the technology and
software applications necessary to become
successful practitioners. The lab is accessible
to all students of the College of Hotel Adminis-
tration free of charge and provides them with
access to the World Wide Web. In addition to
numerous industry specific computer prG
grams, the lab has applications for spread-
sheets, personnel scheduling, floor plan
design, and operations planning.
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Schedule of General Fixed Assets - By Source

June 30. 1996 Exhibit H-1

Land

Buildings

lmprovements other than buildings

Furniture and equipment

Construction in progress

Total gengral flxed assets

General obligation bonds

Federalgrants
General fund r€v€nues

Special revenue fund revenues

Giffs

Total investunent in general fixed assets

Schedule of General Fixed Assets - By Function

81,862,979

u7,032,056
46,139,286

205,141,194

225,498,880

r2,069,313 $

963,059

2,453,691

1,354,654

64,613,377

15,000

46,306,284 $

8,623,057

50,304,97E

198,227,096

9,736,680

33,833,961

584,485 $

16,398

2,747,788

31,61 1,211

1,443,408

8,758,714
2,804,889

51,634,591

37,694,979

21,738,682
77,351,317

5,15A,O22

$ 905,674,395

$ 339,592,022

70,r35,557
311,389,242

168.681,838

15,875,736

$ 905,674,395

s 67,718,796

12,407,403

107,141,04E

247,012,725

127,699,950

113,022,571

5,173,O22

680,175,515

225,498,880

Buildings Buildings EquiPment Total

Gengral government

Education, support services

Health, social seNices

Law, justice, public safety

Recreation, resource development

Transpodation
Regulation of business

Total general flxed assets
allocated to function

Construction in progress

Total general tixed assets

81,862,979 $ 347,032,056 $ 46,139,286 $ 205,141,194

$ 905,674,395
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Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets - By Function

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 1996 Exhlblt H-3

General
Fixed Assot3
June 30,1995

64,501,365 $
13,189,536

90,970,931

245,262,672
124,809,682

103,356,262

4,780,275
209,672,182

$ 167.885

1,048,937

2,130,703
5,570,472

415,721

6,243,285
194.731

't5,560.540

G€ngral
Flxod Ass€tr
June 30,1996

67,718,796

12,407,103

107,141.048

247,012,725
127,699,950

113,O22,571

5,173,022
225,498,880

Additlong Del€tlons

General govemment

Education, suppo.l services

Health, social services

Law, iustice, public saiety

Recrgation. resourca development

Transoortation
Regulation of business

Construc{ion in paogress

Toial general fixod assets

3,385,316

266,804

18.300,820

7,320,525

3.305,989

15.909,594

547,478

31,387,238

856,542,905 $ 80,463,764 $ 31,332,274 S 905,674,395
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Tourism and Convention
Department

Entertainment Sp e cialization

Entertainment is a central fbrce in our
lives. It shapes our beliefs, atritudes, judge-
ments and actions. Entertainment shapes us as

individuals, as groups, and as a sociery. It is
penasive. Entertainment is big business, a
business of creating-involving images and
experiences. As these images and experiences
proliferate and intensify, their impact grows
even more.

The tourism industry can be divided into
fbur segmens or cornerstones: transportation,
f<xrd, lodging and entertainment. From such
diverse sources as the Mall of America to
Disneyland and the themed resort hotels of Las
Vegas, entertainment has been woven int<r
virtually every aspect of the Tourism Industry
Resort properties refer to employees as "cast

members", emphasizing the whole of the
property is now considered a stage. Entertain-
ment is n() longer compartmentalized; it is a
part of the whole.

Until now, there has been no Hospitality
program in our Universities and Colleges to
address the entertainment portion oI the
T<rurism Industry However, the Department of
Tourism and Convention at the William F.

Harrah College of Hotel Administration,
under the direction of its chair. Patti Shock.
has created an entertainment concentration
which is exciting to students and industry alike.
The consensus in the Entertainment Industry
regarding the Entertainment Administration
concentration has been positive and has been
met with a great spirit of cooperation and
enthusiasm. Included among the many recog-
nizable names in the industry that have con-
tributed time to the Entertainment Concentra-
tion are : Cirque Du Soleil, Treasure Island
Hotel, Debbie Reynolds Hotel, Bally's Hotel,
Scenic Technologies, Inc., Dan Nelson Produc-



Budgetary Schedules
These Budgetary Schedules demonstrate compliance with the legally adopted budget

(Non-GAAP basis).

tions, Fremont Street Experience, PR Plus and
the Flamingo Hilton.

The Entertainment Administration Con-
centration now offers twelve courses and cross
references other courses through the College
of Fine Arts. Running the gamut from Enter-
tainment On The Road to Stage Craft and
Entertainment Law, the student has access to
just about every facet of the Entertainment
Business. The relationship between industry
leaders and the William F. Harrah College of
Administration has rendered internships,
mentorin8 pro8Tams, guest lecturers and
exciting back stage tours and field trips which
benefit our students.
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BUDGETARY TERMS

Balances Forwarded represent the financial resources carried
over from the prior fiscal year.

Balances Forwarded to New Year reoresent financial resources
car ed over to the next fiscal year.

Appropriations represent the authorization to spend revenues of
the General Fund or Highway Fund that are not otherwise
restricted to expenditure from a particular budget account.
Appropriations to other funds are shown as transfers.

Other Authorizations represent the budgeted amount of revenues
that are restricted to expenditures from a particular budget
account.

Total Authority represents the sum of planned resources. In the
operating budget accounts, it is also the limit on expenditures.

Expenditures and Transfers represent the actual amount of
expenditures and transfers which occuned during the fiscal year.

Unrealized Authority represents the difference between the
budgeted and actual restricted revenues.

Lapsed Spending Authority represents amounts that are either
reverted to the fund of origin or become available for re-
appropriation within the fund where the budget account is reported.
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Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis
All General Fund Budoets

Exhibit l-1
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 1996

Depaatrnent

1of I
Bal.nccs Appro. Author- Spending and Sp€nding Spcnding Forward to

Forw.aded priations izations Air(hority Transfeas Authoritv Authority New year

s 102,940 $0,257.314) $ 1,154,374 $ -0- I 1,9s9 $ 036,845) $ (24,890) $ 1s9,776

E<ecutive Breoch
Attorhey General Admin Acct
Attomey cen€lal Medicaid Fraud
Consumer Protoctloh Ftaud
Controllea
Council on Holocaust Prevention
Crime Prevention
Domestic Violence Programs
Ethics Commission
Extradition Clerk
Governo/s Mansioh
Governo/s Offic6
High Level Nucloar Waste
Investigations & Ehtorc€h€nts
Lieutenant Gov€rnot
Secretary of Stat6
Securities Division
SllS Fraud
Silicosis & Disabl€d Pensions
Special Fund
Special Servic€s€oc of State
Slate Treasuaer
Technology Advisor
Washington Ofiic€

Judicial Bnnch
Admin Offc€ of th€ Courts
Commission on Racial & Econ Bias
Dist J udges'/Widows' Pensions
Dislricl Judges salades
Dislricl Judges Travel
Division of Planning & Analysis
JudicialDisciplin€
Judicial Education
Judicial Records
JudicialSelection
Justices'/vvidows' P€nsions
Law Library
Law Library Gift Fund
Retired Juslice Duty
Supreme Courl
Legislative Eranch
Legislators' Retkem6nl

Total Constitutional Agencies

Adminlsbatlon
Budget Division
Clear Creek Youth C€htea
Commission for Wom6n
Commodity Food Prog.am
Controlled Substance GrEnts
Deferred Comp€nsation
Emergenry Fuhd
ceneral Fuhd salary Adjustm€nt
Graffiti Award Fund
H€arings Division
lnsurance & Loss Paov€ntion
lnternalAudit
Local Cultural Ac{ivilies
Medt Award Board
Public Works Board
Retked Emp Group Insurance
Rool Maintenance R6s€rv€
School Plan Checking
StalE Claims

't 59

561

-0-
{-
4-
I

293
1

128 -0-
-& 111
-0- 679
-0- 4,792

101 {-
-0- 96
-0- 318

497 -0-
339 -0-
-0- 7
-0- 261
-G 827

210 -0-

225
8

47

20

-0-

-0-
134

-0-

4-
3,619

3,240
19
50

440
.G
19

541

388

1,003
-0-
-0-

270
305

11

885

6,950
90

1,919
60

206

106
782
314

1,31'l

1,690
1,183

96
-0-

-0-

5,456
843

-0-

426
3

81
-0-

7,659
1,000

-0-
1,728

230
104

2,OO2
641
163
230

-0-
28

(28)
127

81
-0-

371

31
10

144

12,631
941
598

f,966

209
446
'109

344
1,378
7,828
1,565

263
3,414
1 ,183
2,166
3,849

2@
5,242
1,345

213
230

897
111
707

4,764
228
177
318
868
708

7

858
17

354
4,105

1,884
315

19
3,197

120

3EE
6.503

2,260
2,580

41
150

I

380
161
885

11,414
849
574

1,886
11

199
1'11

337
1,348
3,445

314
230

1,152
1,895

237
103

1,036
94

230

691
111
706

4,402

115

307

4
2t2
852

1

61
3,992

1,475
269

1

2,309
13
3

't4

't.451
429
58

532

5
57

657

275
-0-
{-
{-
+
3

320
-0-

4,375

.G

91
210

49

-o-
-o-
44

7

-0-
426
24
5

-0-
-0-
-0-

1

61

-0-

-0-
-0-

878

24

7
6

13
30

4

-0-

93
31

175

-0-
291

-G
-0-

-G

1

18

-G
3

49
3

-0-
-0-

105

91
17

-0-

-G
52
-G
2

-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-

64

14
49

-0-

7

528

3,609

3,304
18
70

_-J 14 -o- 14 14 -0- -o,

s,21o 24,s68 _ry_ ___ 61/4!_ 43,833 ______g.,lll_ ___a3lz_ _-___glgg_

1,274
118

200

-0-
-0-

16,090
-0-

441
150

5

170
197

2,456
35

8
-0-

(s,s87)
3

1,5?7
4-

-o-
5,083

150

115

314

18
462

374
6,503

1

1,068

92
1

I
138
317

224



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis
All General Fund Budgets

Exhibit l-1

Depaatment
Balanc.3 Appro. Authoa- Spehding and Spending Spending Fo.ward lo

Forwarded __Migggq j4g9q!_ __8't!gtiq_ r'ansfer3 _.,/lg!gjg_ _l"t!gl!!y- -!gE!L
Statutory Contingency
Surplus Property
Workmans Comp Hoating Reserve

Taxetion
oepartment ot Ta\.ation
Estate Tax Credits
Sr Citizen Property Tax Rebates

Educatloh
Aduh Basic Educalion
AIOS Education
Care oI Handicapp€d
Oiscr€lionary Gtants
Distribdive school Fund
Daug Abuse Education
EclA - chapt€r 1

ECIA - Chapter 2
Education Stato Ptog,ams
Education Suppod Services
Educ for Handicappod Acl
Educalion Technology Trust
Other State Education Programs
PGM Enhancem€nts
Post Secondary Educ Comm
Prol€ssional Standards
Profcienry Testing
School Lunch
Student Incentive Grants
Student Indemnifi cation Account
T€acher Training - ESL
Vocational Edu6tion

Unlv.rsity and Coir,t unlty College System
Ag Extension Service
Ag.i Experiment Stalioh
Athl€li6 - UNLV
Athl€tics - UNR
Business Center North
Business Cent€r South
Collegiate Licens€ Plate Acct
Computing Centot
D6e Res€arch lnstitute
Education for D€pend€nt Children
No Nevada Commudty College
Radiation Safety Board - Norlh
Radlation Saf€ty Board - South
School of Medical Scionces
So Nevada Community College
Stat€wide Program - UNLV
Stalewide Program - UNR
Studeht Loans
Truckee M€adows Comm College
lJnivsrsity lmprovements
lJniversity ot Nevada-Las Vegas
univ€rsity ot Nevada-Reno
University Press
University salary
Univ€rsity Supplementary
University Syst€m Admin
UNS - Special Projec{s
Weslem NV Community Colleg€

W. l.C.H. E. Adnl n I svati on
Wich€ Admihistralion

$ 1 ,'110 $ 4- $ 1,052 $ 2,172 i 2,170 $
96 -0- 163 259 133
-0, -0- 320 320 9

-0- $
7

292 19 -0-

4-$ 2
-0- 119

-0- I
-0- 1

-0- 69
-0- 27,@5
-0- 1

2 -O-
.{)- 277
-0- 2
-0- 8
-0- 13
I 13,123
61
-0- 170
5 781
-0- 4a
-0- 6
-0- 89
-0- -0-
20 34

-0- -0-
-0- I
-o- -0-
-o- -0-
-0- -0-
3 -0-
-0- 1a
-o- -0-
-G -0-
-G 18
264
-0- -0-
-0- -0-
-0- -0-
67 435
-0. -G
-0- -0-
-0- -0-

152 204
-0- -0-
-0- 1,474
-0- 1,210
{- -0-
-0- -0-
-o- 12,571
-o- 3,949
-o- -0-
-G 112

632 A.7U 2,142 11,558
2,346 -G -G 2,346
239 2,n9 -0- 3,018

1

64
34
+
2

1

151
4

-0-
320

7,504
t7

2s2
674

I
1

1

4-

1

129

471

-0-

408
-0-

2,947
2,420

-0-

20,200
5.500

-0-
224

227
.G

1.530
+

362.673

1,26i
-0-
-&
'0-

134

175

637
191

4,110
4,671
1,225
1,167

1,141
-0-

I,O47
2,063

20
5,354

-0-
12,6E4
24.856

74
14,477

61.611

517

167
2,006

192
8,783

186

2,O49

1,349
1,453

90,708
1,789

20,884
3,364

54
944

11,721

7
't,541

3S4
2

31,813
428

103
5.611

1,716
1,490

7
40
27
70
78

647

865

131

4,116

38
-0-

3,435

27,303

-o-

2,150
1,671

1't6

2,277
265

2,943
1,4A7

453,381
1,791

20,889
3,365
1,317
1,O95

11,725
25

461
46,040

1,313
32,O12

429
89

104

5,826
6,161
1,231
1,174
1,375
1.168

71
8.125
2,710

20
6,348

131
14,589
33,843

4,O37
74

18,320
2,371

91,861
82,414

521

20,367

2,342
10,678

191

10.964
2,U6

2,O44

1,6't I
1,O97

424,569
1,679

2,701
1,315

818

-0-
442

32,411
257
619

27,692

104

6,152
1,231
1,174
1,375

43
8,125
2,710

2
6,282

131
14,553
33,330

512
4,O37

74
17,907

89,633

521

3,602
2,342

10,514

1EE

321
1,807

111

635

418
17
6

497
4

1

4,272
25

-0-

205

-G
-G
-0-
-0-
10

-0-
36
11
-0-
-0-

2,371
754

1,285

-o-
-o-
-o-
52

162 198 234

-0- -0- 239

Unsmpfoyment Componsation Fund 436 --------g 464 9o0 518 

---:Z- 
--------i:- 

-?!!-
Total Financc and Adminisitaiion 8,809 30,437 -----!878 45,A24 33604 ------1?91- 

-----g 
10'461



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAp Budgetary Basis
All General Fund Budgets

Exhibit l-1

o(h
Balances Appro- Author- Spehding and Spendinq Spendinq Forwa.d toOeparlmeht Forwa.ded priations izations Authoaity Translers Authority Authority New y.ar

Musetrms, Llbrery end Ar1s
Art in Public Works
Comstock Histo c District
Comstock Historlc Diskict Gifrs
Cultural Resourc€ Program
Fourth Ward School Reslohtion
Historic Preservation
Lost City Museum
Museum Library & Arts Admin
Ivuseums and History
Nevada Hislo cal Society
Raikoad oepot - East Ely
Records l\rgmnUMicrographics
Stat€ Archives
State Arts Council
State Library
State Library - CLAN
Stat€ Library - LiteEcy
State Museum, Carson City
State Musoum. Las Vegas
V&TRaikoadl\ruseum

Total Education

Health R€sourcos Cost Review
HospitalTax Account
Human Resources-Direc-to/s Oflice
Nevada Commission on Sports
Purchase ol Social SeNices

Health Division
Aid to Counti6s
Cancer Conhol R6glstry
Child Health Services
Communicable Oisease Conkol
Community Heahh Servic€s
Consumer Protection
Emergency Medical Services
Family Planning Project
Health Faciliti6s
Health Faciliti€s - Admin Penaliy
H€alth Officer
lmmunizalion Program
Laboratory & Research
Radiological H€alth
Sexually Trans Diseas€ control
Special Childreh's Clinic
Vital Statistics
WIC Food Supplement

Aging Servic's
Aging SeMces
Senior Servicos Program

M en tal H ygi en dM en hl Retardatl on
Community Training Center
Desen Developmental Center
Facility for Mehlal Oflender
Mental Heahh hslitut€
Mental Retardation Home care
MH/MR Regional Training
Mntl Hygiene-Mntl Retardatrcn
Resid€ntial Placement
RuralClinics
So Nev Adult Montal Health Svc
Southem MH/MR Food Servrce
Sierra Developmental Center

$ 30$
1

1

1

-0-
214

2
2AO

-o-
7

304
37
I
7

-0-
6,214

14
.0-

-0-
'16

-0-

70
-0-

40
385

27

119
1,223

1

-0-
-0-
46

-0- $

135
125,940

9,117
14

17,252

721
310

4,4AO
1.430
1,704
2,565

631
548

47
1,277
3,664
3,154

907
4,962

22,709

7,667
5,O42

2,482
15,742

12,467
374

49
1,860
1,498
5,151

17,604

11,776

-o- $ 8

-o- 1

-o- 957
-o- 1

21

5 2,175
9 1'13
1 -0-
-0- 84

26 207

I -0-
-0- 67.598

4 t 1,649
-o- 14
-G 509

-0- 1

13 16
-0- 100
37 -0-
25 15

94+
-0- 40
-0- 960
-0- 40
'to 2
-0- 20
48 1,040
30 -&

111 (1)

-0- 49

,0- $ 22$ -0- $
6

99
14

62 13 76 68
-0- ,0- 1 -0-
4- 71 1,400 443
{- -0- 1 -G

151 445 636 534
186 a1 267 253
115 72 401 332 44

2,686 179 2,867 3A7 -0-
434 92 810 657 31
-0- 58 58 57 -O-

-0- 324 354 268 2
348 46 394 3s7 32
639

2,214
-0-
84

761

1,294 -G
1,OO2 3.520 2.9A7 300
432 469
45 130

495 1,263

362 105 -O- 2
124 4 2 -0-

1,143 78 6 36
13 584 64 661 653 7 4- 1

4- 1s7 288 485 464 ___-_____l_ 

-L 

+
,€,997 634,958 254,526 933,4A1 850,715 16,016 343 _qlgz_

-0-
-0-

1,414
-G.

-G

649
21

423
158
602

-0-
-0.

2a7
1,001

942
154
181

3,208
444

-o-

362

1,506
7,501
2,970

374
49

1 ,196
853

14,858
-0-

5,336

135
57,696

7,O24
-0-

17,2s2

72
273

2,502
607

1,476
1,963

6

2,944
20

945
2,544

989
730

4,7AO
704

22,663

6,121
4,639

1,376
I,215

2,443

-0-
270
645

1,736
2,624

926
6,392

117

7,3o5

'14,126

720

4,068
1,246
1,521
2,451

537
472

2,366
2

1,200

2,O30
750

4,230

730
22,116

6,936
4,185

2,866
14,Oa7
3,119

11,779
371

44
1,644
1,202
4,815

16,332
869

10,322

91

122
.o-

2,617

118
312
147
143
35
-0-

3
5

705

127
694

47
21

544

601 50 80
361 1 495

16 -0- -0-
444 1,197 14
s6753

290 356 42
-o- 3 -0-
-0- 6 (1)

150 146 -0-
80 254 2

372 9O1 ()
57 -0- .0.

234 1.219 1

24

-0-

2A
74
-0-
-0-

394

23
122

-o-
48



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GMP Budgetary Basis
All General Fund Budgets

Exhibit l-1

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996

Deparkn.nt

4ofB

Balances Appro- Author- spending and Spending Spending Foaward to
Forwa.ded j!!ig:_ ization3 Autho,ity T.ansters Authority _.,11g!!9Il!L Ncw Yeat

W.llts,re
Aid to Dependoht ChiHren
Assislance to Aged and Elind
Child Suppod Enforcernenl Prog
community Sorvices Block Grant
Employm€ht and Trdinine
Enorgy Assistance - Wolfate
Homeless Grants
Hom6making S€rvices
N€vada Medicaid
Saf€ty Seat Program
W€atheri2btioh - Welfaao
Wella16 Administration

Chlld end Femlly Servlcas
Allemative Placemenl
Caliente Youth Center
Chapter 'l - Special Education
Chapter | & ll Education Program
child Abus€ & Neglecl
Child & Farnily Oneshots
Child Car€ S6Mces
Children's Trust Account
Children, Youth & Family Admin
Oomestic Violonce
Fann Acct - Yodh Training clr
No NV child & Adolescent Svcs
Probation Subsidies
So Nev Child & Adoles Svc
Yorrth Community Servic€s
Youth Corroc{ions SsNices
Youth Training Cent€r

O?har Humen Rasourcas
lndian Commission
Public Detendor

Comm tor Nat'l & Comm Sv6
D.E.T.R. Admin Services
D.E.T.R. Direclo/s Ofice
Drug Commission
E,T&RAdministration
Equal Rights Commission
Occ lnformation Coordinalor
State Job Training Office

Rchebili6tlon
Alcoholism & Orug Rehab
Att€ndant Care
Blind Business Enleedso
Community Eased Services
Oevelopmental Disabililies
Oisability Adjudiqation
Headng Devicos Program
Sedices to th€ Blind
Social Security Admin/Voc Rehab
TEumatic Head Injury Program
Vocational R€habilitation

Tolal Humah Sewices

$ {- $ 28,388 $ 26,943 $ 55,331 $ 49,9s9 $ 2,769 $
+. 4.610 -G 4,610 4,419 -O-

555 + 30,469 31,024 28,86.{ 2,119
s -o- 2,946 2,955 2,338 615
2 2A06 3,755 6,',163 5,449 474
1 -O- 3,000 3,001 2,321 672
-(} .O' ,{69 469 3O2 166
+ -G 1,581 1,581 1.564 17

15,485 142,736 370,324 528,545 458,306 50,803
13 +. 107 120 88 16
11 -G 743 794 650 133

638 21,329 24,376 46,343 40,454 2,750

',639 
-0.

3,860 2

130 -0-
245 171

1.335 114
640 4
454 12

1,836 -0-
144

3,602 8
420 34

6,765 62
49,399 1,712
1,927 24A
5,085 1a2

1,742
947

64

1,137
5,O88

15,514

664
1€€

16
16

290
1,524

53

-0- $ 2,603
191 -0-
+41

202 38

-G1
-G {-

6,011 13,425
,0- 16
-G 11

473 2,666

134
13

-0-
98
25

-o-
89

12

(1)

4

1,662
1

618
69

I
0)
-0-
4-

542

4- 1,216 556 1,772
+ 3,1tt 421 3,875
I 6.16 3,025 3,680

20 -G 122 142
6 -G 416 422

2,528 -{} 68' 3.209
7 192 47t 670

537 -0- 547 1.084
141 3,001 12,260 15,402
355 -O- 1,750 2,105
17 4- 10 27
-0- 1,476 2,359 3,835
5 -0- 449 454
-0- 4,295 2,621 6,916

257 14,995 37,080 52,332
9 1.544 636 2,193
-0- 4,696 583 5,279

+ 9,1

10 523

-o- -0-

217
-0- -G

249 -0-
140 -0-

242 -O-

1U -0-
23 -0-
15 -0-
23 237
-0- 4-.G' -G

4
'1,304

464
1,825
1.009

49
1,764

744
5,620

18,406

634
256

27
23

277

'l18

1,837

464
1,825
1,016

1,764
1,376
5,869

18,546

876
360

38
317

1,963
277

96-0-11
1,685 51 48 53

Employm.t a, Thlnlng and Reheb lbtion
202 -0- 4
69 -G 14
50 -G '19

112
1,225 -0- 4
103 6 130
482 -0- 299

2,729 -0- 303

339 3,071 7,936 11,346 9,748 1,191 -G 40i7
-0- 738 -0- 73A 73A -0- -0- {-

2,495 -0- 1,593 4,0a8 851 240 -0- 2,997
-{} 139 993 1,132 999 105 28 -0-

232 18 416 666 450 88 -0- 12a
3 -0- 5,306 5,309 4,951 356 -0- 2

506 -0- 925 1,431 903 196 -0- 332
15 431 2,OA7 2,533 2,440 65 2 26
2 47 357 406 383 11 9 3
-o. 301 -o- 301 301 -0- -G -0-

266 1,733 8.0s0 10,04s 8,788 _______gg3_ __39_ s7s

96,583 304,692 749,806 1,151,081 956,614 81,049 13,329 100,089

Business and lndusty
Agri Registr.tion/Enforcem6nt
Agricuhural Producl
Alfalfa Se€d R€soarch
Apiary Inspeclion
Athlelic Commission
Attorney for lhjured Work€.s
B & | Industrial OeveloDm€nt Bonds

17

9

4
a2
41

-0- '195
-0- 105
-0- 25
-0- 16
13 10

354 3
-0- 1a3



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis
All General Fund Budgets

Exhiwt l-1

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 1996

Oepa ment

5ofB

Balanc.s Appro- Author- spending and Spending Spending Forward to

-Ery!I!!g!- JI!g!g!!_ izatiohs _.,119!!9I!L_ Trahsfers Authority Authority _qEgI_

944
-0-

114

4

Be€f Council
Bond Roclamalion
Business & Industry Admin
Consumer Afiaias
Consumer Affai.s Restilr.rtion
Employee Mgmt Relations Board
Energy Conservation
Fin Institutions Investigation
Financial Institutions
Finahcial lnstilutions Audit
Gas Pollution Standards
Gov Comm Employ Pple WDisability
Grazing Board cohltibutors
High School Rodeo Association
Hospital Patients commission
lns6ct Abatomenl
Insurance Cost Stabilization
lhsurance Education & Rosearch
Insulance Fraud
Insuaance Recovery
lnsutance Oivision
Labot Commissioner
Liv€stock Inspection
Low Income Housing Trust Fund
lv€ntally lll Advocacy
lVinerals
NAIC Fees
Nevada Jr. Llvestock Show Board
Petroloum Overcharge R€bal€
Plant Industry
Pr€datory Animal/Rodent Conkol
Real Estate Adminiskation
Real Estate Investigation
Rural Housing Adhodty
She€p Comrnission
Unclaimed Property
Veterihary Medical SeNices
Woolgrower Predatory Animal

cefitlng Contol
Gaming Conkol Board
Gaming Conkol-Forfeiturs Act

Economlc Development end Tourism
Comlrr on Economic Oevelopment
Film Divislon
Rural Community Development
Small Bus Revital & Fed Procure

Tolal Commerce and Industry

58 $ -o- $
392 -G
550 360
{- 796

215 -0-
1 110

252 -0-
.G 1,O9E
3 -0-

52 4-
-G 211
13+
-0- 17
80 -0-
43 -0-
47 -0-

388 -0-
114 -0-
40 4-
17 1,6i2

'tG5 850
106 -0-

5,739 -0-

68 -0-
39 -0-
-0- 30
9 -O-

2@ 1,211
14 502
32 1,249
7 -0-

34 -0-
9 -0-
-0- 107
54 601
49 -G

216 $ 274 $
683 1,075
525 1,435
-G 796

200 415
7 114

614 846
197 449
12 1,110

406 45a
50 261

-0- 17
112 192
13 56

146 193
147 535
586 700
-0- 40

7AO 2,429

876 982
3,394 3,133

-0- 93
869 937
21 60
-0- 30

575 584
608 2,019
41 557

247 1,524

5,549 5,5E3
10 '19

366 473
29 684
19 68

3,71A 21,610
250 295

179
513

3,088
513

3,243

-0- $
413

.0. $ 'r oo
-0- 658

16 117 550
{)- 54 -0-

186 {- 99
4- '13 -O-

164 {- 2C5
-0- -0- 361
-0- 175 -0-

-0- -0- 150
26 10 {-
20-G+
-{}. -G -G
-0- -0- 80
1 -0. 45

-0- -0- 407
20 -o- 153
-0- {- 6

1122+
-o- 98 76
7 -O- 203

-0- 5,711
-0- -0-
-0- 1u
-0- 36
-0- {-

42324€
{- 31 -G
7 27 16
5-0-3

5,275 -0- 1

-0- -0- 12

38 -0- 1

-0-u4
1 -0- 41

487
2,317

441
45

39
{-

109

17,451
-0-

46
'103

174 $

742
130
105
477

88

308
225

13
17

112
10

121
124
527

2,315
783
772

2,474

30

1,497
526

1,478

307
7

434
646

20,966
19

ao7
423

M,434
797

1A20

7,707
24,621
11,119

12,309
992

6,534

5,883
642

47 416 161
24A -0- 2A

E1

22
16
4

154
4l

105

316 469 396 32 4-
10,083 2A,971 28,689 67,743 46,704 8,826 1,467 10,726

Cadin Conservation Camp
Ely Conservation Camp
Ely State Prison
Humboldt Conservation Camp
Indian Spdngs Conservation Camp
Jean Cohseryation camp
Lovolock Correctional Centsl
M€dical Car€
N€vada Stale Prison
N€vada Womon's Correclional Ctr
No Nevada Conectional Ceht€r
Pioche Conservation Camp
Prison Administration
Prison On6Shot Appro 85 L€gis
Prison Warehouse
R*titution Center - Norlh

4,492
-0-

776
798

759
1,307

588
8,607

24,O74
10,261
2.958

11.397
1,O37

-o-
-o-

194

59
56

(s31)
57

165

Q4n
1,583
1,011

't11
1 ,149

53
591

-0-
6,279

546

119

835
854

15,002
816

1,472
641

7,860
25,657
11,272
3,069

12,546
1,090
7,O57
4,492
6,279

740

3

21
2
1

1

1

409
7

7
20

137
-o-

356

24 -G
2s (1)

147 -0-
18 (1)
51 {-
34 -0-

152 -0-
628 (1)
145 1

94 -G
230 +
7A {-

106 280
262 1316
40 -G
52 -G



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis
All General Fund Budgets

Exhibit l-1

oth

Department
Balahces Appro- Author- Spending and Spending Spending Forward to

Fotwarded J!B!q izations Aulhojity T.ansaers Auihority Authority New year

Restitution Center - South
Silver Springs Conser tion Camp
So D6s6rt Correclional Center
So Nevada Coneciional Center
Stewatl Cons€rvation Camp
Tonopah Conservation Carnp
W6lls Conservation Camp

Motor V.hlcl6s end Publlc Satety
Criminal History R€pository
Emerg6ncy Manageheht
Em€rgency Mgml Assistance
Emqrgency Mgr{-Federal Grants
Emorgency Response Commission
Fire Marshall
Forfeitufes
Haz Mat Training Centef
HighwEy Safety Plan & Admin
Investigations
Juslic€ Assistance Act
Motor Vehicle Pollution Control
Narcolics Cohtrol
Parolo & Probation
Parol€ Board
Paroles Loan Account
POST
Salvag€/Wreck€rsJBody Shops
Trafic Safety
Voleran's Alfai6
V€terans Hohe Account

Totel Public Safety

$ 321 t 374$ 5s5$
684 76 760

612 $ 11 $
732 1

13,075 15
7,623 2
937 -0-
770 4
800 3

$-G

-0'
-$
-0-

12,696
7,305

979
427
793

30 1,009
14 441
51 a44

73$ 0)
27 -0-

443 -0.
211 -0-
72 4-
68 (1)
41 -O-

333 -0- 5,1E5 5,518 4,237 1,193 a1 744 220 531 795 s46 146 59 44
144 "0- 956 1,100 920 123 -0- 57-0- ,0- 1,059 1,059 765 175 -O_ 119
294 -0- 536 A34 526 102 _O_ 206-0- 286 872 1,158 706 258 194 -O-
559 -0- 1,302 1,861 973 535 _O_ 353
362 -0- 704 1,066 739 76 _O_ 251-0- 7s 839 918 645 244 A 21700 3,689 10 4,399 4,307 4 8A -O-
-0- -0- 4,308 4,308 2,275 2,033 _O_ -O-

4,764 -0- 5,523 10,2A7 5,001 221 -O- 5,065
41 -O- 1,480 1,521 1,327 1A2 _0- 12

n1 18,200 2,SA 21,339 18,984 471 1,383 5ol
-0- 729 {- 729 685 -0' 44 -0-
5 -0-914 13 4 6
4- 174 1,157 I,331 754 1s9 41A -O-

112 -0- 125 237 138 16 -O- 83
{)- -0- 2,u0 234 1,135 1.196 -0- 9

337 536 417 
',290 

910 49 33 298
5 -G. 50 55 .0- 39 -O- 16

13,534 131,706 42.159 
'87.399 

165,144 a,235 5377 a,Az

Consarvadon and Natu'al Rsources
Adjudicalion Emergency
Air Quality
Air Quality Management
Ant€lop€ Middle R€ese Reserve
Baker & Lehman
Bouldqr Flat Grouhdwater
Carico Creek
Carson Vall6y Groundwater
Chann6l Clea6nc€
Chemical Hazard Prevention
Clove6 Area Groundwater
Cold Sprihgs Valley
Colorado Riv€r Valley
CohsoNation & Nat Res Admin
Cons6rvalion Diskic{s
Cresc€nt Walgl Gaoundwat€r
Cur|ant Creek
Oiamond Vallsy Ground Water
Duckwater Ca€ek
Eagl€ Valley
Envkonmsntal Commission
Envkonmohtal Protection Admin
Fish Lak€ Vall€y Artesian
Flood Control R€v Fund
Flood RepaiF & Oisaster Rel
For€st Fir6 Suppr€ssion
For€stry Admin
Forostry Honor Camps
Foaestry Intet€ov Agreements
Grounalwater Recharge Projecls
Habital Mitigation
Hazatdous Waste - B€atty Site
Hazatdous Was-t€ Managemenl
Honoy Lak€ Valley

3
132
680

11

1

4
1

4

-0-
24

7
1

7
'19

133
41

247

4-

120
114
529

1,345
8,875

12

-0"
-o-
-0-

{-

-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-

714
193

-0-

1

{-
4-
-G

450
1,477
5.151

-0-

1,997
1,46

10

16

321

2
2

-0-
4

111
43

1,631

5,332
943
993

31

346
1.650
5,000

120

6
2,129
2.085

14
I

14
1

20
241
396

3
28

71a
202

1l
27

134

1,764
46

250
50

5,742
5,196
6,144
5,439

145

17

-0-
1,475

7

10
25

177
1

1

1

199
1

-0-
4
8

124
33

-0-

2,220
4,453
5,454
3,47A

47

'145

1.315

3
MA

-0-
-0-
-0-

1

-0-
-G.
-0-

134
-0-

1

-0-

-0-
-0-

,]

-0-
11

197
-0-

1

+
3,560

'121

1,688
2

't,112
1,251

2

.o-3
-o- 506
-o- 1,153
-0- 7
-0- '1

-0- 't 0
-o- 1

-o- 10

-0- 85
-0- 4
-0- 1

-0- 27
56 -0-
21

-0- 7
-0- 18

-0- -G
-0- 24a
-0- 43
-0- 249
-0- 50

49 524
569 {-
-0- 273
-0- 96
-0- 548
-G 1,73a
-G 11,309
-0. 11



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis
Afl General Fund Budgets 

Exhibit t-1

Balances Appro- Aulhor- spending and Spending Spending Forward to
Department

Adjutant Gensral Construction
Military
National Guard Beneflts

Total Special Purpose Agencies

Class Size Reduction
General Services
tlEhway Fund - Adftinistration
Highway Fund - Admin Svcs

Forwarded priations izations Autho.ity Transfe.s Autho.ity --.49!!9liry- New Year

Humboldt Water Distric{
lmlay Gtound\ /at€r
Kelly Creek Groundwater
Kingslon Creek
Las V€gas Basih Wat€r Dist
L€mon Valley
Liitle Humboldl River
Low€r Reese River Valley
Maggie C16€k
Mason Valley Ground Water
Mining Cooperative Fund
lvluddy River
Muddy River Springs
Natural Heritage
N€vada Tahoe Regional Planning
North Fork Ground Water
Pahranagat Lake
Pahrump Artesian Basin
Paradise Valley Groundwater
Pleasant Valley
Pumpemickel Valley
Quinn River Diskibulion
Smith Valley Artesian Basin
Slat€ Lands
Slate Parks
Stsploe Valley Watel Basin
Storago Tank Manag€meht
Tahoe Bond Sale
Tahoe Mitigation
Tahoe Regional Planning Agency
Tahoe Water Syst6m
Truckee MeadowESuh ValleY
UppsrWhite River
USGS Co-op
Wam springs Gtound Water
Warm SpringJWinnsmucca creek
Water and Mining
Water Disl Rev Fund
Waste Mgl & Fed Facilities
Water Planhing
Water Planning - Cap improvement

Water Resourcos Legal Costs
Water Rights Surveyors
Wsll Orille/s Lic€nse

Wildlife
Wildlife-Boating Program
Wildlife-Heritags
Wildlife-Obligated Reserve
Wildlif€-Trout Management

Total lntrastructure

$ 111 $

3

18 -0-
43 -0-

16 -G

100

2

-0- 8,057
307 4l

1-0-9
1-G10
2 -O- 12
-0- -0- 30
-0- -0- 22

-0- 14
16 51

1-G
-0- {-
-0- 21
-0- 24
-0- 8
-0- 'l

-0- 1

-0- 3
-0- 13

37 1,009
-0- 32
-0- 294
4- 2.588
-0- 1.01'l
.0- 0)-0- 249
-o- 4
-o- 17
-0- 354

4- $ 124
4-3

-0- 1,036
-0- 12

151

1E
-0-

1,234
-0- 1,a74
-o- 304

-{l'
3.450

-o-
-o-

1A 4 -0-
444 249 124.,

1-0-1
45 24 -O-

15 -0'

1 -0-

-0- 1

11 -0-
624 21

-o- $ 195 $ 306 $

-0-77
-0- -0- 3

147 $
-0-
2

113
10

2

457 -0- 1,070 1,527 491 -O-

16 -0-+{- a 24 12 -O-

20 20 -o- -0-

+ -0- 11 11 1

-o- -0- 12 12 1

7 25 11

101 37 306
1 2 10
-0- -G 1

24 -O- 21

24 -O- 15 39
I -0- 3 11

-0- -0- 2 2
'1 {- -0- 1

-G4-44
194-524
24 545 81 650

295
14
52

1,407
97

143
32

I,464
445

1 ,108
4,076

73

27.726
9,741
1,500

43

4,'t 99
1

6,106
351

390
3,418

73

6,291
1,500

43

1,418 3,026
30 -o-

293 -o-
2,451 -0-
981 -0- 300 1,281 29
{- 898 169 1,067 1,068 -0.

-0- -0-
14 -O-

402 427 119 59
15 15 3
3 17 -0- -0-

-0- 1,506 742 705

3,039 7,4A3 6,154 2A3
4342-O-

500 793 -0- 499
230 2,661 75 18

1,801

705 327 5,944 6,976
28 -O- 2 30

-0- 3 17
-0- -0- 52

11-0-ls
1 4- -0- 51

1.858 -0- 919
-0- -0- 29

2,978 -0- 380
I 16 69

96 -0- 274 370
63 3,165 713 3,941

2A2 -G 50 332
46 -G 10 56
29 -G 36 65
-0- -0- 2 2

a37 639 14,420 15,896
1,585 -0- 3,682

-0- -0- 638

64 136
3,721

46
16
46

1

13,s36
5,267 3,231 162
638 -0- 334

55 14
-0- -0-
1-G
1-G
1 -0-

1,126 -0-

624
191

-.o-

1,621 -G 310 1,931 239 6a -0- 1'624

437 -G 461 898 447 --------L 
----! 

451

2A,776 17,336 67,sOO 114012 64,086 17'414 818 3l'694

44
-0-

-0-

-0-
1,272

73

-0-

I 070
2 760

-(). 94
265 202
4- -(}

-0-

-0-
-o-

85 85 78 -0- -0- 7

a2 1,345 ____!y3_ 5,342 3,95s 815 26s

-0-

27,726
I,741
1,500

43

-G
+
-0-
-0-

-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-

121



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAp Budgetary Basis
All General Fund Budgets

Exhibit l-1

oth
Salanc.s Appro- Author. Spending end Spending Spending Fo.ward toD.p.rlment Fotu arded prialions izations Autho.iti transfers luttroriti aunoriti I,tew yeai

High\,y.y Fund - Direclo/s Ofic€ $ -e $ 53 $ -O- $ 53 $ 53 $ -O- $ -O- $ -O-
Highrvay Fund - Drivers Lic€hs€ -0" 32 -G 32 32 -0" -0. {_
Highlvay Patrol -O- 421 -G 421 421, _O- -o- -O_
Information se ices -0- 56 -O- 56 56 -0- -{)- -O_
fntodm Finahce Committee -O- 8,225 -O- A,225 8,225 + -O- {_
L.gisfative Counsol Bu.eau -G. 11,7& + 11,740 11J& + _0_ -oL
Legislativ€ lntedm + 250 -G. 2SO 250 {- -0- -O-
Museums t History -0- 3OO -O- 3OO 3OO O- -o- -O-
Stabifizalioh ot Budget -O- 23,392 -O- 23,gg2 23,392 -O- -o- -O-
WICHE Loan & Stipond {- 308 -0. 308 -SOe 

{_ -{}. {_
Toiaf App.oprf.ted T.ahstcrs Out -G A3,7A7 4- E3/A7 AOS37 _O_ _O- 3,450

TOTAL OENERAL FUND 5 314,014 $ 8a6 g 2,33s,210 $ 2.9!9,110 $ 2,246,9s5 $ 2,912 $ (4S6) $ iy.,0.728



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis
All Special Revenue Fund Budgets

Exhibit l-2
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 1of 3

Balances Appro- Authol- Spending and spending Spehding Forward to
Departmcnt _@I!!g!_ _p!4j9E_ izations _.,/!gllE!E_ Trahsfers Authority _8g]!E4L _!glcel-

-G$ (42,107) $ (46,851) S 88,9s8Unr€stricted
Prior y€a. adl
Unbudgsled activity
Appaopriations to oth€a funds
salary Adjusimont

Sub-lotal

Publlc Sahty
Administrativs Services
Automation
Bicycl€ Safety Program
Directo.'s offc€ - oMV/Ps
DMV Hwy Safety Grants Acci
Drivers License
Ha2ardous lilat6rials
Hearlngs-DMv & PS
Highway Patrol
I\rotor Carier
I\rotorcycl€ Safoty Program
R6cods search
R€istration
V€rilication of Insurance

Sub-total

lntfastucfure
Bond Cons,truction
sound Banier
Tnnsportation Adminislration

Sub-total

DGbt S.wlcc fnnsf.rs
O€bt Service

Toial State Highway

73,212 t (4t4.726\ $ 341,s14 $ -G $
-G
-(}

11,947

7

+
-0-
76
-0-

329
50

5oo

2,73E
176

1,605
137

1

-o- -0-
t n1a -t1-

6,920 124
2,863 281

-0- 288
1,572

7,301

28,542

-G. 0,639)-& 183
-G. 7,639 -O-

(250) 68 (1)
.0- -0- 10,44713.965 3,518

-o- _ 3.342_ (3,233) _______lg 

- 

_ -0- 

- 

_____l!9_
8s,15s (40e,366) 33a,2a1 14.074 (3,s36) _11?:994 ___139J_4I _999!_

7,643
3,144

331
49 1,621

74 332
18 -0-
-0- 15

7,357 3 200 43

-G 1,132 1,139 717 342 -O- 80
864 8,165 7,746 92 327 .G

2,034 332 2,366 2,130
-0- 231 560 186
-G. 4,543 4.593

3,273 8,661 11.934
619

939 71 1,010 986 12

523 25 548 543 5
3,688 32.306 31,467

12 4-

1 'f 8 721 -0-
-0- 234 2
77 -O- 297

206 3,717 51

133 1.24A (2)

Class Size Reduclion

Total

__1.999_ _:1992_ 23,3$ 7a,s1o 67,E36 _--lf1!- 
-!-E- 

---ry

34,829 -O- -O- 34,829 34,829 -0- -0- -G
-G 620 {- 620 + -0- -G 620

137 356,828 1,174 sgiq-3!p!L 

-- 

32'067 
---1913-

__9L9!9_ _9!2.319_ 1,174 3s3,s88 3ss.886 2 
-----93,09L 

---L99!-
4- -O- 34,842 34,A42 34,A42 _________q ____jG_

121,725 2,o4s 3_,640._ ____s21,!l!_ 458,626 (3s.442) 

---JZ9L 

1o2E-

a.54o 27,726 18,876 s5.142 43,577 -o' ---------g ---1L!9!-
-----9's4---4-IE-JES----E-re- 

43'577'c-----i9:-LL,!9!-

-G. 3,OsO 3,550 97' 1,833 _______?3!_ ____!!9_

-0- 7,083 10,490
,o- 2a.oa4 28,098 26,472

3,974 59t
1,609 -O-

5 925
17

claimant Employment Prcgram
Employment Secu ty
Emp. Sec. Sp€cial Fund

Total

____j.g_ __- 't,ieo 7,360 144 

- 
72 --------!---Lg

9,s83 -(} 36,365 45.s4a 3o,s9o 2'272 

---- 

j:- 
--.!!I99-

3,407
14

10,638

3,121
11

(8,256)
2,283
3,560

578
1,568

-0-

19,336
1,049

552

21,718
3,332
3.560
3.673

642
1,840

10,940

3,241
7

551
1,504

unrestic{€d
Enforc€ment - lnduskial Safety
lndustrial Relatons
Insurance Insolvency Fund
Mine Insp€clion
Pr€vontalive Safsty
self-lnsured Insolvency
S6lGlnsur€d Workers ComP

Total

(876)
179
3'19

19

(20s)

4-
7

12

53

{- 267 4a 315 291 1 23 +

_1gn9_ ____+_ 21,42s 35,1es 1s,74e 
------l9ll 

--j9: 

--1!Jl9-

-0- 9.68s 10,657 9,700

272
75

123

414 -O- 543



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GMP Budgetary Basis
All Special Revenue Fund Budgets

For the Fiscal Year Ended J
oth

Exhibit l-2

Balances Appro- Author- Spending and Spending Spendihg Forward to
Depaalmcnt Forwaaded priations izations Aulhority Transfers Authorily Authority New year

lndigent Accideht Account
Suppl6m€ntal Fund-lndigenls

Total

Commission on Toutism

Total

EiE;:sffi
Ofiende6' Store Fund

Total

$ 3.084 $ -Gt s,320 $ 8.404 $ 5,033 $ -O- 9 -0. $ 3,371130 -0- 3,080 3,210 2,988 50 4_ 172

3,214 4- 8,400 11,614 E,021 50 -o- 3.543

2,410 4- 7,529 9,939 6,692 17 -O- 3,230

2,410 4- 7,529 9.939 6,692 17 -G 3,230

572 -O- 8,002 8,574 5,830 1,076 -O_ 1,668

572 4- A,62 a,574 5,830 1,076 -O- 1,668

Colorado River Commission
CRC Ros€arch & Dov€lopment
Fort Mojave Devolopm€nt Fd

Toial

-0-701
397

a\t
322 719

s4s 414 {- 690
2sa 219 {" 242

Audit Contihgency Account
Legislative Counsel Buroau
Legislative Counsel Erpansion
N6vada Logislative Int6rim

Tolal

4,161 -0- 15,145 t9,306 1,128 f4,858 _O_ 3,320

5,259 -O- 16,419 21,678 1,935 15.491 4_ 4,252

33 -0- 104 137 104 -O- -O- 334,805 11,740 1,449 17,994 14,435 41 -O- 3,51816,029 + _0_ 16,029 2,981 4_ _O_ 13.q8{- 250 -0- 250 -o- 4
20,867 11,990 1,553 34,410 17,766 41 _O_ 16,603

7,986 .0- 1,202 9.188 256 341 -o- 8,591

7,986 4- |,202 9,188 2s6 U1 ..0_ 8,591

Higher Edcuation Capital Construction -O- {- 5,000 5,OOO 5,000 _O- -O- -O_
High€r Eduqation special construction 12,145 4- 1o,1si 22,296 to,zaq xi -o- 11,695

12,145 4- 15,151 27,26 153A4 217 -O- 11,695

32,a29 32,A7A 32,3'8 -0- {_ 560
49 {- 32,A29 32,E7A 32,318 _$ _o- 560

7 -o- 557 564 557 -0- -o- 7
7 + 557 564 557 4_ -O- ?

7,2AA _0_ 11,489 18,777 4,265 -o_ _o_ 14,5124.760 -{} 28,185 32,945 17,251 3,s27 4_ 11,767
12,04 -O- 39,674 51 ,722 21,516 3,927 _O- 26,279
12,104 -O- 73,060 85,164 54,391 3,927 _o- 26,846

9,770 A,225 126 18,121 2,974 s -o- 15,142
9,770 a,225 126 18,121 2,974 5 _u 15,142

Municipel Bohd Bank Revenue

Sub-total

connarce end lndustty
Water Projecls, InuRedemp

Sub-total

lntrastructuE
Grahts lo Water PurveyoF
Stal6 R€volving Fund

Sub-total

Total Municipal Bohd Bank

lhterim Finahce Commlttee

Total

Radioactive Material oisposal

Total

124



Schedule of Departmental Resources and Uses, Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis
All Special Revenue Fund Budgets

Exhibit l-2

Oepartment
Balances Appao. Author- spending and Spending Spending Fo,waad to

_@g_ _el!3]!jg!_ izations _.,/!g!E!j!L -@]q _g!!9lg_ Authority NewYear

Admihist.alive Fees
Dairy Commission
Gaming lhvestigation R€volving
lnsurance Examin6ls
Manufactured Houslng
lvltg Housing - EdudRecovery
Mobilo Home Parfts
Rsal Estate Educ & Rss€arch
REal Estate Recovery Account
Regulatory Fund
Taxicab Authority

Total

$ 6$
309

2
685
212

2

50
1,063

-0- 5,108
-0- 3,364-0- rca
-0- 102

41 $ 475 8$ 36 I
s82 1,291 1,055 1

4-$ 3
{- 235

-0- -0" 743
44-27
-(} -0- 4@
42 4- 357

204 -0- 930

390
3,750
1,250

129

5,1'f0 4,070 160 A7a ?
4,049 3,067 6 306 670
950 571 3 -0- 376
789

Stabilization of Stato Govemment

Toial

156 158 127
-G 796 336

37A 428 29
7,317 9,418 8,280

1,79A
3,987

377

-0-

't 038
1,622 -0- 3,139 4.761 3,018 -O- 

-_Jf43_

5,434 1 ,038 21,32s 27,7s7 _39.601 __160_ ___1M_ s,szt6

.0. 100,000 -0- ___199,099_ {- _l!9p99_
+ _L9@_ -0- 10o.o0o ___j: -c + _lry_

Consum€r Advocat€
Judicial college
Juv€nile and Family Law College
Private Inv€stigators Licensing Bd
Rack6teering-Prosecution Acct
Unfak Trade Praclic€s

Sub-total

F i n sn ce an d Adml n I stratl on
Public Wo*s hspection
Viclims of cdme

Sub-toial

Educatlon
l\ruseums & History
W.l.C.H.E. Loan & Slipend

Sub-total

Commerce and lndustry
Lot Rent Trust Subsidy
Rural Rehabilitation Trust

Sub-total

Human Seryices
Alcohol Tax Program
Blind Gifl Fund
CBS Washo€ Giff Fund
Children's Hom6 Gift Fund
CYC Gifr Fund
Handicapped Comm Gifr Fund
Health oivision Gifrs
Henry Woods Chdstmas Fund
Hospital Gifr Fund
NNMRS Gifr Fund
Rehabrlitation Gifr Fund
sNMRS Gifr Fund
Substance Abuso Ed, Prv, Enf, T.t
Welfaao Gifr Fund
Youth Training Cent€r Gifr Fund

Sub-tolal

Total Misc Special Revenue

Total Special Revenue Funds

419
3,750
1,250

143
5

29

4-

4-
{)-

94

4-

1314
237

79
248

1 379
237

79
234

0
0
0
0
0
0 50 79 4 4a -0- 27

5,s96 -O- 1-979 7,s75 1,82 142 {- __ J.9!1_

2,210
2,6ss -0- ______L!13 ___:!!L 2,3oo 1s1 -0- ___ry_
2.715 -& 4,235 6,954 4,510 402 -G 2,042

16 -O- 2,426 2,442 211 -O- 21

-o-
380

380

0300
308 459 1,147 767 6 86 __-?!9_

459 1.447 767

-0- 646 730 674 -O- -0-
-0- ,{0 114 35 32 4'
-G 7 13 5 .0- -0-
-G 45 4A4 25 24 -0-
-0-3621-0-
-0- 31 46 23 4- -0-
-0- 13 41 t0 10 -0- 21

-0- 6 6 -G -O- -O- 6
-0- 22 227 6 I -G 212
-0- 210 11-G8
-0-45-0-4-0-1

341 -0- 376 717 360 3 -0- 354
76 -O- 61 137 52 16 + _-____99_
417 -0- 437 854 412 19 {- 423

84
74

439
3

28

205
8
'|

3
27
11

11 ____:9: 5 16 1 _-___l_ -0- 11

91s -0- a34 1,749 ___J!_ 94 -0- 864

10,023 608 7,948 18,579 8,362 663 86 9,468

_9___4L9Z1_ _g___t9:.,,999- r-- rgJ99- -9-1,040J1!- -!--19!199- -!--111€9?t i-U39-.!-9!9f29-

47

3
23

-0- 10 13 -0- I -0-
-G -0- 27 6 -G -O-

{- -0- '11 3 -G -O- 8
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Schedule of Revenues-Budget Actual,
All Special Revenue Fund Budgets

Exhibit l-g
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands) Page 1 of 2

Final Final
Budget Actual Variance

State Highway
Budget Actual

Class-size Reduction
Vadance

121,A02 $ 121,E02 $

139,242
183,633
r2,633
80,668

I,012

'r20,390

192,432
9,E54

97,375
9,147
7,807

(18,8s2)

(2,779',1

16,707
582

(1,20s)

E,540 $ 8,540 $

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

1 170
0

45,432 45,432 -G
-0- -0- -G90

2,O49
90

2,O49

$ 557,604 $ 560,946 $ 3,342 $ 55,142 $ ss,142 $ -0-

Employment Security Regulatory

Fund balances, July 1

Revanue€j
Federal
Olher taxes
Sales, charges for services
Licenses, fees and permits
Interest
Other

Olhet fl nancing soutces :
Transfer from olher funds
Reversions from other funds

Total soulces

Fund balances, July 1

Revenuesr
Gaming taxes, fees, licenses
Federal
Other laxes
Sales. charges for seryices
Licenses, tees and permits
Interest
Other

Other fr nanclng sources :
Transfer frorn other funds

Total sources

Fund balances, July 1

Revenuqs:
Federal
Sales, charges for servlces
Interest
Other

Other fi nanc lnE sources :
Proceeds from sales of bonds
Transter from other funds

Total soulces

9,583 $

478
808

705

9,583 $

25,981
6,307

425

3EE
80E

-0-

-0-
(1,872)

(214)
425

(s0)

5,,f32 $

5,108
127

16
7,749

122
1 ,420

5,432 $

4,94
't 33

6,€'l
17

128
1,378

(168)
6

(156)
1

(s3)

(42)

$ 4s,948 $ 43,676 $ (2,272)

Legislative

1,1E3 'r,'r 30 (53)

$ 27,794 $ 27,335 $ (459)

184 (521)

Municipal Bond gank

20,867 $ 20,867 $

-0- -0- -0-
12,363 12,322 (41)

$ 34,4't0 $ 34,369 $ (41)

Workers'Compensalion
and Safety

(3,742)

(37)
(721

(76)
-0-

$ 85,163 $ 81,236 $ (3,927)

13

(13)

-0-
BZ3
{-

8'10

370

12,033 $

36,010

26,626
-0-

12,033 $

4,O94
-o-

26,550

Higher Edqcation
CaDital Conslluction

Fund balances, July t

Revenu€s.'
Gaming taxes, fees, licenses
Federal
Other taxes
Sales, charges for services
Licenses, fees and permits
Interest
Other

Other fi nancing source-s:
Reverslon from other funds

Total sources

13,770 $

-0-
1,250

19,106

199
427
443

-0-

'13,770 $

1,204
17,112

3
191

I ,107
1,283

615

(421
(1,994)

J

6E0
840

12,16 $ 12,146 $

14,934
-0-
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

(216)

-0-

f 5 t50
0
0
0
0
0
0

$ 35,'f95 $ 3s,289 $ 94 S 27,296 $ 27,080 $ (216)
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Schedule of Revenues-Budget and Actual, Non-GMP Budgetary Basis
All Special Revenue Fund Budgets

Exhibit l-3

Final Final
variance Budget ActualBudqet Actual Variancc

Cleaning Up
Petrolem Discharg.s

Hospital Care
lo Indigent Persons

s72 $

9,000
235
350
t00

972 $ -0-

(63)
(11)

(2s4)

3,214 $

7,az3
+

3,214 $

7,721
+.

(102)

N
339

8,937
2A

14 (86)
za

$ t0,657 $ ,|0,2i13 $ (414) $ 11,614 S 11,564 $ (50)

Tourisrn Promotion Ofrenders' Stole

Fund balances, July'l

Revenu€s;
Other tax6
Licenses, te€s and permils
Interesl
Other

Total sources

Fund balances, July 1

Reveflues.'
Other taxes
Sales, charges for seryices
Licenses, lees and permils
lnterest
Other

Oaher fr nanclng sources:
Transler from other funds

Total soutces

Fund balances, July 'l

Revenuos.'
Sales, charges for seMces
lnterest
Other

Other nnanclnE sources :
Transfer from other funds
Reversion from olher funds

Total sources

colorado River commission

2,48 $ 2,,108 $

7,411

1

24

572 $

7,964
4-

572 $

6,724
-0-
66

'130

-0-

(1,24o]
-(!
42

121

(16)
(1)

-0-

7,427

73

I

24

$ 9,938 $ 9,921 $ (17) S 8,s7s $ 7,'198 $ (1'02)

Contingency

5,259 $

1,241
152

15,026

5,259 $ -0-

(672)
182

(1s,001)

-0-
-0-

9,770 $ I,Z70 $

-(!
-0-

-0-

4,276

-0-
-0-

4,276

569
334

-0-
4--0, 71 (4',,

$ 21,678 $ 6,187 !____lLs,4rll_ _9___.!!J31 5 18,117 $ (4)

stabilizc the operations
of State Govemment

Care of Silcs for
Radioastive Waste Disposal

7,985 S 7,986 $

348
512

-0-

(328)
(13)

-0-

-e$

0
0

0
0

0
0

676

-0- -0- 100,000 100,000

$ s.187 $ 8,846 !_______l91ll_

Miscellaneous Toial Special Revenue

Fund balances. July 1

Revenuss.'
Licenses, fees and Permits
lnterest
Other

Total sourccs

Fund balances, July 1

Rev€nue5;
Gaming laxes, fees, licenses
Federal
Other taxes
Sales, charges for seryices
Licenses, fees and permits
lnterest
Other

Othef nnancing sources:
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Transfer from other funds
Reversions from other funds

Total sourccs

't0,020 $

-G.

646

4,321
383
742

-0-
2,14

't0,020 $

-0-
-0-

646

3,843
684
6,13

-0-
1,99'l

-0-

(478)
301
(se)

(1s7)
4.

20,25A
176,30E
240,793
22,674

4,447
30,926

26,626
72,179

244,374 $ 244,374 S

19,875 (383)
151,806 (24,502)
247,04 6,255
1a,424 (4,2s0)

109,750 
'5,828,19,898 1,,{5t

115,373 Ul47

26,ss0 (76)
71,4A (n1\

$ 18,260 $ fl,A27 $ (433) $ 976,s82 $ 1,05s,281 $ 78'699
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Faculty Development
Monies gifted to the college by hospitaliry

corporations are used each year to enable
College faculty to travel to attend professional
conferences and meetings. The ability to
provide financial support so that (krllege faculty
can keep in touch with their counterparts in
industry is key to the College's success as a
leader in hospitality education.
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Statistical Section

Alumni
Approximately 3,500 students have gradu-

ated from the College during the past 29 1,ears.
These alumni hold a variety o[ impressive
industry positions not only in Las Vegas, but
worldwide. The College keeps in close contact
with its alumni through bimonthly newsletters.
The College also hosls alumni receptions at the
Internadonal Hotel. Motel. Restaurant Show
held in New York City and the National Restau-
rant Show held in Chicago.
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The UNLV International
Gaming Institute

The UNLV International Gaming Institute
utilizes the expertise of College faculty to assist

the gaming industry with research and educa-
tional seminars. Specifically, The International
Gaming Institute provides managerial training
programs, seminars and research for the casino
entertainment and gaming industries, gaming
regulators, gaming educators, undergraduate
and graduate students.
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General Governmental
General Governmental

Expenditures and Other Uses by Function *

Revenues and Other Resources bv Source *

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
Table I

1987 t988 ,t989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996

30

Expdnditlrr.s:
General govemment
Hsallh, social services
Eduoalion and supporl

public safety
Regulation of business
Transporlation
Rscrealion, resource

Capilal improvsmsnls
D€bt seNice
Other Uses:
Universily
Total expenditures

and other uses

$ 59,328 $ 63,117 $ 57,746
338,130 383,366 384.666
235,506 302,606 22,570

98,930 114,U7 122,12r
34.509 37.@8 39,597

204,030 180,055 213,566

54,752 8F42 66,117
317,675

20,304 53,177 35,225
40,591 49,645 57,457

$ 64,52s $ 75,742 $ 75,770
864.576 994,633 1,061,930
23,009 24,633 25,42

211,015 224,2A1 256.015
54,664 58,925 58.819

347,064 368.040 344.1A3

72,635 77,273 80,713
495,2E7 4A2310 608,781
49,871 40,54A 27,932
76,739 107,225 138.791

$ 53,925 $ 58,806 $ s9,379 $ 64,123
463,5E3 594,066 863,110 909,041
18.766 19,226 20,762 22,356

151,654 170.611 192,550 199,261
43,262 44,890 58.000 59,673

252,439 216,55.1 240.88a 2m,995

60,788 62,122 69,545 68,603
395,050 471,575 503,543 474,193
44,719 50,249 48,645 60,887
67,333 74,142 73,638 224,377

108,'f42 118,6s1 12a,7a6 222,644 168,613 276,773 1s6.1ul3p_ __E_gL_399lggl_

_!t!992?3_ _!1 9!1.651_ -!L@9_ _$128J-9!_ _l1f!tf!1_ _!?199.919_ t2,542,9 u.4n d22 _!?11L999_ -lgz:Z9z_

Table ll

1996

camins lares $ 250,565
salss tax€s 191,310
fnlergovemmenlal 294,248
othertares 242,114

pe.mits 81,056
Chsrges for seryics

Olher

35,852 20,796
55,188 59,593
46,624 59,185

s 332,074 t 377,194
246,064 297F7A
320,218 365,340
312,918 385,815

112,243 121,422

21,734 25,004
73,532 79,865
35,738 35,439

80,126 114,702
7,624 12,742

s 416,546 $ 426,621
307,945 310,770
421,OO1 562,120
412,159 574,685

116,532 148,567

25,564 2a,440
79,763 64,100
30,652 44,601

100,293 180,2'16

s 517,524 $ 566.834
446,504 502,960

694,031 729,808

't75,139 185,375

39,751 41,48
68,387 91,595
43,159 42,699

$ 306,236
216,296
284,n9
303,289

96,570

1990 1991 1992 _L999__1991_
$ 453,084 $ 490,165

343,604 402,548
645,228 709,128
661,839 648,390

164,741 166,094

29,579 39,657
56,959 45,572
60,125 48,797

Other Resourcas:
Nst proceeds froh
debl llnancing 99,824 66,137

Nel op€rating transfers 1,062 5,267
Olhsr

32,006 218,632 90,093 239,531
12,338 3,740

213 67
Total tevehues and

other resources -gj?glggz_ -U.4re!9_ -!.,,91341_ -gLg]!J_q]- -q94I99_ -9.93!,s?L

' Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital Projects and Expendable Trust Funds.

have been netted and included as other uses. Operating transfers in/out have been netted and

56 149 1m 357

s2,451,O37 $2,773,2A6 $2,9'14.581 $3,283.181

Note that transfers to/from comDonent unil

included as other resources

3,816 4,'153 s,274 4,429

Fiscal Year Endad June 30
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State Collected Gaming Taxes and Sales Taxes
Ten Largest Taxable Property Owners

(Expressed in Thousands) (Unaudited)

Table I
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

GAMING TAXES SALES TAXES

Fiscal Year
Ended

Juno 30

1987

1988

1989

1990

1991

1992

1993
'1994

1995

1996

State
Share

Gaming
Taxes

Gross
Taxable
Sales

State
GrossTaxable Collectiong

Gaming Gaming
Revenues Taxes

Stato Sal€s Taxes
Gross General collectgd

Sales Tax Fund for Local
Revenues Revenues Governments

3,709,273 $

4,073,283
4,433,770
4,911,178

5,411,475

5,570,752

5,871,840

6,397,278
6,821,022

7 ,240,837

271,1U 5 269,449

308,589 306,236

334,369 332,074

379,561 377,194

41a,912 416,545

428,934 426,621

455,182 453,084

498,709 490,166

522,448 517,524

565,92'1 563,198

$ 9,583,447

10,806,016

12,334,591

14,091,551

14,514,119

14,437,144
15,665,903

18,215,224

20,075,579
22,222,771

$ 556,238 $

637,992

725,453
832,912
8s8,093

942,850

1,071,886

1,245,720
1,374,636

1,541,703

191,310 S

226,983
260,517

297,578
307,945

310,770
343,604

402,548

446,504

458,336

364,928

411,009

464,936

535,334

550,148

632,080
728,282
442,788

928,132
r,083,367

Sour@s: Nevada Gaming Control Board

Stale Deoarlment of Taxation

Nevada Power Company
Mirage Resorts Inc. (Las Vegas)

Sierra Pacific Power Company

Circus Circus Properties (Reno, Las Vegas)
Hilton Hotel Corporation - (Reno, Las Vegas)

MGM Grand Hotel Inc (Las Vegas)
Howard Hughes Propertes L.P. (Las Vegas)

Caesa,s Palace Realty Corp. (Lake Tahoe, Las Vegas)

Harrah's (Reno, Lake Tahoe, Las Vegas)

Oasis Residential Inc. (Las Vegas)

Totals

Source: Oegarlmenl of Taxalion

Table lV

$ 508,307

427,301

421,665

406,722

323,419
287,089

183,557

179,07 4

172,7A2

$ 3,079,481

Assessed
Valuation

Percentage of
Total Assessed

Valuatlon

1.46 '/o
123
121
1.17

093
0.83
0.53

052
0.50
0.49

887 %



Average Combined Tax Rates and State Levy
Assessed Value of Taxable Property

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

Tar Rat6 Per tl00 of Assessed Value
Average

Rate in State State Gov't

Tabte V

Tax Levy
State Gov't

Fiscal Ygar
Ended Jun€ 30

1988

1989

1990

1991

1992

1993

1994

1995

1996

1997

Cla* Washoe
County County

15 Other
Counties

2.4699
2.5081

2.6836
2.7438
2.7719
2.8043
2.811'l
2.7813
2.7881

2.328/.

27704
2.9142
3.1609

3.2389

3.41,10

3.3545

2.0361

2 0033

2.2145
2.3701

2 4962
2.5884
2 59'19

2.5942
2.5355

2.3433
2.4140
2.5888

2 6634

2.7770

2.8550

2 8661

2 8505

2.8580

0.0470
0.0646
01010
0 1180

0.1370
0.1440
0.1500
0.1500
0 '1500

0 1500

l5 Othe.
Counties

$ 7,309,550

10,853,517

18,771,251

24,226,913
30,904,428

34,979,018

39,199.474

42,442,O59

46,653,503

51,138,6't 1

Tabte Vl

Market Value
Total
State

Clark
County

8,361,685
9,085,929
9,990,576

11,294,875
12,964,606

14,267,U9
15,57 4,486
17,'107,695

18,909,831

2't,023,607

Washoe
County

3,934,200

4,103,366

4,391 ,1 18

1,558,300

4,700,274

4,908,661

5,179,851

5,440,391

6,482,287

(1)

Sourc€: DeDartment of Taxation

Historically, outstanding delinquent taxes have been minimal. The two largest counties have for the past ten years had less than
'l /2 of 1 percent of the current lew as outstanding delinquent taxes at the end of the collection period.

(1) Revised

Assessed Value (2)

Fiscal Yeat
Ended Junq 30

't 988

1989

1990

1991

1992

1993

1994

1995

1996

1997

Source: Department of Taxation

(2) Excludes redevelopment valuation. Assessed value is approximately 35olo of fair market value

Total
State

3,256,351

3,611,815

4,213,702
4,678,107
4,893,097
5,114,774

5,378,646

5,746,620
6,328,966
6,586,513

15,552,236

16,801,110
18,585,396

20,531,282
22,557,977
24,290,984
26,132,983
28,294,706
31,102,336
u,092,407

44,4U,960
40,003,',I71

53,101,131

58,660,805

64,451,362

69,402,81'l

74,665,666

80,842,017

88,863,817

97,406,877

(Exprcssed in Thousands)
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General Fund Expenditures and Unreserved Fund Balance
Constitutional Debt Limit

For the Last Ten F,.scal Years

Fiscal Year
Ended June 30

G€neral Fund
Expenditules

Unreserved Fund
Fund Balance

55,517
87,088

56,618

82,831

43,393

583

32,732

39,616
(26,809)

10,107

Obligatlon
Payable SubJect

to Limlt

Tahte Vll

"Ralny" Day (l)
Fund Balanca

18,057

r00,000

123,392

19E7

1988
't 989
1990
loot

1992
1993

1994

1995

1996

Fiscal Ygar
Ended June 30

609,668

731,940

813,089

959,327
't,136,595

1,382,077

1,385,788

1,418,582
'1,578,382

1,792,460

(1) The 1991 Legislature established a fiscal emergEncy (rainy day) fund that is funded with 40% ofthe unreserved fund balance thal exceeds

10% of appropriations.

1%or2'L
Assessed
Valuation

Table V t

Unused
D.bt Llmlt

1987
,1988

1989

1990
'1991

1992
I OO"

1994

1995

1996

Computation of Legal Debt Margin at June 30, 1996:

Assessed value of taxable property at June 30, 1996 (2)

Debt limilation (2% of assessed value)

Total general and special obligation bonded debt

Leases

Less obligation exsmpt from debt margin:

Municipal bond bank bonds

Special obligalion bonds

Protec'tion of natural resources bonds

Preservation ot property bonds

Debt subject to debt limitation

Legaldsbt margin at June 30, 1996

158,627

171,357

378,528
414,444

459,570

494,964

531,426

574,717

632,795

694,58'l

$ 90,870

99,605
100,820

204.368
226,955

415,050

404,005
423,274
426,613

451,567

67,757

71,752
277,708

214,076
232,615

79,914

127,421

151,439

206,182

243,014

34,729,065

694,581

1,294,536

3,287

343,275

59,820
442,661

500

451,567

(2) Assessed value includes redevelopment assessed value ot $636,657

1U
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Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for
General Bonded Debt to Total General Expenditures

Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt
to Assessed Value and Net General Obligation Bonded Debt per Capita

Last Ten Fiscal Years (Expressed in Thousands) (Unaudit€d)

TaUe lX

Yeal
End.d

Inleresl,
Fiscal

18,500 $ 25,385 $

23,295 32,755

24,A77 36,597

30,5a5 47,010

35.661 55,034

43,A27 63,457

33,159 59,354

41,87 70,147
55,128 102,143

$ 15,552,236 $ 464,245 $
16,801,110 464,000
18,585,395 534,855
20,531,292 633,783
22,557,977 684,460
24290pA4 826,230
26,132,9A3 703,450
2A,294,706 820,906
31,102,336 I,026,766
up92/07 1,2U,716

Ratio ot Genclal
Total Oebt Totel General to Debt Seavice

_Jg!q l!!qE!_ __9!3ISS!!L _**!9SGL Expenditu.es {3) Expenditures

1987

1988

't989

1990

1991

1992

1993

1994

1995
'1996

1987 1,035
1988 1,096
1989 1,162
1990 1,237
1991 1,29E
1992 1 ,344
1993 1,399
1994 1,493
1995 1,582
1996 1,638

Table X

Net Net Bonded Debt Net Bond.d

6.885 $

9.460

11,720

16.42s

18.373

19,630

26,195

24,260
47,O15

1,204,222

1,351,654

1,445,526

1,778,163

1,934,854

2,406,833

2,542,66s

2,477,622
2,711,446
2,947,797

2.10

2.42

2.53

2.64

2.84

229
2.50

2.40

347

(1)
(2')
(3)

Excludes advance tefu nding escrow e)(pendilul6s,
Excludes general obligatioh bonds rePorted in Entefptise Funds and revenue bonds.

lncludes GeneEl, Sp€cial Revenue, Debt Sedice, CaPital Projecl, and Expohdabl€ Trust Funds

caoss Lcss Debt From Fees and

Ended Assessed Bonded Seavice Enterpdsr Fund Bonded to Assessed Dcbt Per

jl9jlL __Egp!]|3!jL value (1) 
---99q1(3)- 

Fund Revenues (3) Debt value % -jgPj!3.-
471 $

1,705
2,624
4.693
7,972

14,202
19,349
20,331
22,420
26,279

376.635 $ 87,'139
360.895 101.401)
415,413 'l16.818
402540 226,550
442,380 234,108
387,351 424,677
278,E20 405,281
353,256 447,319
560,375 443,971
716,970 491,467

os6 $
0.60
0.63
't.10
1.04
1.75

1.58
1.43
144

a4
93

't 01
183
180
316
290
300
241
3oo

(1) Excludes redevelopm€nt agency valuations.
i2i Excludes 197/ and 1989 Sewer lmpaovement Bonds servic€d by Clark County, but includes Municipal Bond Bankdsbt

i3i Includes university ceneral Obligation Bonds paid ftom gaming taxes; Munr Bond Bank Bonds Paid by local govemments; and Colorado Rivor

Gsnelal Obligation Bonds Paid by user f€€s.

D€bt Payablc
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Revenue Bond Coverage

Fiscal Year
Ended June 30

Gross
Resources

Net Resources
Available for
Debt Servic€Uses

Debt Service Requiremenrs (1)

P.incipal Interest Total

1987
1988
1989

1991
1992
1993
1994
'r 99s
1996

1987
1988
1989
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996

$ 268,687 (2)

236,504
269,592
314,587
282,078
314,156
332,17 4
425,82A
499,343
463,447

$ 97,007 (4)

85,970
93,934
94,259

103,442
161,282
168,152
2 t3,621
u,281

112,896

$ 229,004 (3)

21't,536
249,901
295,E20
264,388
296,363
319,761
409,67'l
440,711
413,941

s 3,655 (3)

5,050
3,987
4,014
4,372
5,444
8,597
7,512
7,511
8,280

$ 39,683
24,968
19,691
18,767
17,690
17,793
12,413
'| 6,157
58,632
49,506

$ 93,352
80,920
89,947
90,245
99,070

155,834

206,109
76,770

104,6't 6

$ 12,000
12,260
15,760
15,760
15,760
14,760
16,220
12,720
30,420
30,420

$ 38,566
39,371
38,227
50,372

1't4.858
87,617

178,892
56,462
82,256

2,620
3,349
2,587
1,684
2,145
3,1r5
2,327
5,440
4,929

$ 55,805
52,283
50,720

58,221
57,556

38,327
37,327
43,156

Coverage

Table Xl

2AO
1.68
1.03
1.02
1.01
1.05
0.64
1.O7

164
1.40

Table XI

0.88
101
0.88
0.72
090
1.15

0.82
0.83

Table X l
1.04
099
1.00
1.00
1.00

1.00
0.96
0.94
0.86

14,155
14,880
19,'109
18,U7
17,444
16,905

15,U7
35,860
35,349

(6)

1987
1988
1989
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994

1996

$ 9,209 (5)
9,472
9,944
9,996

10,886
10,986
11,915

14,947
19,030

$ 3,023 (3)
3,235
3,657
3,713
4,290
4,388
4,411

7,O21
10,591

6,186

6,287
6,283
6,596
6,598
7,504
6,722
7,926
E,439

1 ,670 $
1,700
1,805
1,925
2,183
2,170
3,020
3,028

3,'t 20

4,285
4,583
4,462
4,353
4,385
4,302
4,514

5,068
6,707

$ 94,371
91,654
88,947

102,538
138,171
172,414
138,752
217,219

125,412

6,283
6,267
6,278
6,568
6,472
7,534

8,435

(1)
(21

(3)
(4)
(s)
(6)

Principal requirements represent principal outlays.
Consists of lhe reEources ot the State Highway Special Revenue Fund and Highway Revenue Bonds Debt Service Fund.
Uses are operating expenses, nonoperating exp€nses, and lransfers out less inleresl exgense and deDreciation
Consisis ot opeaaling revenues. nonoperating rcvenues, ttansfers in and principal colleclions of the Housing Division EnteDdse Fund.
Includes operating revenues and nonoperating revenues of the Water Treatment Enterprise Fund
Revised in 1996
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Disposable Per Capita Income
Pooulation
(Unauditad)

Table XIV

Calendar
Year California Nevada

Nevada's
Per capita

as % of U,s.
Per Capila

127%
t t5
106
106
107
10s
105
't 05
105
'105

106
104

Nevada's
Per Capita

Rank
United
States

1970
't gEO

t 986
1987
't 988
't 989
't 990
1991

19€2
1993
1994
1995

3,44
8,424

12,89
| 3,1€
14,457
15,722
16,642
17,161
18,034
18,551
19,241
20,189

4,'t31
9,E76

14,84
'15,'r38

16,'t3t
17,250
18,313
1E,6'15
19,390
19,571

20,970

4,425
9,714

13,179

16,50E
17,443
17,941
1E,866
19,386
20,350
21,065

15 Olhel
Counties

94,382
143,794
't79,980

1A9,420
202,010
209,500
214,810
221,930
228,970
238,690
249,810
256,992

U.S. Department ol Commerce, Bureau of Census, 'l970, 
'98O' 

'1990;

Nevada State Demographer for all other years as estimaled for July I

5

tl
11

15
13
14
8
E

't0

Source; Survey of Cunent Business, published by U.S Departmenl of Commerce

' Revised in 1996

Table XV

1970
't 980
1987
1gEE
1989
1990
't 991

1992
1993
1994
1995
1996

Sources:

Clark
Counly

273,284
,163,087

616,650
661,690
70E,750
770,260
a20,84
E56,350
898,020
971,680

1,038,180
1,082,667

Washoe
County

121,06E
193,623
234,360
244,ap0
2sr,580
257,120
262,260
265,660
271,770
2a2,AO
294,290
298,356

488,738
800,508

1,034,990
1,096,000
1,162,34
1,236,900
1,297,910
1,3,13,940
1,398,760
1,,193,000
1,s82,280
1,638,015

Total
State
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Public School Enrollment
University and Community College Enrollment

FallEnrollment
Grades Counti€s

Primary Secondary
(K - 61 (7 - 121 Total Clark Washo€ All Othe6 Total

94,241

101,476

110.301

119,952
126,555

13'r,469
138,829

146,949

155,492
164,654

100,o27

105,'r 51

111,460

121,944

129,233
't36,188

145,327

156,348

166,788

179,106

34,538

36,662

38,486

40,o28
42,061

43,715

45,752

47,572

49,671

fable XVI

Tabte XVI

1987

19S8

r 989

1990

1991

1992

1993

1994

1995

1996

7 4,112 168,353

74,998 176,474

76,533 186,834

81,364 201,316

85,255 211,810
91,377 222,U6
96,971 235,800

103,798 250,747

109,549 265,M1
117,477 282,131

33,788 168,353

36,140 176,474

38,712 186,834

40,846 201,316
42,549 211,810
44,597 222,U6
46,758 235,800
48,647 250,747

50,68'1 265,041

53,354 282,131

Source: Nevada Deparlment of Education

Las Vggas Subtotal Meadows Subtotal Total
'1987

1988
'1989

't 990
't 991

1992

1993
'1994

't 995

1996

7,497

7,743

7,772

I,821
9,212

9,392

9,161

9,624
r0,835

12,141

13,108

12,944
12,885

13,211

13,166

13,661

'r 6,090

17,367
'r8,607

20,440
21,929
22,16
22,040
22,603

22,327
23,0M

4,179

4,492

5,024
5,402
6,253
7,426

7,137

7,111

10,245

474

590

800

828
933

906

933

478
1,010

2,627
2,883

3,036

3,283

3,71A

3,726

3,594

3,451

3,848

't,162

1,372

1,478
1,646

1,726

1,765

1,810

1,847

1,682

1,869

8,442

9,285
10,128

1't,t31
12,322

13,U2
'13,579

13,485

14,610

16,972

24,532

26,652

28,735
31,57'1

u,251
35,998

35,619

36,088

36,937
40,016

Source: Unive.slty and Community College System of Nevada



Average Annual Employment

Last Ten Calendat Years (Exprcssed in Thousands) (Unaudited) Tabte )Ofttt

Labor Forca Statistlcs Industrial Baso Statistiss (2)

FiscalYgar
Ended June 30

Total Nevada
Labor Forco

U.S. Average
Unemployment

Rate
Total Non-
Agrlculture

lJnemploymgnt
Ungmployment Ratg

Good8 Services
Produclng Producing

1987

1988

1989

100r

1992
1993

1994

199s (3)

1996 (1)

557.0
586.0

602.0
667.0

693.0
715.O

746.0

779.0

800.9

835.7

35_0

30.0

30.0

33.0

38.0

47.0

54.0

48.0

43.2

42.7

500.2

537 E

581.2

620.9

638.7

670.0

7891
835.2

61.5
72.3

84.0

79.0

88.0

100,9

1't 1.8

123.7

438.7

465.5

497.2

549.7

560.5

ss2.0

677.3

711.5

o.5

4.9
c.5

7.2

5.4

51

5.5

6.7

7.4

6.8

6.1

5.6

Source: Nevada oepartment of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation

('l) Average through August 1996.

(2) Reflects employment by place of work. Does not necessarily coincide with the labor force conc€pt. Includes multiple job holders.
(3) Revlsed h1996
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